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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K
ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED APRIL 30, 2016

Commission file number: 333-175941

MCIG, INC.

( Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter )

NEVADA 27-4439285
( State or other jurisdiction of (LR.S. Employer Identification No.)
incorporation
or organization )

2831 St. Rose Parkway, Suite 200, 89052
Henderson , NV
(Address of principal executive (Zip Code )
offices)
Registrant’s telephone number, 570-778-6459

including area code

Securities registered under Section 12(b) of the Act:
None

Securities registered under Section 12(g) of the Act:
Common Stock, par value $0.0001 per share
( Title of class )

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act.
[ ]Yes[V]No

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the
Act. [ 1Yes[V]No

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained
herein, and will not be contained, to the best of the registrant's knowledge, in definitive proxy or information
statements incorporated by reference in Part III of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K. y

[ 1Yes[V] No
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Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, or a non-accelerated filer.
See definition of “accelerated filer and large accelerated filer” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one)::

Large accelerated filer [ 1T Accelerated filer []

Non-accelerated filer [ 1 Smaller reporting company ]
(Do not check if smaller reporting company)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act)
Yes[ ]No [V]

The aggregate market value of the voting and non-voting common equity held by non-affiliates as of the last business day
of the registrant's most recently completed second fiscal quarter was approximately $5,862,585. For purposes of the
above statement only, all directors, executive officers and 10% shareholders are assumed to be affiliates. This
determination of affiliate status is not necessarily a conclusive determination for other purposes.

As of August 31, 2016, there were 326,755,392 shares of common stock issued and outstanding.
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List hereunder the following documents if incorporated by reference and the Part of the Form 10-K (e.g., Part I, Part 11,
etc.) into which the document is incorporated: (1) Any annual report to security holders; (2) Any proxy or information
statement, and (3) Any prospectus filed pursuant to Rule 424(b) or (c) under the Securities Act of 1933. The listed
documents should be clearly described for identification purposes (e.g., annual report to security holders for fiscal year

ended April 30, 2016).
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report contains certain forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation
Reform Act of 1995 ("PSLRA") regarding management’s plans and objectives for future operations including plans
and objectives relating to our planned marketing efforts and future economic performance. The forward-looking
statements and associated risks set forth in this Annual Report include or relate to, among other things, (a) our growth
strategies, (b) anticipated trends and regulations in the our industry, (c) our ability to obtain and retain sufficient
capital for future operations, and (d) our anticipated needs for working capital. These statements may be found under
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and “Description of
Business” Actual events or results may differ materially from those discussed in forward-looking statements as a result
of various factors, including, without limitation, the risks outlined under “Risk Factors”. In light of these risks and
uncertainties, there can be no assurance that the forward-looking statements contained in this report will in fact occur.

The forward-looking statements herein are based on current expectations that involve a number of risks and
uncertainties. Such forward-looking statements are based on assumptions described herein. The assumptions are based
on judgments with respect to, among other things, future economic, competitive and market conditions, and future
business decisions, all of which are difficult or impossible to predict accurately and many of which are beyond our
control. Accordingly, although we believe that the assumptions underlying the forward-looking statements are
reasonable, any such assumption could prove to be inaccurate and therefore there can be no assurance that the results
contemplated in forward-looking statements will be realized. In addition, as disclosed in “Risk Factors”, there are a
number of other risks inherent in our business and operations, which could cause our operating results to vary
markedly and adversely from prior results or the results contemplated by the forward-looking statements. Management
decisions, including budgeting, are subjective in many respects and periodic revisions must be made to reflect actual
conditions and business developments, the impact of which may cause us to alter marketing, capital investment and
other expenditures, which may also materially adversely affect our results of operations. In light of significant
uncertainties inherent in the forward-looking information included in the report statement, the inclusion of such
information should not be regarded as a representation by us or any other person that our objectives or plans will be
achieved.

Any statement in this report that is not a statement of an historical fact constitutes a ‘‘forward-looking statement”.
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Further, when we use the words “may”, “expect”, “anticipate”, “plan”, “believe”, “seek”, “estimate”, “internal”,
and similar words, we intend to identify statements and expressions that may be forward- looking statements. We
believe it is important to communicate certain of our expectations to our investors. Forward-looking statements are not
guarantees of future performance. They involve risks, uncertainties and assumptions that could cause our future results
to differ materially from those expressed in any forward-looking statements. Many factors are beyond our ability to
control or predict. You are accordingly cautioned not to place undue reliance on such forward-looking statements.
Important factors that may cause our actual results to differ from such forward-looking statements include, but are not
limited to, the risks outlined under “Risk Factors” herein. The reader is cautioned that our Company does not have a
policy of updating or revising forward-looking statements and thus the reader should not assume that silence by
management of our Company over time means that actual events are bearing out as estimated in such forward-looking
statements.

OTHER INFORMATION
Unless specifically set forth to the contrary, when used in this report, the terms “mCig, Inc.”, “mCig”, “we”, “our”, the
“Company” and similar terms refer to mCig, Inc., a Nevada corporation. In addition, when used herein and unless
specifically set forth to the contrary, “2015” refers to the year ended April 30, 2015, and “2016” refers to the year
ended April 30, 2016.
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PART 1
Item 1. Business
General Overview

We were incorporated in the State of Nevada on December 30, 2010 originally under the name Lifetech Industries, Inc.
All agreements related to the Lifetech business were terminated and closed as of April 30, 2014. Effective August 2,
2013, the name was changed from "Lifetech Industries, Inc." to "mCig, Inc." The Company’s common stock is traded
under the symbol “MCIG.” The Company is based in Beverly Hills, California.

Since 2013, the Company manufactures, markets, and distributes electronic cigarettes, vaporizers, and accessories
under the mCig brand name in the United States. It offers electronic cigarettes and related products through its online
store mcig.org, as well as through the company’s wholesale, distributor, and retail programs. In FY 2016 the Company
expanded its products and services to include construction management. The Company continues to look at strategic
acquisitions and product and service developments for future growth.

mCig Construction Division

We develop, design, engineer, and construct modular buildings with unique and proprietary elements that assist
cannabis growers in the market. Each modular building is uniquely designed for each customer. The Company began
construction on its first contract in April 2016. We will continue to expand our offering in the construction and modular
facilities in multiple facets as the industry continues to seek better and improved ways of production.

mCig Commercial Division

We manufacture, distribute, and retail the mCig — an affordable loose-leaf eCig. Designed in the USA — the mCig
provides a smoking experience by heating plant material, waxes, and oils delivering, in the Company’s opinion, a
smoother inhalation experience. The Company also maintains an investment in Vapolution, Inc. which manufactures
and retails home-use vaporizers such as the Vapolution 2.0. Through VitaCig, Inc., a Florida Company, a wholly
owned subsidiary, the Company is engaged in the manufacturing and retailing of a nicotine-free eCig that delivers a
water-vapor mixed with vitamins and natural flavors.

DESCRIPTION OF SUBSIDIARIES

Scalable Solutions, LLC

The Company organized Scalable Solutions, LLC (“SS”) on March 7, 2016 under the laws of the state of Nevada.
mCig has been issued 40 membership units and Zoha Development, LLC (“ZOHA?”) has been issued 20 units. ZOHA
has a ten year option to purchase 40 additional units which expires March 6, 2026.

mCig Internet Sales, Inc.

On June 1, 2016, subsequent to this reporting period, the Company incorporated mCig Internet Sales, Inc., (“mCig
Internet”) in order to consolidate all online retail sales from various websites and to provide streamlining of

administrative and documentation services, consolidation of inventories, and support economy of scale.
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Vapolution, Inc.

On January 23, 2014, the Company signed a Stock Purchase Agreement with Vapolution, Inc. which manufactures and
retails home-use vaporizers. In accordance with this agreement, mCig, Inc. acquired 100% of Vapolution, Inc. As part
of this transaction, mCig, Inc. issued 5,000,000 shares to shareholders of Vapolution, Inc. The shareholders of
Vapolution, Inc. retained the right to rescind the transaction, which expired on January 23, 2015 but was extended to
May 23, 2015 based on an Amended Stock Purchase Agreement executed on May 23, 2014. Subsequently, on August



25, 2015, the final payment to the shareholders of Vapolution as extended to September 30, 2015 and the right to
rescind the transaction was extended to June 30, 2017. On April 30, 2015 the Company impaired the $625,000 initial
investment into Vapolution, Inc., but maintains the $67,500 investment on its balance sheet.

On January 23, 2014, Paul Rosenberg, CEO of mCig, Inc. cancelled an equal amount (2,500,000 shares) of common
shares owned by him resulting in a net non-dilutive transaction to existing mCig, Inc. shareholders. The remaining
2,500,000 of common shares owned by Paul Rosenberg were cancelled to offset the 2,500,000 new shares issued from
the treasury to complete the purchase of Vapolution, Inc.

Vapolution, Inc., is wholly owned by mCig, Inc., and is reported in the consolidated financial statements as an
investment of the Company. The financial statements of Vapolution, Inc. are not consolidated with the consolidated
financial performance of mCig as expressed in this Form 10-K.

VitaCig, Inc.

On February 24, 2014, the Company entered into a Contribution Agreement with VitaCig, Inc. In accordance with this
agreement, VitaCig, Inc. accepted the contribution by mCig, Inc. of specific assets consisting solely of pending
trademarks for the term “VitaCig” filed with the USPTO and $500 in cash as contribution in exchange for 500,135,000
shares of common capital stock representing 100% of the shares outstanding of VitaCig, Inc. mCig now owns
approximately 46% of VitaCig shares.

On November 28, 2014, mCig completed the spin-off of VitaCig, Inc. (the “Spin-off”). Effective as of 11:59 p.m., New
York City time, on November 28, 2014 (the “Distribution Date”), the Company distributed 270,135,000 shares of
common stock of VitaCig, Inc., par value $0.0001 per share (“VitaCig Common Stock”), to holders of mCig’s
stockholders of record as a pro rata dividend. The record date for the dividend was November 28, 2014. The Ex-
Dividend Date was set for November 25, 2014. mCig stockholders received one share of VitaCig Common Stock for
every one share of common stock, par value $0.0001 per share, of mCig. The Spin-off was completed for the purpose
of legally and structurally separating VitaCig, Inc. from mCig. MCig retained 230,000,000 shares of common stock
and remains a shareholder. The shares of common stock to be received by mCig shareholders were registered on a
Form S-1 filed by VitaCig and declared effective by the Securities and Exchange Commission on November 5, 2014.

On June 2 2, 2016, the Company and VitaCig, Inc., entered into a Separation and Share Transfer Agreement whereby
VitaCig transferred the assets and operations of the business of VitaCig, Inc., to Company in exchange for the return of
172,500,000 shares of VitaCig Common Stock to the treasury of VitaCig, Inc., and for a reduction of the amount owed
to the Company in excess of $95,000.

VitaCig, Inc., a Nevada Corporation, is a public company trading under VTCQ.
Business Model

mCig specializes in products and services within the cannabis and eCig markets. Since October 2013, mCig, Inc. has
positioned itself as an industry leader and technology company focused on two long-term secular trends:

(1) The decriminalization and legalization of marijuana for medicinal or recreational purposes. L egalizing medicinal
and recreational marijuana usage is steadily on the rise not only domestically but also internationally. Marijuana has
been decriminalized in over twenty countries, in over five continents. Twenty-three states and the District of Columbia
currently have laws legalizing marijuana in some form (See http://www.governing.com/gov-data/safety-justice/state-
marijuana-laws-map-medical-recreational.html, which website is not incorporated into this filing).

(2) The adoption of electronic vaporizing cigarettes (commonly known as “eCigs”), as smokers move away from
traditional cigarettes onto e-cigarettes. Smoking tobacco causes numerous health problems, including disease and
death. Smoking is addictive, and the most difficult part is cessation. The Company contends that E-cigarettes offer a
safer and healthier alternative to traditional tobacco cigarettes. E-cigarettes operate by heating a mixture of liquid
nicotine and flavoring, which is then inhaled and exhaled in the same manner as a cigarette. However, e-cigarettes do
not contain any tobacco or other dangerous additives. Scientific research has shown that the leading cause of cancer in
smokers comes from the carcinogens in tobacco. As the movement towards personal health grows, smokers are trying
to quit their harmful habits.

The Company’s business model focuses on three specific divisions in the overall cannabis and eCig

industries. It manufactures products that may be sold individually or as system components. We engineer and construct
structural components of commercial buildings. We provide consultation in business development and financial
strategies.

Employees and Consultants

As of April 30, 2016, the Company had no employees and 14 consultants, of whom 9 are primarily administrative and
executive personnel, with 3 in Scalable Solutions, and 11 in the operations of mCig. The Company has utilized
consultants for non-recurring work. The Company intends to bring a number of the consultants on as employees in the
near future. Management believes its relationship with our consultants is good.

Available Information



All reports of the Company filed with the SEC are available free of charge through the SEC’s Web site at
www.sec.gov. In addition, the public may read and copy materials filed by the Company at the SEC’s Public Reference
Room located at 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549. The public may also obtain additional information on the
operation of the Public Reference Room by calling the Commission at 1-800-SEC-0330.

MCIG CONSTRUCTION DIVISION
Description

The Company Construction Division constructs commercial buildings and modular buildings according to plans
supplied by the customer, or act as a design/build firm taking the customer from concept to full turnkey occupancy,
typically utilizing modular technology and structural insulated panels. The Company has experienced project
managers who can take single buildings or entire projects from infancy to occupancy for those customers who desire to
have a comprehensive building solution without their actual day-to-day involvement.

Competitive Strengths

The Company has competitive strength in that it maintains the ability to take projects from concept to occupancy, to
provide architectural and engineering designs for the construction of commercial buildings. This one stop full service
line of comprehensive building solutions differentiates the Company within the marketplace.

Market

The Company maintains current construction arms in Las Vegas, Nevada. This market continues to see growth, even
during this current time of economic downturn. The Company has licensed General Contractors on staff who build
commercial structures in Nevada. The Company utilizes architects and engineers who are qualified in all 48
continental states.

Sales

The Company currently has 4 projects under contract, with 3 under construction prior to April 30, 2016. One of the
contracts have been suspended until the customer obtains the necessary approvals to proceed. The focus of the
construction division is on cultivation and grow facilities within the State of Nevada at this time. We will continue to
look to expand our sales to other states in which cultivation and grow has been authorized, in a methodical approach to
continue to keep in line with the Company’s desire of no toxic debt instruments.

Competition

The Company continues to compete for construction work with many different builders. The construction industry in
the United States alone is more than $1 trillion annually. Approximately 2% of the market utilizes structural insulated
panels in its construction. This industry is projected to grow 60% per year over the next five years. The potential for

growth, even with strong competition, with effective marketing indirectly assists the Company in educating the public,
and increasing sales opportunities.

MCIG COMMERCIAL DIVISION

We are engaged in the business of marketing and distributing electronic cigarettes, vaporizers and accessories under the
mCig brands.

. mCig 2.0 is available for purchase through the mCig website (www.chillcbdoil.com) and through companies
who've ordered them in bulk through the Company’s wholesale, distributor and retail programs;

. mCig 3.0 is available for purchase through the mCig owned website (www.chillcbdoil.com) and through
companies who've ordered them in bulk through the Company’s wholesale, distributor and retail programs;

. mCig 4.0 is available for purchase through the mCig owned website (www.chillcbdoil.com) and through
companies who've ordered them in bulk through the Company’s wholesale, distributor and retail programs;
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In development:
mCig, Inc.is currently in the process of researching and developing a future line of products including the mCig 3.5 and
the LiqCig, respectively. These products are still in the conceptual phase, as we hope to have these out sometime in
2016.
The Market for Electronic Cigarettes
We compete in a highly competitive market that includes other e-cigarette marketing companies, as well as traditional
tobacco companies. In this highly fragmented market, we have focused on building brand awareness early through viral
adoption and word of mouth. In the future, we expect to employ additional marketing strategies while continuing to

develop our supply chain and fulfillment capabilities.

We market our electronic cigarettes and vaporizers as an alternative to traditional tobacco cigarettes. We offer our



products in three flavor combinations. Because electronic cigarettes offer a “smoking” experience without the burning
of tobacco leaf, electronic cigarettes offer users the ability to satisfy their traditional cigarette cravings without smoke,
tar, ash or carbon monoxide. In many cases electronic cigarettes may be used where tobacco-burning cigarettes may
not. Electronic cigarettes may be used in some instances where for regulatory or safety reasons tobacco burning
cigarettes may not be used. However, we cannot provide any assurances that future regulations may not affect where
electronic cigarettes may be used.

According to the U.S. Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, in 2010, an estimated 45.3 million people, or 19.3%
of adults, in the United States smoke cigarettes. According to the Tobacco Vapor Electronic Cigarette Association, an
industry trade group, more than 3.5 million people currently use electronic cigarettes in the United States. In 2011,
about 21% of adults who smoke traditional tobacco cigarettes had used electronic cigarettes, up from about 10% in
2010, according to the U.S. Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. Annual sales of electronic cigarettes in the
United States are estimated to increase to $1 billion in 2013 from $500 million in 2012. Annual sales of traditional
tobacco cigarettes, according to industry estimates, were $80 billion in 2012.

Advertising

Currently, we advertise our products primarily through our direct marketing campaign, on the Internet. We also attempt
to build brand awareness through social media marketing activities, web-site promotions, and pay-per-click advertising
campaigns.

We intend to strategically expand our advertising activities in 2016 and also increase our public relations campaigns to
gain editorial coverage for our brands. Some of our competitors promote their brands through print media and through
celebrity endorsements, and have substantial resources to devote to such efforts. We believe that our and our
competitors’ efforts have helped increase our sales, our product acceptance and general industry awareness.

Distribution and Sales

We offer our electronic cigarettes and related products through our online store at www.mcig.org, which website is
expressly not incorporated by reference into this filing, and through a Wholesale Distributor Reseller (WDR) program
for large bulk orders. Since their introduction to the U.S. market, electronic cigarettes have predominantly been
sold online, while tobacco products, most notably cigarettes are currently sold in approximately 400,000 retail
locations.

An online store of mCig, Inc. was officially launched on September 17, 2013 and our online store for VitaCig, Inc. was
beta-launched on April 1, 2014, and officially launched on April 15, 2014. We believe that future growth of electronic
cigarettes is dependent on higher volume, lower margin sales channels, such as the broad based distribution network
through which traditional cigarettes are sold.

Government Regulation

Based on the December 2010 U.S. Court of Appeals for the D.C. Circuit’s decision in Sottera, Inc. v. Food & Drug
Administration , 627 F.3d 891 (D.C. Cir. 2010), the United States Food and Drug Administration (the “FDA”) is
permitted to regulate electronic cigarettes as “tobacco products” under the Family Smoking Prevention and Tobacco
Control Act of 2009 (the “Tobacco Control Act”).

Under this Court decision, the FDA is not permitted to regulate electronic cigarettes as “drugs” or “devices” or a
“combination product” under the Federal Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act unless they are marketed for therapeutic
purposes.
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Because we do not market our electronic cigarettes for therapeutic purposes, and our electronic cigarettes do not contain
nicotine, we believe that our products should not fall under the regulatory oversight of the FDA. Nevertheless we believe
it is important for any existing or potential investors to understand recent trends in government regulation relating to
nicotine-based electronic cigarettes.

The Tobacco Control Act grants the FDA broad authority over the manufacture, sale, marketing and packaging of
tobacco products, although the FDA is prohibited from issuing regulations banning all cigarettes or all smokeless tobacco
products, or requiring the reduction of nicotine yields of a tobacco product to zero.

The Tobacco Control Act also requires establishment, within the FDA’s new Center for Tobacco Products, of a Tobacco
Products Scientific Advisory Committee to provide advice, information and recommendations with respect to the safety,
dependence or health issues related to tobacco products.

The Tobacco Control Act imposes significant new restrictions on the advertising and promotion of tobacco products. For
example, the law requires the FDA to finalize certain portions of regulations previously adopted by the FDA in 1996
(which were struck down by the Supreme Court in 2000 as beyond the FDA’s authority). As written, these regulations
would significantly limit the ability of manufacturers, distributors and retailers to advertise and promote tobacco
products, by, for example, restricting the use of color, graphics and sound effects in advertising, limiting the use of
outdoor advertising, restricting the sale and distribution of non-tobacco items and services, gifts, and sponsorship of
events and imposing restrictions on the use for cigarette or smokeless tobacco products of trade or brand names that are
used for non-tobacco products. The law also requires the FDA to issue future regulations regarding the promotion and
marketing of tobacco products sold or distributed over the internet, by mail order or through other non-face-to-face
transactions in order to prevent the sale of tobacco products to minors.



It is likely that the Tobacco Control Act could result in a decrease in tobacco product sales in the United States, including
sales of our electronic cigarettes.

While the FDA has not yet mandated electronic cigarettes be regulated as tobacco products, during 2012, the FDA
indicated that it intends to regulate electronic cigarettes under the Tobacco Control Act through the issuance of deeming
regulations that would include electronic cigarettes under the definition of a “tobacco product” under the Tobacco Control
Act subject to the FDA’s jurisdiction. The FDA initially announced that it would issue proposed deeming regulations by
April 2013 and then extended the deadline to October 31, 2013. As of the date of this prospectus, the FDA had not taken
such action.

The application of the Tobacco Control Act to electronic cigarettes could impose, among other things, restrictions on the
content of nicotine in electronic cigarettes, the advertising, marketing and sale of electronic cigarettes, the use of certain
flavorings and the introduction of new products. We cannot predict the scope of such regulations or the impact they may
have on our company specifically or the electronic cigarette industry generally, though if enacted, they could have a
material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

In this regard, total compliance and related costs are not possible to predict and depend substantially on the future
requirements imposed by the FDA under the Tobacco Control Act. Costs, however, could be substantial and could have a
material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition. In addition, failure to comply with
the Tobacco Control Act and with FDA regulatory requirements could result in significant financial penalties and could
have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations and ability to market and sell
our products. At present, we are not able to predict whether the Tobacco Control Act will impact us to a greater degree
than competitors in the industry, thus affecting our competitive position.

State and local governments currently legislate and regulate tobacco products, including what is considered a tobacco
product, how tobacco taxes are calculated and collected, to whom and by whom tobacco products can be sold and where
tobacco products may or may not be smoked. Certain municipalities have enacted local ordinances which preclude the
use of electronic cigarettes where traditional tobacco burning cigarettes cannot be used and certain states have proposed
legislation that would categorize electronic cigarettes as tobacco products, equivalent to their tobacco burning
counterparts. If these bills become laws, electronic cigarettes may lose their appeal as an alternative to cigarettes; which
may have the effect of reducing the demand for our products and as a result have a material adverse effect on our
business, results of operations and financial condition.

The Tobacco industry expects significant regulatory developments to take place over the next few years, driven
principally by the World Health Organization’s Framework Convention on Tobacco Control (“FCTC”). The FCTC is the
first international public health treaty on tobacco, and its objective is to establish a global agenda for tobacco regulation
with the purpose of reducing initiation of tobacco use and encouraging cessation. Regulatory initiatives that have been
proposed, introduced or enacted include:
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the levying of substantial and increasing tax and duty charges;

restrictions or bans on advertising, marketing and sponsorship;

the display of larger health warnings, graphic health warnings and other labeling requirements;

restrictions on packaging design, including the use of colors and generic packaging;

restrictions or bans on the display of tobacco product packaging at the point of sale, and restrictions or bans on
cigarette vending machines;
. requirements regarding testing, disclosure and performance standards for tar, nicotine, carbon monoxide and

other smoke constituents levels;
requirements regarding testing, disclosure and use of tobacco product ingredients;

= increased restrictions on smoking in public and work places and, in some instances, in private places and
outdoors;

elimination of duty free allowances for travelers; and
m  encouraging litigation against tobacco companies.

If electronic cigarettes are subject to one or more significant regulatory initiates enacted under the FCTC, our business,
results of operations and financial condition could be materially and adversely affected.

Electronic cigarettes may become subject to regulation by the FDA.

The FDA did not appeal the decision of the U.S. Court of Appeals for the D.C. Circuit in Sottera, Inc. v. Food & Drug
Administration (2010) which held that e-cigarettes and other nicotine-containing products are not drugs or devices
unless they are marketed for therapeutic purposes. The Court held further that electronic cigarettes and other nicotine-
containing products can be regulated as “tobacco products” under the Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act. Consequently, the
FDA may choose to develop regulations governing the manufacture, marketing and sale of e-cigarettes. For example,
pursuant to the Family Smoking Prevention and Tobacco Control Act, the FDA has proposed rules that would extend
the agency’s tobacco authority to cover additional tobacco products, including our products. Potential FDA regulations
or significant costs to comply with potential FDA regulations could have a materially adverse effect on our company’s
operations and profitability.

As part of its implementation of the Family Smoking Prevention and Tobacco Control Act signed by the President in
2009, the U.S. Food and Drug Administration proposed a new rule that would extend the agency’s tobacco authority
to cover additional tobacco products. Products that would be “deemed” to be subject to FDA regulation are those that



meet the statutory definition of a tobacco product, including currently unregulated marketed products, such as
electronic cigarettes (e-cigarettes), cigars, pipe tobacco, nicotine gels, waterpipe (or hookah) tobacco, and dissolvables
not already under the FDA’s authority. The FDA currently regulates cigarettes, cigarette tobacco, roll-your-own
tobacco, and smokeless tobacco.

Consistent with currently regulated tobacco products, under the proposed rule, makers of newly deemed tobacco
products would, among other requirements:

e  Register with the FDA and report product and ingredient listings;
e Only market new tobacco products after FDA review;

e  Only make direct and implied claims of reduced risk if the FDA confirms that scientific evidence supports the
claim and that marketing the product will benefit public health as a whole; and
e  Not distribute free samples.

In addition, under the proposed rule, the following provisions would apply to newly “deemed” tobacco products:

e  Minimum age and identification restrictions to prevent sales to underage youth;
e  Requirements to include health warnings; and
e  Prohibition of vending machine sales, unless in a facility that never admits youth.

The FDA proposes different compliance dates for various provisions so that all regulated entities, including small
businesses, will have adequate time to comply with the requirements of the proposed rule.
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Products that are marketed for therapeutic purposes will continue to be regulated as medical products under the FDA’s
existing drug and device authorities in the Food, Drug &Cosmetic Act.

While all comments, data, research, and other information submitted to the docket will be considered, the FDA is
requesting comments in certain areas, including:

. The FDA recognizes that different tobacco products may have the potential for varying effects on public health
and is proposing two options for the categories of cigars that would be covered by this rule. The FDA specifically seeks
comment on whether all cigars should be subject to deeming, and which other provisions of the proposed rule may be
appropriate or not appropriate for different kinds of cigars.

. The FDA seeks answers to the many public health questions posed by products, such as e-cigarettes, that do not
involve the burning of tobacco and inhalation of its smoke, as the agency develops an appropriate level of regulatory
oversight for these products. The FDA seeks comment in this proposed rule as to how such products should be
regulated.

Failure to comply with FDA regulatory requirements could result in significant financial penalties and could have a
material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations and ability to market and sell our
products.

Direct Competitors

We believe that our products afford us a competitive advantage which makes our product unique. Companies that are
our closest competitors include OpenVAPE and Vaporbrands International, Inc. We view many of these companies as
potential acquisition targets.

Competitive Advantages

We believe we are positioned to show a strong performance in our industry for the following reasons:

e We believe we are a market leader in the niche for electronic cigarettes related products.

. We compete primarily on the basis of product quality, brand recognition, brand loyalty, service, marketing,
advertising and price.

. We believe that through our continuous product upgrades and new product and service offerings, we can
distinguish ourselves from the competition.

e  We have developed various product offerings that allow us to provide high quality products/services and maintain
a great customer experience.

. We believe we have a solid business model that relies on multiple revenue streams and has been extended by
adding multiple products/services through the acquisitions that took place in 2014.

. We pride ourselves on providing well above average customer service to our customers thus generating a high
degree of loyalty and involvement of members to the brand.
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e  We are adverse to toxic financing and plan to grow organically and through accretive acquisitions.
e  We have a marketing skill set that enables us to continue to grow virally and attract new customers at a low cost.
Research and Development Activities

We have invested approximately $5,000 and $37,000 for the years ended April 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively on
website and product development activities.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS.

Investing in our securities involves a high degree of risk. You should carefully consider the following risk factors as
well as other information contained herein, including our financial statements and the related notes. The risks and
uncertainties described below are not the only ones facing us. Additional risks and uncertainties that we are unaware
of, or that we currently deem immaterial, also may become important factors that affect us. If any of the following risks
occur, our business, financial condition or results of operations could materially and adversely affected. In that case,
the trading price of our securities could decline, and you may lose some or all of your investment.

We have incurred losses in the past and cannot assure you that we will achieve or maintain profitable operations.

As of April 30,2016, we had an accumulated deficit of $6,658,558. Our accumulated deficit is primarily due to, among
other reasons, the establishment of our business infrastructure and operations, stock-based compensation expenses and
increases in our marketing expenditures to grow sales. For the year ended April 30, 2016, we had net loss of
$1,391,145 compared to a net loss of $4,869,448 for the year ended April 30, 2015. However, we cannot assure you
that we will generate operating profits now or in the immediate future, or be able to on a sustainable basis, continue to
expand our infrastructure, further develop our marketing efforts and otherwise implement our growth initiatives.

The market for electronic cigarettes is a niche market, subject to a great deal of uncertainty and is still evolving.

Electronic cigarettes, having recently been introduced to market, are at an early stage of development, represent a niche
market and are evolving rapidly and are characterized by an increasing number of market entrants. Our future sales and
any future profits are substantially dependent upon the widespread acceptance and use of electronic cigarettes. Rapid
growth in the use of and interest in, electronic cigarettes is recent, and may not continue on a lasting basis. The demand
and market acceptance for these products is subject to a high level of uncertainty.

Therefore, we are subject to all of the business risks associated with a new enterprise in a niche market, including risks
of unforeseen capital requirements, failure of widespread market acceptance of electronic cigarettes, in general or,
specifically our products, failure to establish business relationships and competitive disadvantages as against larger and
more established competitors.

12

Electronic cigarettes may become subject to regulation by the FDA.

The FDA did not appeal the decision of the U.S. Court of Appeals for the D.C. Circuit in Sottera, Inc. v. Food & Drug
Administration (2010) which held that e-cigarettes and other nicotine-containing products are not drugs or devices
unless they are marketed for therapeutic purposes. The Court held further that electronic cigarettes and other nicotine-
containing products can be regulated as “tobacco products” under the Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act. Consequently, the
FDA may choose to develop regulations governing the manufacture, marketing and sale of e-cigarettes. Potential FDA
regulations or significant costs to comply with potential FDA regulations could have a materially adverse effect on our
company’s operations and profitability. Failure to comply with FDA regulatory requirements could result in significant
financial penalties and could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of
operations and ability to market and sell our products.

New product faces intense media attention and public pressure .

Our product is new to the marketplace and since its introduction certain members of the media, politicians, government
regulators and advocate groups, including independent doctors have called for an outright ban of all electronic
cigarettes, pending regulatory review and a demonstration of safety. A ban of this type would likely have the effect of
terminating our United States’ sales and marketing efforts of certain products which we may currently market or have
plans to market in the future. Such a ban would also likely cause public confusion as to which products are the subject
of the ban and which are not and would have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and
performance.

The recent development of electronic cigarettes has not allowed the medical profession to study the long-term health
effects of electronic cigarette use.

Because electronic cigarettes were recently developed, the medical profession has not had a sufficient period of time to
study the long-term health effects of electronic cigarette use. Currently, therefore, there is no way of knowing whether
or not electronic cigarettes are safe for their intended use. If the medical profession were to determine conclusively that
electronic cigarette usage poses long-term health risks, electronic cigarette usage could decline, which could have a
material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

If we experience product recalls, we may incur significant and unexpected costs and our business reputation could



be adversely affected.

We may be exposed to product recalls and adverse public relations if our products are alleged to cause illness or injury,
or if we are alleged to have violated governmental regulations. A product recall could result in substantial and
unexpected expenditures that could exceed our product recall insurance coverage limits and harm to our reputation,
which could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition. In addition, a
product recall may require significant management time and attention and may adversely impact on the value of our
brands. Product recalls may lead to greater scrutiny by federal or state regulatory agencies and increased litigation,
which could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

We face intense competition and our failure to compete effectively could have a material adverse effect on our
business, results of operations and financial condition.

Competition in the electronic cigarette industry is intense. We compete with other sellers of electronic cigarettes, most
notably Lorillard, Inc., Altria Group, Inc. and Reynolds American Inc., through their electronic cigarettes business
segments; the nature of our competitors is varied as the market is highly fragmented and the barriers to entry into the
business are low.
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We compete primarily on the basis of product quality, brand recognition, brand loyalty, service, marketing, advertising
and price. We are subject to highly competitive conditions in all aspects of our business. The competitive environment
and our competitive position can be significantly influenced by weak economic conditions, erosion of consumer
confidence, competitors’ introduction of low-priced products or innovative products, cigarette excise taxes, higher
absolute prices and larger gaps between price categories, and product regulation that diminishes the ability to
differentiate tobacco products.

Our principal competitors are “big tobacco”, U.S. cigarette manufacturers of both conventional tobacco cigarettes and
electronic cigarettes like Altria Group, Inc., Lorillard, Inc. and Reynolds American Inc. We compete against “big
tobacco” who offers not only conventional tobacco cigarettes and electronic cigarettes but also smokeless tobacco
products such as “snus” (a form of moist ground smokeless tobacco that is usually sold in sachet form that resembles
small tea bags), chewing tobacco and snuff.

Furthermore, we believe that “big tobacco” will devote more attention and resources to developing and offering
electronic cigarettes as the market for electronic cigarettes grows. Because of their well-established sales and
distribution channels, marketing expertise and significant resources, “big tobacco” is better positioned than small
competitors like us to capture a larger share of the electronic cigarette market. We also compete against numerous other
smaller manufacturers or importers of cigarettes. There can be no assurance that we will be able to compete
successfully against any of our competitors, some of whom have far greater resources, capital, experience, market
penetration, sales and distribution channels than us. If our major competitors were, for example, to significantly
increase the level of price discounts offered to consumers, we could respond by offering price discounts, which could
have a materially adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

We may not be unable to promote and maintain our brands.

We believe that establishing and maintaining the brand identities of our products is a critical aspect of attracting and
expanding a large customer base. Promotion and enhancement of our brands will depend largely on our success in
continuing to provide high quality products. If our customers and end users do not perceive our products to be of high
quality, or if we introduce new products or enter into new business ventures that are not favorably received by our
customers and end users, we will risk diluting our brand identities and decreasing their attractiveness to existing and
potential customers.

Moreover, in order to attract and retain customers and to promote and maintain our brand equity in response to
competitive pressures, we may have to increase substantially our financial commitment to creating and maintaining a
distinct brand loyalty among our customers. If we incur significant expenses in an attempt to promote and maintain our
brands, our business, results of operations and financial condition could be adversely affected.

We rely primarily on a Chinese factory for the production of our products.

We rely almost exclusively on a Chinese factory, specifically our principle supplier, Bauway H.K. Investments, for the
manufacturing of mCig’s. Therefore, our ability to maintain operations is dependent on this third-party manufacturer.
Bauway H.K. Investments has the capacity to produce 20,000 mCig’s per week. Currently, it takes our manufacturer
approximately 8 hours to produce 1,000 mCig’s.

It currently involves the following raw materials: Stainless Steel Tubing for Battery housing and Atomizing Chambers.
Atomizing Chambers are composed of a battery powered wire assembly housed on top of a ceramic base. Battery type
used is Lithium Polymer 360mAh which is housed inside of the stainless steel tubing. The mouthpiece is made of food
grade silicon.
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Plastic USB Charger for battery assembly holds a small PCB to regulate charging. Another small PCB controls the
battery function and voltage which is controlled by a clickable plastic power button seated in the stainless steel tubing
that can be pressed rapidly in succession to power on/power off the battery and adjust its voltage. A small stainless



steel cleaning tool is included along with cardboard for packaging and plastic blister packaging printed with
instructions and branding.

Significantly all of our raw materials are provided by Shenzhen Bauway Technology Co., Ltd. from the factory of
Bauway H.K. Investment Limited in Shenzhen, China.

Further, the following represent the processes in this production by the manufacturer. Our average mCig orders of
5,000 units take around 3 weeks to come in to our warehouse from the time of the original order placement from our
Chinese manufacturer. Furthermore, we do not currently have any exclusive product or distribution arrangements with
our manufacturer and the loss or disruption of the production of our products could have a material adverse effect on
our business, financial condition and results of operations.

The dollar amount of backlog orders believed to be firm, as of a recent date and as of a comparable date in the
preceding fiscal year, together with an indication of the portion thereof not reasonably expected to be filled within the
current fiscal year, and seasonal or other material aspects of the backlog. (There may be included as firm orders
government orders that are firm but not yet funded and contracts awarded but not yet signed, provided an appropriate
statement is added to explain the nature of such orders and the amount thereof. The portion of orders already included
in sales or operating revenues on the basis of percentage of completion or program accounting shall be excluded.)

Potential Risks in Public Perception Associated with Chinese Factories.

Should Chinese factories continue to draw public criticism for exporting unsafe products, we may be adversely and
materially affected by the stigma associated with Chinese production. This in turn would negatively affect our business
operations, our revenues, and our financial projections and prospects.

We expect that new products and/or brands we develop will expose us to risks that may be difficult to identify until
such products and/or brands are commercially available.

We are currently developing, and in the future will continue to develop, new products and brands, the risks of which
will be difficult to ascertain until these products and/or brands are commercially available. For example, we are
developing new formulations, packaging and distribution channels. Any negative events or results that may arise as we
develop new products or brands may adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Internet security poses a risk to our e-commerce sales.

At present we generate a portion of our sales through e-commerce sales on our websites. We manage our websites and
e-commerce platform internally and as a result any compromise of our security or misappropriation of proprietary
information could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. We rely
on encryption and authentication technology licensed from third parties to provide the security and authentication
necessary to effect secure Internet transmission of confidential information, such as credit and other proprietary
information.
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Advances in computer capabilities, new discoveries in the field of cryptography or other events or developments may
result in a compromise or breach of the technology used by us to protect client transaction data. Anyone who is able to
circumvent our security measures could misappropriate proprietary information or cause material interruptions in our
operations. We may be required to expend significant capital and other resources to protect against security breaches or
to minimize problems caused by security breaches. To the extent that our activities or the activities of others involve
the storage and transmission of proprietary information, security breaches could damage our reputation and expose us
to a risk of loss and/or litigation. Our security measures may not prevent security breaches. Our failure to prevent these
security breaches may result in consumer distrust and may adversely affect our business, results of operations and
financial condition.

Credit card payment processors and merchant account pose a risk.

We accept credit cards as a means of payment for the sale of our products. If we are unable to find suitable providers or
an alternative method of payment for our customers, our cash-flow will be constrained and our sales may be effected
which may have a material adverse effect on our performance, financial condition and results of operations.

Product exchanges, returns, warranty claims, defect and recalls may adversely affect our business.

Any and all products are subject to customer service claims, malfunctions and defects, which may subject us to
requests for product exchanges, returns, warranty claims and recalls. If we are unable to maintain a certain degree of
quality control of our products we will incur costs of replacing and or recalling our products and servicing our
customers. Any product returns, exchanges, and or recalls we may make will have a material adverse effect on our
business, our operations and our profitability and will likely result in the loss of customers and goodwill.

Moreover products that do not meet our quality control standards and or those products that do not comply with U.S.
safety and health standards or that may be defective may reduce the effectiveness, enjoyment and or cause harm to
property, person and or death to persons who use the product. Any such instance will likely result in claims against us
and potentially subject us to liability and legal claims which may cause injury to our reputation, goodwill and operating
results.



Warranties

Warranty reserves include management’s best estimate of the projected costs to repair or to replace any items under
warranty, based on actual warranty experience as it becomes available and other known factors that may impact our
evaluation of historical data. We review our reserves at least quarterly to ensure that our accruals are adequate in
meeting expected future warranty obligations, and we will adjust our estimates as needed. Initial warranty data can be
limited early in the launch of a product and accordingly, the adjustments that we record may be material. Because of
the nature of our products, customers are made aware that as soon as a mCig is packed with marijuana, they
automatically void their warranty, primarily because it is against federal laws to mail a product that has been in
proximity of marijuana. As a result, the products that can be returned as a warranty replacement is extremely limited.
As a result, due to the Company’s warranty policy, the Company did not have any significant warranty expenses to
report as of Fiscal Year End April 30, 2016. Based on these actual expenses, the warranty reserve, as estimated by
management as of April 30, 2015 was at $0. Any adjustments to warranty reserves are to be recorded in cost of sales.
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It is likely that as we start selling higher priced products, that are not affected by federal shipping laws and/or are not
single use items (such as eLiquid Juice Vaporizer), we will acquire additional information on the projected costs to
service work under warranty and may need to make additional adjustments. Further, a small change in our warranty
estimates may result in a material charge to our reported financial results.

Product exchanges and product returns

The total for product exchanges and product returns as of April 30, 2016 were immaterial. As a result, all product
exchanges and product returns were recorded as a reduction to revenues.

Risks Associated with Our Common Stock

The market price of our common stock has been and may continue to be volatile or may decline regardless of the
Company’s operating performance, and you may not be able to resell your shares at or above the initial public
offering price and the price of our common stock may fluctuate significantly.

Since the commencement of trading of our common stock on the OTC Markets, the market price of our common
stock has been volatile, and fluctuates widely in price in response to various factors, which are beyond our control.
Since the commencement of trading of our common stock on the OTC Markets, the price of our common stock went
from approximately $0.08 / per share to almost $0.90 / per share in less than 3 months. However, after experiencing
growth, the stock declined by almost 50% within the next 3 months (where the price of the stock as of fiscal year
ending April 30, 2016 we are trading approximately at $0.03 / per share). We attribute this large fluctuation especially
on the industry that we operate in. Management believes that our price is also affected by the industry in which we
operate such that, when the industry is doing well, we believe our stock price will benefit but when the industry is
experience a down turn, we will not be immune from the decline.

Furthermore, we must note that the price of our common stock is not necessarily indicative of our operating
performance or long-term business prospects. In addition, the securities markets have from time to time experienced
significant price and volume fluctuations that are unrelated to the operating performance of particular companies.
These market fluctuations may also materially and adversely affect the market price of our common stock. Factors
such as the following could cause the market price of our common stock to fluctuate substantially:

Volatility in our common stock price may subject us to securities litigation.

The market for our common stock is characterized by significant price volatility when compared to seasoned issuers,
and we expect that our share price will continue to be more volatile than a seasoned issuer for the indefinite future. In
the past, plaintiffs have often initiated securities class action litigation against a company following periods of
volatility in the market price of its securities. We may, in the future, be the target of similar litigation. Securities
litigation could result in substantial costs and liabilities to us and could divert our management’s attention and
resources from managing our operations and business.
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The Company may issue more shares in connection with future mergers or acquisitions, which could result in
substantial dilution to existing shareholders.

Our Certificate of Incorporation authorizes the issuance of 560,000,000 shares of common stock. Any future merger or
acquisition effected by us may result in the issuance of additional securities without stockholder approval and may
result in substantial dilution in the percentage of our common stock held by our then-current stockholders. Moreover,
the common stock issued in any such merger or acquisition transaction may be valued on an arbitrary or non-arm’s-
length basis by our management, resulting in an additional reduction in the percentage of common stock held by our
then existing stockholders. Our Board of Directors has the power to issue any or all of such authorized but unissued
shares without stockholder approval. To the extent that additional shares of common stock or preferred stock are issued
in connection with a future business combination or otherwise, dilution to the interests of our stockholders will occur,

and the rights of the holders of common stock could be materially and adversely affected.

The Company’s Series A Preferred Stock is held by our CEO and carries super majority voting rights and became
convertible in April 2015.



On September 23, 2013, the Company entered into a Share Cancellation / Exchange / Return to Treasury Agreement
with Paul Rsenberg, the chief executive officer of mCig, Inc., for the cancellation of 230,000,000 shares of our
common stock held by Mr. Rosenberg in exchange for 23,000,000 shares of our company’s Series A Preferred Stock.
As of April 30, 2016 Mr. Rosenberg owned 20,900,000 Series A Preferred. The Series A Preferred shares of mCig,
Inc. carry ten (10) votes per each share of Preferred stock while mCig, Inc’s common shares carry one (1) vote per each
share outstanding. Consequently, the result of all matters to be voted upon by the shareholders may be controlled by
Mr. Rosenberg, who can base his vote upon his best judgment and his fiduciary duty to the shareholders. Mr.
Rosenberg has a lock up contractual agreement to not convert the Series A Preferred shares until April 30, 2015. After
this time (and as of the date of the filing of this report), he may convert the shares to common stock, substantially
diluting the common shareholders. As the sole director and the holder of the majority of capital voting shares there is a
risk that Mr. Rosenberg can reverse his decision or convert his Series A Convertible Shares after April 30, 2015,
significantly diluting the common stock. There are no plans or intentions for Mr. Rosenberg to convert his Series A
Preferred Stock at present or after April 30, 2016.

We do not anticipate paying cash dividends for the foreseeable future, and therefore investors should not buy our
stock if they wish to receive cash dividends.

We have not paid dividends in the past and do not expect to pay dividends for the foreseeable future, and any return on
investment may be limited to potential future appreciation on the value of our common stock.

We currently intend to retain any future earnings to support the development and expansion of our business and do not
anticipate paying cash dividends in the foreseeable future. Our payment of any future dividends will be at the
discretion of our board of directors after taking into account various factors, including without limitation, our financial
condition, operating results, cash needs, growth plans, and the terms of any credit agreements that we may be party to
at the time. To the extent we do not pay dividends, our stock may be less valuable because a return on investment will
only occur if and to the extent our stock price increases, which may never occur. In addition, investors must rely on
sales of their common stock after price appreciation as the only way to realize their investment, and if the price of our
stock does not appreciate, then there will be no return on investment. Investors seeking cash dividends should not
purchase our common stock.
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Our officers, directors, and principal stockholders (greater than 5% stockholders) collectively control approximately
50% of our outstanding common stock. As a result, these stockholders will be able to affect the outcome of, or exert
significant influence over, all matters requiring stockholder approval, including the election and removal of directors
and any change in control. In particular, this concentration of ownership of our common stock could have the effect or
delaying or preventing a change in control of us or otherwise discouraging or preventing a potential acquirer from
attempting to obtain control of us. This, in turn, could have a negative effect on the market price of our common
stock. It could also prevent our stockholders from realizing a premium over the market prices for their shares of
common stock. Moreover, the interests of this concentration of ownership may not always coincide with our interests
or the interests of other stockholders, and accordingly, they could cause us to enter into transactions or agreements that
we would not otherwise consider.

Our common stock may be considered a “penny stock,” and thereby be subject to additional sale and trading
regulations that may make it more difficult to sell.

Our common stock is considered to be a “penny stock.” It does not qualify for one of the exemptions from the
definition of “penny stock” under Section 3a51-1 of the Exchange Act. Our common stock is a “penny stock” because
it meets one or more of the following conditions (i) the stock trades at a price less than $5.00 per share; (ii) it is not
traded on a “recognized” national exchange or (iii) it is not quoted on the NASDAQ Global Market, or has a price less
than $5.00 per share. The principal result or effect of being designated a “penny stock™ is that securities broker-dealers
participating in sales of our common stock are subject to the “penny stock” regulations set forth in Rules 15-2 through
15g-9 promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act. For example, Rule 15g-2 requires broker-dealers dealing in
penny stocks to provide potential investors with a document disclosing the risks of penny stocks and to obtain a
manually signed and dated written receipt of the document at least two business days before effecting any transaction
in a penny stock for the investor's account. Moreover, Rule 15g-9 requires broker-dealers in penny stocks to approve
the account of any investor for transactions in such stocks before selling any penny stock to that investor. This
procedure requires the broker-dealer to (i) obtain from the investor information concerning his or her financial
situation, investment experience and investment objectives; (ii) reasonably determine, based on that information, that
transactions in penny stocks are suitable for the investor and that the investor has sufficient knowledge and experience
as to be reasonably capable of evaluating the risks of penny stock transactions; (iii) provide the investor with a written
statement setting forth the basis on which the broker-dealer made the determination in (ii) above; and (iv) receive a
signed and dated copy of such statement from the investor, confirming that it accurately reflects the investor's financial
situation, investment experience and investment objectives. Compliance with these requirements may make it more
difficult and time consuming for holders of our common stock to resell their shares to third parties or to otherwise
dispose of them in the market or otherwise.

FINRA sales practice requirements may limit a shareholder’s ability to buy and sell our common shares.

In addition to the “penny stock” rules described above, FINRA has adopted rules that require that in recommending an
investment to a customer, a broker-dealer must have reasonable grounds for believing that the investment is suitable for
that customer. Prior to recommending speculative low priced securities to their non-institutional customers, broker-
dealers must make reasonable efforts to obtain information about the customer’s financial status, tax status, investment



objectives and other information. Under interpretations of these rules, FINRA believes that there is a high probability
that speculative low priced securities will not be suitable for at least some customers. FINRA requirements make it
more difficult for broker-dealers to recommend that their customers buy our common shares, which may limit your

ability to buy and sell our stock and have an adverse effect on the market for our shares.
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Rule 144 sales in the future may have a depressive effect on the company's stock price as an increase in supply of
shares for sale, with no corresponding increase in demand will cause prices to fall.

All of the outstanding shares of common stock held by the present officers, directors, and affiliate stockholders are
"restricted securities" within the meaning of Rule 144 under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. As restricted
shares, these shares may be resold only pursuant to an effective registration statement or under the requirements of
Rule 144 or other applicable exemptions from registration under the Securities Act of 1933 and as required under
applicable state securities laws. Rule 144 provides in essence that a person who is an affiliate or officer or director who
has held restricted securities for six months may, under certain conditions, sell every three months, in brokerage
transactions, a number of shares that does not exceed the greater of 1.0% of a Company's issued and outstanding
common stock. There is no limit on the amount of restricted securities that may be sold by a non-affiliate after the
owner has held the restricted securities for a period of six months if the Company is a current reporting company under
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. A sale under Rule 144 or under any other exemption from the Securities Act of
1933, if available, or pursuant to subsequent registration of shares of common stock of present stockholders, may
have a depressive effect upon the price of the common stock in any market that may develop.

Future issuances of shares for various considerations including working capital and operating expenses will
increase the number of shares outstanding which will dilute existing investors and may have a depressive effect on
the company's stock price.

There may be substantial dilution to our shareholders purchasing in future offerings as a result of future decisions of
the Board to issue shares without shareholder approval for cash, services, payment of debt or acquisitions.

There may in all likelihood be little demand for shares of our common stock and as a result investors may be unable
to sell at or near ask prices or at all if they need to liquidate their investment.

There may be little demand for shares of our common stock on the OTC Bulletin Board, or OTC Markets.com,
meaning that the number of persons interested in purchasing our common shares at or near ask prices at any given time
may be relatively small or non-existent. This situation is attributable to a number of factors, including the fact that it is
asmall company which is relatively unknown to stock analysts, stock brokers, institutional investors and others in
the investment community that generate or influence sales volume, and that even if the Company came to the
attention of such persons, they tend to be risk-averse and would be reluctant to follow an unproven, early stage
company such as ours or purchase or recommend the purchase of any of our Securities until such time as it became
more seasoned and viable. As a consequence, there may be periods of several days or more when trading activity in
the Company's securities is minimal or non-existent, as compared to a seasoned issuer which has a large and steady
volume of trading activity that will generally support continuous sales without an adverse effect on the securities price.
We cannot give investors any assurance that a broader or more active public trading market for the Company's common
securities will develop or be sustained, or that any trading levels will be sustained. Due to these conditions, we can
give investors no assurance that they will be able to sell their shares at or near ask prices or at all if they need money or
otherwise desire to liquidate their securities of the Company.
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Public disclosure requirements and compliance with changing regulation of corporate governance pose challenges
for our management team and result in additional expenses and costs which may reduce the focus of management
and the profitability of our company.

Changing laws, regulations and standards relating to corporate governance and public disclosure, including the Dodd-
Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder, the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act and SEC regulations, have created uncertainty for public companies and significantly increased
the costs and risks associated with accessing the U.S. public markets. Our management team will need to devote
significant time and financial resources to comply with both existing and evolving standards for public companies,
which will lead to increased general and administrative expenses and a diversion of management time and attention
from revenue generating activities to compliance activities.

SHOULD ONE OR MORE OF THE FOREGOING RISKS OR UNCERTAINTIES MATERIALIZE, OR SHOULD
THE UNDERLYING ASSUMPTIONS PROVE INCORRECT, ACTUAL RESULTS MAY DIFFER
SIGNIFICANTLY FROM THOSE ANTICIPATED, BELIEVED, ESTIMATED, EXPECTED, INTENDED OR
PLANNED

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS.

Not applicable.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES.

We currently lease our office facilities at 433 North Camden Drive, 6 th Floor, Beverly Hills, California 90210. We



lease the office at a cost of $99 per month and our lease is month to month. Rent expenses totaled approximately
$1,190 for the fiscal year 2016.

We believe the space available at our headquarters will be sufficient to meet the needs of our operations for the
foreseeable future.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS.

From time to time, we may become involved in various lawsuits and legal proceedings that arise in the ordinary course
of business. However, litigation is subject to inherent uncertainties and an adverse result in these or other matters may
arise from time to time that may harm our business. Except as set forth below we are currently not aware of any such
legal proceedings or claims that we believe will have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition or
operating results.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES.
Not applicable.
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PART II

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS,
AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES.

(a) Market Information

Our common stock is quoted on the OTC Markets under the symbol MCIG. The following table sets forth for the periods
indicated the range of high and low bid quotations per share as reported by the OTCQB . The quotations reflect inter-dealer prices,
without retail mark-up, markdown or commission, and may not represent actual transactions.

Period High Low

May 1, 2014 through July 31, 2014 $ 0.555 $ 0.379
August 1, 2014 through October 31, 2014 $ 0.471 $ 0.249
November 1, 2014 through January 31, 2015 $ 0.266 $ 0.136
February 1, 2015 through April 30, 2015 $ 0.140 $ 0.060
May 1, 2015 through July 31, 2015 $ 0.105 $ 0.036
August 1, 2015 through October 31, 2015 $ 0.045 $ 0.018
November 1, 2015 through January 31, 2016 $ 0.052 $ 0.018
February 1, 2016 through April 30, 2016 $ 0.057 $ 0.028

The closing price of our common stock as reported on the OTCQB Marketplace was $0.03 on August 15, 2016.
(b) Holders

As of August 15, 2016, there were approximately 80 owners of record for our common stock. This does not include an
indeterminate number of stockholders whose shares may be held by brokers in street name. The holders of common
stock are entitled to one vote for each share held of record on all matters submitted to a vote of stockholders. Holders of
the common stock have no preemptive rights and no right to convert their common stock into any other securities. There
are no redemption or sinking fund provisions applicable to the common stock.

Transfer Agent and Registrar

Our independent stock transfer agent is Island Stock Transfer, 15500 Roosevelt Blvd., Suite 301Clearwater, FL 33760
Telephone: (727) 289-0010.

(c) Dividends

We have never paid or declared any cash dividends on our common stock. We currently intend to retain all available
funds and any future earnings to fund the expansion of our business, and we do not anticipate paying any cash dividends
for the foreseeable future following this offering. Any future determination to pay dividends will be at the discretion of
our board of directors and will depend on our financial condition, results of operations, capital requirements and other
factors that our board of directors deems relevant. In addition, the terms of any future debt or credit facility may preclude
us from paying dividends.
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(d) Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Compensation Plans

None

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities



In the year ended April 30, 2016, we issued an aggregate of 25,552,599 shares of common stock valued at
approximately $927,493 for professional services. In addition, the Company issued 2,500,000 common shares for
investments in the amount of $67,500 as final payment for Vapolution, Inc.

The issuance of such shares of our common stock was effected in reliance on the exemptions for sales of securities not
involving a public offering, as set forth in Rule 506 promulgated under the Securities Act of 1933, as mended (the
“Securities Act”) and in Section 4(2) of the Securities Act, based on the following: the investors confirmed to us that
they were “accredited investors,” as defined in Rule 501 of Regulation D promulgated under the Securities Act and had
such background, education and experience in financial and business matters as to be able to evaluate the merits and
risks of an investment in the securities; (b) there was no public offering or general solicitation with respect to the
offering; (c) the investors were provided with certain disclosure materials and all other information requested with
respect to our company; (d) the investors acknowledged that all securities being purchased were “restricted securities”
for purposes of the Securities Act, and agreed to transfer such securities only in a transaction registered under the
Securities Act or exempt from registration under the Securities Act; and (e) a legend was placed on the certificates
representing each such security stating that it was restricted and could only be transferred if subsequent registered
under the Securities Act or transferred in a transaction exempt from registration under the Securities Act.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities
None.
ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA.

We are a smaller reporting company and therefore, we are not required to provide information required by this Item of
Form 10-K.

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS
OF OPERATIONS.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Results of Financial Condition and Results of Operations (“MD&A”)
should be read in conjunction with the financial statements included herein. Further, this MD&A should be read in
conjunction with the Company’s Financial Statements and Notes to Financial Statements included in this Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the years ended April 30, 2016 and 2015, as well as the “Business” and “Risk Factors”
sections within this Annual Report on Form 10-K. The Company's financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with United States generally accepted accounting principles.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis may contain various “forward looking statements” within the meaning of
Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, regarding future events or the future financial
performance of the Company that involve risks and uncertainties. Certain statements included in this Form 10-K,
including, without limitation, statements related to anticipated cash flow sources and uses, and words including but not
limited to “anticipates”, “believes”, “plans”, “expects”, “future” and similar statements or expressions, identify forward
looking statements. Any forward-looking statements herein are subject to certain risks and uncertainties in the
Company’s business and any changes in current accounting rules, all of which may be beyond the control of the
Company. The Company has adopted the most conservative recognition of revenue based on the most astringent
guidelines of the SEC. Management will elect additional changes to revenue recognition to comply with the most
conservative SEC recognition on a forward going accrual basis as the model is replicated with other similar markets
(i.e. SBDC). The Company’s actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking
statements as a result of certain factors, including those set forth therein. Undue reliance should not be placed on these
forward-looking statements, which speak only as of the date hereof. We undertake no obligation to update these
forward-looking statements.

Any future equity financing will cause existing shareholders to experience dilution of their interest in our Company. In
the event we are not successful in raising additional financing, we anticipate that we will not be able to proceed with
our business plan. In such a case, we may decide to discontinue our current business plan and seek other business
opportunities in the resource sector. Any business opportunity would require our management to perform diligence on
possible acquisitions.

During this period, we will need to maintain our periodic filings with the appropriate regulatory authorities and will
incur legal and accounting costs. In the event no other such opportunities are available and we cannot raise additional
capital to sustain operations, we may be forced to discontinue business. We do not have any specific alternative
business opportunities in mind and have not planned for any such contingency.

The Company's MD&A is comprised of significant accounting estimates made in the normal course of its operations,
overview of the Company's business conditions, results of operations, liquidity and capital resources and contractual
obligations. The Company’s only off balance sheet arrangement is its ownership of VitaCig, Inc. As of April 30, 2016
the Company owned 230,000,000 shares of VitaCig, Inc. Currently, the Company owns 57,500,000 common shares of
VitaCig, Inc.

The discussion and analysis of the Company’s financial condition and results of operations is based upon its financial
statements, which have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States (or "GAAP"). The preparation of those financial statements requires us to make estimates and
judgments that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities at the date of its financial statements. Actual results



may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions.
Overview

mCig, Inc. (mCig) was incorporated in the State of Nevada on December 30, 2010 originally under the name Lifetech
Industries, Inc. Effective August 2, 2013, the name was changed from "Lifetech Industries, Inc." to "mCig, Inc."
reflecting the new business model. Since October 2013, we have positioned ourselves as a technology company
focused on two long-term secular trends:

(1) The decriminalization and legalization of marijuana for medicinal or recreational purposes - legalizing
medicinal and recreational marijuana usage is steadily on the rise not only domestically but also internationally.
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Marijuana has been decriminalized in over twenty countries, in over five continents. Twenty three states and the
District of Columbia currently have laws legalizing marijuana in some form
http://www.governing.com/govdata/safetyjustice/statemarijuanalawsmapmedicalrecreational .html). Management
believes that by 2017 it is very likely that many more states, including Alaska, California, Arizona, Maine, and Oregon,
will legalize the use and sale of recreational marijuana the way Washington and Colorado have; and

(2) The adoption of electronic vaporizing cigarettes (commonly known as “eCigs”), as smokers move away
from traditional cigarettes onto e-cigarettes. Smoking tobacco causes numerous health problems, including disease and
death. Smoking becomes very addicting quickly, and the most difficult part is cessation. We contend that e-cigarettes
offer a safer and healthier alternative to traditional tobacco cigarettes. E-cigarettes operate by heating a mixture of
liquid nicotine and flavoring, which is then inhaled and exhaled in the same manner as a cigarette. However, e-
cigarettes do not contain any tobacco or other dangerous additives. Scientific research has shown that the leading cause
of cancer in smokers comes from the carcinogens in tobacco. As the movement towards personal health grows,
smokers are trying to quit their harmful habits. Management believes that e-cigarettes provide a safe transition from
harmful traditional cigarettes.

On January 23, 2014, we signed a Stock Purchase Agreement with Vapolution, Inc. which manufactures and retails
home-use vaporizers. In accordance with this agreement mCig, Inc. acquired 100% of Vapolution, Inc.; as part of this
transaction mCig, Inc. agreed to issue 5,000,000 shares to shareholders of Vapolution, Inc. The shareholders of
Vapolution, Inc. retain the right to rescind the transaction, which expires on January 23, 2015 but was extended to May
23,2015 based on an Amended Stock Purchase Agreement executed on May 23, 2014. Subsequently, on August 25,
2015, the final payment to the shareholders of Vapolution was extended to September 30, 2015 and the right to rescind
the transaction was extended to March 26, 2016. Subsequently an extension was granted extending the right to rescind
until June 30, 2017.

On January 23, 2014, Paul Rosenberg, CEO of mCig, Inc. cancelled an equal amount (2,500,000 shares) of common
shares owned by him resulting in a net non-dilutive transaction to existing mCig, Inc. shareholders. The remaining
2,500,000 of common shares owned by Paul Rosenberg will be cancelled to offset the 2,500,000 new shares issued
from the treasury to complete the purchase of Vapolution, Inc.

In December, 2015 the Company expanded its services to include construction. On March 7, 2016 the Company
incorporated Scalable Solutions, LLC. The Company owns 80% of Scalable Solutions, Inc.

Results of Operations
Critical Accounting Policies

Our discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations are based upon our financial statements,
which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. The
preparation of these financial statements requires us to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses. On an ongoing basis, we evaluate our estimates, including those related to
uncollectible receivables, inventory valuation, deferred compensation and contingencies.

We base our estimates on historical performance and on various other assumptions that we believe to be reasonable
under the circumstances. These estimates allow us to make judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources.
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We believe the following accounting policies are our critical accounting policies because they are important to the
portrayal of our financial condition and results of operations and they require critical management judgments and
estimates about matters that may be uncertain. If actual results or events differ materially from those contemplated by us
in making these estimates, our reported financial condition and results of operations for future periods could be materially
affected.

Revenue Recognition Policy
Revenues are presented net of discounts. In general, we recognize revenue when (i) persuasive evidence of an

arrangement exists, (ii) delivery has occurred or services have been rendered to the customer, (iii) the fee is fixed or
determinable, and (iv) collectability is reasonably assured. Where arrangements have multiple elements, revenue is



allocated to the elements based on the relative selling price method and revenue is recognized based on our policy for
each respective element. We generate revenue primarily from sales of the electronic cigarettes, components for electronic
cigarettes and related accessories. We recognize revenue when the product is shipped.

The Company measures construction revenue as a Cost-type contract in accordance with ASC 605, which
discusses accounting for performance of construction contracts. The Company recognizes revenue on a cost-plus
basis, provisions for reimbursable costs (which are generally spelled out in the contract), overhead recovery
percentages, and fees. A fee may be a fixed amount or a percentage of reimbursable costs or an amount based on
performance criteria. Generally, percentage fees may be accrued as the related costs are incurred, since they are a
percentage of costs incurred, and profits therefore are recognized as costs are incurred.

Amounts billed or collected in excess of revenue recognized are recorded as deferred revenue.

Our operating results for the years ended April 30, 2016 and 2015 are summarized as follows:

For the year ended April 30,

2016 2015
Revenue $ 1,723,421 $ 509,957
Cost of Goods Sold 1,432,648 401,906
Gross Profit 290,773 108,051
Expenses 1,699,728 4,374,385
Net Loss from operations $ (1,408,955) $ (4,266,334)

Revenue

Our revenue from continuing operations for the year ended April 30, 2016 was $1,723,421 compared to $509,957, an
increase of $1,213,464 or approximately 238%, from the year ended April 30, 2015. Revenues consist primarily of
results from the sales of the electronic vaporisers, the components for vaporisers and related accessories and construction.

Cost of Goods Sold

Our cost of goods sold for the year ended April 30, 2016 was $1,432,648 compared to $401,906 for the year ended April
30, 2015. The increase is primarily due increase in sales and the purchase of better quality products.

Gross Profit

Our gross profit for the year ended April 30, 2016 was $290,773 compared to $108,051 for the year ended April 30,
2015. The gross profit of $290,773 for the year ended April 30, 2016 represents approximately 17% as a percentage of
total revenue. The gross profit of $108,051 for the year ended April 30, 2015 represents approximately 21% as a
percentage of total revenue. This decrease in the gross profit is primarily attributed to the higher costs of the better quality
products, the increase in wholesale distribution, and the implementation of our construction services.
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Operating Expenses

Our operating expenses decreased by $2,674,657 to $1,699,728 for the year ended April 30, 2016, from $4,374,385 for
the year ended April 30, 2015.

The decrease was primarily due to the decrease in stock based compensation of $2,683,909, a decrease in research and
development of $31,484, a decrease in professional fees of $13,799, a decrease in selling, general and administrative
expenses of $102,079, and increase in consulting fees of $155,408.

Our total operating expenses for the year ended April 30, 2016 of $1,699,728 consisted of $1,339,058 of stock based
compensation, $163,249 of selling, general and administrative expenses, $28,445 in professional fees, $155,408 in
consulting fees, $5,516 in research and development, and $8,052 of amortization and depreciation expenses. Our
general and administrative expenses consist of bank charges, telephone expenses, meals and entertainments, computer
and internet expenses, postage and delivery, office supplies and other expenses.

Net loss

Our net loss decreased by $3,478,033 to $1,391,415 for the year ended April 30, 2016 from $4,869,448 for the year
ending April 30, 2015. The decrease in net loss compared to the prior year is a result of the increase in gross profit of
$182,722, the decrease in operating expenses of $2,674,657 and the decrease in impairments of 638,658.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Introduction

During the year ended April 30, 2016, while our operating cash flow $46,322 in cash, our cash on hand as of April 30,
2016 was $80,542.

Cash Requirements



We had cash available of $80,542 as of April 30, 2016. Based on our revenues, cash on hand and current monthly burn
rate, around $10,277 in cash plus stock based compensation, we will continue to require the use of equity based
compensation and the raising of capital, both in equity and debt, to continue operations. Without stock based
compensation and/or the raising of capital, the company projects it has enough capital to sustain operations for a period
of approximately six months.

Sources and Uses of Cash
Operations
We had cash used in continuing operating activities of $46,322 for the year ended April 30, 2016, as compared to net
cash used in continuing operation of $212,005 for the year ended April 30, 2015. Cash used in discontinued operating
activities was $0 for the year ended April 30, 2016, compared to $35,545 for the year ended April 30, 2015.
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Investments

We had cash provided by investing activities of $0 for the year ended April 30, 2016, as compared to $4,872 for the
year ended April 30, 2015.

In the year ended April 30, 2016 the company issued stock in a non-cash investing activity of $67,500 in the
acquisition of Vapolution, Inc. In the year ended April 30, 2015 the net cash used by investing activities related to the
acquisition of property of $1,792 and website development costs of $3,080.

Financing

We had net cash provided by continuing financing activities of $24,173 for the year ended April 30, 2016, as compared
to $264 for the year ended April 30, 2015. Our financing activities consisted of borrowings from a related party.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

As of April 30, 2016 the Company owned 230,000,000 of VitaCig, Inc., with a value of $2,300,000. Subsequently to
the end of the fiscal year, the Company has reduced its ownership in VitaCig, Inc., by 172,500,000 common shares to
57,500,000 as part of its acquisition of the VitaCig business.

Going Concern

Our financial statements are prepared using generally accepted accounting principles, which contemplate the
realization of assets and liquidation of liabilities in the normal course of business. Because the business is relatively
new and has a short history and relatively few sales, no certainty of continuation can be stated. The accompanying
consolidated financial statements for the years ended April 30, 2016 and 2015 have been prepared assuming that we
will continue as a going concern, which contemplates the realization of assets and satisfaction of liabilities in the
normal course of business.

The Company has suffered losses from operations and has a working capital deficit, which raises substantial doubt
about its ability to continue as a going concern

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK.

We are a smaller reporting company and therefore, we are not required to provide information required by this Item of
Form 10-K.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
mCig, Inc.
Beverly Hills, California

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of mCig, Inc. and its subsidiaries (collectively, the
“Company”) as of April 30, 2016, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity and cash
flows for the year then ended. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to
perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. Our audit included consideration of internal control
over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of mCig, Inc. and its subsidiaries as of April 30, 2016 and the results of their operations and their
cash flows for the year then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a going
concern. As discussed in Note 3 to the financial statements, the Company suffered recurring losses from operations.
These conditions raise significant doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Management’s
plans in this regard are described in Note 3. The financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result
from the outcome of this uncertainty.

/s/ MaloneBailey, LLP
Houston, Texas
August 31, 2016

F-1
REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

SADLER GIBB

To the Board of Directors
mCig, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying balance sheet of mCig, Inc. (“the Company”) as of April 30, 2015 and the related
statements of operations , stockholders’ equity and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial statements are
the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement. The Company is not required to have, nor were we
engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. Our audit included consideration of internal
control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
mCig, Inc. as of April 30, 2015, and the results of their operations and cash flows for the year then ended, in
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

/s/ Sadler, Gibb & Associates, LLC



Salt Lake City, UT
August 28, 2015
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mCig, Inc.
and SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Balance Sheets
April 30,2016 April 30,2015
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 80,542 $ 102,691
Accounts Receivable 6,120 22,141
Other Receivable - 15,000
Inventory 7,268 40,547
Prepaid Expenses - 411,566
Total Current Assets 93,930 591,945
Property, Plant, and Equipment, Net 1,334 1,770
Due From Related Party 186,276 100,264
Cost-Basis Investment 67,500 -
Intangible Assets 488 8,104
Total Assets $ 349,528 $ 702,083
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses $ 45,385 $ 14,653
Due to Shareholder 24,173 -
Deferred Revenue 6,502 -
Total Current Liabilities 76,060 14,653
Total Liabilities 76,060 14,653
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Preferred stock, $0.0001 par value; 50,000,000 shares authorized,; 2,300 2,300
23,000,000 shares outstanding.
Common stock, $0.0001 par value; 560,000,000 shares authorized; 30,631 27,826
306,314,216 and 278,261,617 issued and outstanding as of
April 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively.
Additional Paid in Capital 6,916,635 5,924,447
Accumulated Deficit (6,658,558) (5,267,143)
Total Stockholders' Equity 291,008 687,430
Non-Controlling Interest (17,540) -
Total Equity 273,468 687,430
Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity $ 349,528 $ 702,083

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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mCig, Inc.
and SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Operations

Fiscal Year Ended April 30,
2016 2015

Sales $ 1,723,421 $ 509,957
Cost of Sales 1,432,648 401,906




Gross Profit 290,773 108,051

Selling, general, and administrative 163,249 265,328
Professional Fees 28,445 42,244
Research and Development 5,516 37,000
Stock based compensation 1,339,058 4,022,967
Consultant Fees 155,408 -
Amortization and Depreciation 8,052 6,846
Total Operating Expenses 1,699,728 4,374,385
Loss From Operations (1,408,955) (4,266,334)
Impairment on investment in VitaCig - (13,658)
Impairment on investment in Vapolution B (625,000)
Net Loss from Continuing Operations (1,408,955) (4,904,992)
Net Income from Discontinuing Operations - 35,544
Net Loss Before Non-Controlling Interest (1,408,955) (4,869,448)
Loss Attributable to Non-Controlling Interest 17,540 -
Net Loss Attributable to Controlling Interest $ (1,391,415) $ (4,869,448)

Basic and Diluted (Loss) Per Share:

Income(Loss) per share from Continuing Operations $ (0.00) $ (0.02)
Income(Loss) per share from Dis ¢ ontinued Operations $ - $ 0.00
Income(Loss) Per Share $ (0.00) $ (0.02)
Weighted Average Shares Outstanding - Basic and Diluted 293,680,673 271,793,396

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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mCig, Inc.

and SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity

Additional Total
Preferred Stock Common Stock Paid-in Non-controlling Accumulated Stockholders'
Shares Amount Shares Amount Capital Interest Deficit Equity (Deficit)
Balance — April 30, 2014 23,000,000 $ 2,300 270,135,000 $ 27014 $ 1,394,137 $ - $  (381,653) $ 1,041,798
Common stock issued for cash - - - - $ 100,000 - - 100,000
Common stock issued for services - - 8,126,617 $ 812 $ 4,430,310 - - 4,431,122
Dividend related to VitaCig spin-off - - - - - - $  (16,042) (16,042)
Net loss - - - - - - (4,869,448) (4,869,448)
Balance — April 30, 2015 23,000,000 $ 2,300 278,261,617 $ 27,826 $ 5924447 $ - $ (5,267,143) $ 687,430
Common stock issued for services 25,552,599 $ 2,555 $ 924,938 $ 927,493
Common stock for investing acquisition 2,500,000 $ 250 $ 67,250 $ 67,500
Net loss $  (17,540) $ (1,391,415) $  (1,408,955)
Balance — April 30, 2016 23,000,000 $ 2,300 306,314,216 $ 30,631 $ 6,916,635 $  (17,540) $  (6,658,558) $ 273,468

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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mCig, Inc.
and SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
For the Years Ended
April 30,
2016 2015

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Net (Loss) $ (1,408,955) $ (4,869,448)



Adjustments to Reconcile Net Loss to Net
Cash Provided By (Used In) Operating Activities:

Depreciation and Amortization 8,052 6,846
Bad Debt Expense 5,000 -
Common Stock Issued for Services 927,493 4,022,647
Loss on Impairment of Investments - 638,658

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Accounts Receivable 26,021 17,843
Receivable Related Party (86,012) -
Receivable Other - (15,000)
Inventories 33,279 21,649
Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets 411,566 3,162
Accounts Payable, Accrued Expenses and Taxes Payable 30,732 (38,362)
Deferred Revenue 6,502 -
Total Adjustment to Reconcile Net Loss to Net Cash (1,362,633) 4,657,443
Provided by (Used in) Continuing Operating Activities (46,322) (212,005)
Provided by (Used in) Discontinued Operating Activities - (35,545)
Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities (46,322) (247,550)

Cash Flows From Investing activities:
Adjustments to Reconcile Net Investing Activities to Net
Cash Provided By (Used In) Investing Activities:

Intangibles - (3,080)
Acquisition of Property, Plant and Equipment - (1,792)
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities - (4,872)

Cash Flows From Financing Activities:

Issuance of Common Stock for Cash - 100,000
Advances to Related Party - (105,264)
Borrowing on debt from Related Party 24,173 5,000
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Financing Activities 24,173 (264)
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash (22,149) (252,686)
Cash at Beginning of Year 102,691 355,377
Cash at End of Period $ 80,542 $ 102,691
Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flows Information:
Cash Paid for Interest $ - $ -
16,042
. e $ - $
Dividend related to VitaCig spin-Off
Cash Paid for Taxes $ - $ -
Non-Cash Investing and Financing Activities:
Shares Issued for Acquisition of Vapolution $ 67,500 $ -

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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mCig, Inc.
And SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT

Note 1. Organization and Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated audited financial statements of mCig, Inc., (the “Company”, “we”, “our”), have been
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and the rules of
the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”).

Description of Business

The Company was incorporated in the State of Nevada on December 30, 2010 originally under the name Lifetech
Industries, Inc. Effective August 2, 2013, the name was changed from "Lifetech Industries, Inc." to "mCig, Inc."
reflecting the new business model.

Since 2013, the Company has been involved in the marijuana and cannabinoid (CBD) industry. It currently markets,
sales, services, and distributes electronic cigarettes, vaporizers, and accessories internationally and in the United States.
The Company offers its products through its wholesale distribution and online storefronts, www.mcig.org,
www.vitacig.org, www.vitacbd.com, and www.justchill.com. In FY 2016 the Company expanded its products and
services to include construction management, where it builds marijuana grow and dispensary facilities for its clients.

All agreements related to the Lifetech business are terminated and closed as of April 30, 2014. It will not have any



impact on the current and future operations because all of these agreements are related to the previous business
directions of the Company.

Subsidiaries of the Company

The Company currently operates, in addition to the mCig product line under mCig, Inc., four subsidiaries; Scalable
Solutions, LLC, Vapolution, Inc., VitaCig, Inc., and mCig Internet Sales, Inc.

mCig, Inc.

We distribute and wholesale the mCig product lines — affordable loose-leaf eCigs . Designed in the USA — with unique
formulas, trade secrets, the mCig products provide a smoking experience by heating plant material, waxes, and oils
delivering a smoother inhalation experience.

VitaCig, Inc.

Subsequent to this reporting period, we distribute and wholesale the VitaCig product lines — affordable loose-leaf eCigs
. Designed in the USA — with unique formulas, trade secrets, VitaCig provides a smoking experience by heating plant
material, waxes, and oils delivering a smoother inhalation experience.

On February 24, 2014 the company entered into a Contribution Agreement with VitaCig, Inc. In accordance with this
agreement VitaCig, Inc. accepted the contribution by mCig, Inc. of specific assets consisting solely of pending
trademarks for the term “VitaCig” filed with the USPTO and $500 in cash as contribution in exchange for 500,135,000
shares of common capital stock representing 100% of the shares outstanding of VitaCig, Inc.

On November 28, 2014, the Company distributed to its shareholders 270,135,000 shares of Common Stock of VitaCig,
Inc. owned by the Company, a shareholder of VitaCig. The shareholders of the Company received one share of VitaCig
common stock for every one share of mCig common stock that they held as of the record date.

For the years ended April 30, 2016 and April 30, 2015 the Company accounted for its investment in VitaCig, Inc. under
the equity method.
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On June 22, 2016 the Company acquired the business operations from VitaCig, Inc., in exchange for 172,500,000
shares of stock of VitaCig, Inc., owned by the Company and $95,000, which was a drawdown of the outstanding
balance owed by VitaCig, Inc., to the Company. (see Subsequent Events).

Vapolution, Inc.

The Company maintains an investment in Vapolution, Inc. which manufactures and retails home-use vaporizers such as
the Vapolution 2.0.

On January 23, 2014, the Company signed a Stock Purchase Agreement with Vapolution, Inc. which manufactures and
retails home-use vaporizers. In accordance with this agreement mCig, Inc. acquired 100% of Vapolution, Inc.; as part
of this transaction mCig, Inc. has agreed to issue 5,000,000 shares to shareholders of Vapolution, Inc.

On October 30, 2015 the Company issued the final installment of 2,500,000 shares to the prior owners of Vapolution,
Inc.

Vapolution, Inc., has the right to rescind the transaction in exchange for returning 5,000,000 shares of mCig stock to
the treasury until June 30, 2017. As such, the Company continues to treat the investment into Vapolution, Inc., as an

investment, not a consolidation.

Scalable Solutions, LL.C

Scalable Solutions, LLC was organized by the Company on March 6, 2016, provides construction services in the
cultivation and grow industry. Scalable began operations in December 2015, but was not officially incorporated until
March 2016. The Company owns 80% of Scalable. Zoha Development, LLC maintains an option to acquire 40% of
Scalable for a nominal fee.

mCig Internet Sales, Inc.

On June 1, 2016, subsequent to this reporting period, the Company incorporated mCig Internet Sales, Inc., (“mCig
Internet”) in order to consolidate all online retail sales from various websites and to provide streamlining of
administrative and documentation services, consolidation of inventories, and support economy of scale.

Note 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and the majority owned subsidiary of
Scalable Solutions, LLC for the year ended April 30, 2016. Significant intercompany balances and transactions have
been eliminated. The Company had consolidated VitaCig, Inc. through November 28, 2014 at which time VitaCig was
spun-off and is no longer consolidated into the Company’s financial statements. See Note 11.



Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Management bases its estimates on historical experience and on various assumptions that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The most significant estimates include: revenue
recognition; sales returns and other allowances; allowance for doubtful accounts; valuation of inventory; valuation and
recoverability of long-lived assets; property and equipment; contingencies; and income taxes.

On a regular basis, management reviews its estimates utilizing currently available information, changes in facts and
circumstances, historical experience and reasonable assumptions. After such reviews, and if deemed appropriate, those
estimates are adjusted accordingly. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Revenue Recognition Policy

Our revenue recognition policy is in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, which requires the
recognition of sales when there is evidence of a sales agreement, the delivery of goods has occurred, the sales price is
fixed or determined and the collectability of revenue is reasonably assured.

The Company recognizes revenue for sales online either direct to consumer or through our Wholesaler, Distributor,
Reseller (WDR) program. For online sales, revenue is recognized by the Company at the time of order fulfillment.
Since mCig collects payment for each online order at the time of sale, the point of shipping revenue recognition method
ensures that the Company recognizes the revenue collected within 24-48 hours after the order is received and the funds
are collected.

The Company measures construction revenue as a Cost-type contract in accordance with ASC 605, which
discusses accounting for performance of construction contracts. The Company recognizes revenue on a cost-
plus basis, provisions for reimbursable costs (which are generally spelled out in the contract), overhead
recovery percentages, and fees. A fee may be a fixed amount or a percentage of reimbursable costs or an
amount based on performance criteria. Generally, percentage fees may be accrued as the related costs are
incurred, since they are a percentage of costs incurred, and profits therefore are recognized as costs are incurred.
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Stock-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for share-based awards issued to employees in accordance with FASB ASC 718. Accordingly,
employee share-based payment compensation is measured at the grant date, based on the fair value of the award, and is
recognized as an expense over the requisite service period. Additionally, share-based awards to non-employees are
expensed over the period in which the related services are rendered at their fair value. The Company applies ASC 505-50,
“Equity Based Payments to Non-Employees”, with respect to options and warrants issued to non-employees.

Deferred Revenue
Payments received by the Company in advance are recorded as deferred revenue until the merchandise has shipped to the
customer.

Cost of Goods Sold
The Company recognizes the direct cost of purchasing product for sale, including freight-in and packaging, as cost of
goods sold in the accompanying statement of operations.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company includes in cash and cash equivalents all short-term, highly liquid investments that mature within three
months of the date of purchase. Cash equivalents consist principally of investments in interest-bearing demand deposit
accounts and liquidity funds with financial institutions and are stated at cost, which approximates fair value. For cash
management purposes the company concentrates its cash holdings in an account at Bank of America. The Company had
no cash equivalents at April 30, 2016 or 2015.

Inventory
Inventory consists of finished product, mCig products valued at the lower of cost or market valuation under the first-in,
first-out method of costing.

April 30,2016 April 30, 2015
Finished goods $ 7,268 $ 45,547
Allowance for obsolescence - (5,000)
Total inventory $ 7,268 $ 40,547

As of April 30, 2016, the Company had no allowance for obsolescence. The level of inventory maintained by the
Company is insignificant and is typically ordered on an as needed basis, or just-in-time.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Expenditures for maintenance
and repairs are charged to expense as incurred. Additions, improvements and major replacements that extend the life of
the asset are capitalized.

Depreciation and amortization is recorded using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of depreciable
assets, which are generally three to five years.
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Accounts Receivable

The Company’s accounts receivable is primarily from its construction and grow division. As the retail division is
either paid through credit card processing and prepaid wholesale purchases, the Company does not project to have any
outstanding accounts receivable for its retail division. The Company recognizes receipt of payment at the time the
funds are deposited with the merchant services account of the Company. When the merchant services vendor
determines to maintain a reserve for potential refunds and chargebacks, the Company allocated the reserve for bad
debt. Once the vendor releases the funds, the bad debt reserve is appropriately reversed. At the end of the fiscal year
the Company had zero in reserves.

2016 2015
Accounts Receivable 6,120 22,141
Total $ 6,120 $ 22,141

Advertising Costs and Expense
The advertising costs are expensed as incurred. During the years ended April 30, 2016 and 2015, the advertising costs
were $53,981 and $14,865, respectively.

Foreign Currency Translation
The Company’s functional currency and its reporting currency is the United States Dollar.

Intangible Assets
The Company’s intangible assets consist of certain website development costs and are amortized over its useful life.

Research and Development
The costs of research and development are expensed as incurred. During the years ended April 30, 2015 and 2016, the
advertising costs were $37,000 and $5,516, respectively.

Financial Instruments



The carrying amounts reflected in the balance sheets for cash, accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued
expenses approximate the respective fair values due to the short maturities of these items. The Company does not hold
any investments that are available-for-sale.

As required by the Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures Topic of the FASB ASC, fair value is measured based on
a three-tier fair value hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair value as follows: (Level 1)
observable inputs such as quoted prices in active markets; (Level 2) inputs, other than the quoted prices in active
markets, that are observable either directly or indirectly; and (Level 3) unobservable inputs in which there is little or no
market data, which require the reporting entity to develop its own assumptions.

F-10
The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are described below:
Level 1 —Valuations based on quoted prices for identical assets and liabilities in active markets.

Level 2 —Valuations based on observable inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1, such as quoted
prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar assets and
liabilities in markets that are not active, or other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by
observable market data.

Level 3 —Valuations based on unobservable inputs reflecting our own assumptions, consistent with reasonably
available assumptions made by other market participants. These valuations require significant judgment.

The Company does not have any assets or liabilities that are required to be measured and recorded at fair value on a
recurring basis.

Income Taxes

Income taxes are accounted for under the assets and liability method. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized
for the estimated future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statements carrying amounts
of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases and operating loss and tax credit carry forwards.
Deferred tax assets are reduced by a valuation allowance when, in the opinion of management, it is more likely than not
that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
using enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or
settled.

Basic and Diluted Net Loss Per Share

The Company follows ASC Topic 260 to account for earnings per share. Basic earnings per share (“EPS”) calculations
are determined by dividing net loss by the weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding during the
year. Diluted earnings per share calculations are determined by dividing net income by the weighted average number
of common shares and dilutive common share equivalents outstanding. During periods when common stock
equivalents, if any, are anti-dilutive they are not considered in the computation.

There is no potential dilutive security as of April 30, 2016 or 2015.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments, which potentially subject us to concentrations of credit risk, consist principally of cash and trade
receivables. Concentrations of credit risk with respect to trade receivables are limited due to the clients that comprise
our customer base and their dispersion across different business and geographic areas. We estimate and maintain an
allowance for potentially uncollectible accounts and such estimates have historically been within management's
expectations.

We rely almost exclusively on one Chinese factory as our principle supplier, for the manufacturing of mCig’s.
Therefore, our ability to maintain operations is dependent on this third-party manufacturer.

Our cash balances are maintained in accounts held by major banks and financial institutions located in the United
States. The Company may occasionally maintain amounts on deposit with a financial institution that are in excess of
the federally insured limit of $250,000. The risk is managed by maintaining all deposits in high quality financial
institutions. The Company had no deposits in excess of federally insured limits at April 30, 2016 and 2015.
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Impairment of Long-lived Assets

The Company accounts for long-lived assets in accordance with the provisions of FASB Topic 360, “ Accounting for
the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets . This statement requires that long-lived assets and certain identifiable
intangibles be reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
of an asset may not be recoverable. An impairment loss would be recognized when the estimated future cash flows
from the use of the asset are less than the carrying amount of that asset.

Cost-Basis Investments

The Company’s non-marketable equity investment in Vapolution is recorded using the cost-basis method of
accounting, and is classified within other long-term assets on the accompanying balance sheet as permitted by FASB
ASC 325, “Cost Method Investments”. During 2016 there were no impairment losses. During 2015 the Company
recorded an impairment loss of $625,000 related to the investment in Vapolution.



Equity-Basis Investments

The Company accounts for its approximately 46% ownership of VitaCig, Inc., (Nevada) as an equity-basis investment.
As of April 30, 2016 and April 30, 2015, there is no net book value of the ownership of VitaCig, due to the pro-rata
value after the Spin-off and the impairment of the investment in VitaCig.

On June 22, 2016 the Company reduced its ownership of VitaCig, Inc., to 57,500,000 through a Separation and
Transfer Agreement where the Company acquired the business operations of VitaCig in exchange for selling back to
the treasury of VitaCig, Inc., (Nevada) 172,500,000. As a condition to the action, the Company’s shares are non-
dilutive for a period of 12 months.

Warranties

Warranty reserves include management’s best estimate of the projected costs to repair or to replace any items under
warranty, based on actual warranty experience as it becomes available and other known factors that may impact the
Company’s evaluation of historical data. Management reviews mCig’s reserves at least quarterly to ensure that its
accruals are adequate in meeting expected future warranty obligations, and the Company will adjust its estimates as
needed. Initial warranty data can be limited early in the launch of a product and accordingly, the adjustments that are
recorded may be material. As a result, the products that can be returned as a warranty replacement are extremely
limited. As a result, due to the Company’s warranty policy, the Company did not have any significant warranty
expenses to report for the year ended April 30, 2016. Based on these actual expenses, the warranty reserve, as
estimated by management as of April 30, 2016 and April 30, 2015 were at $0. Any adjustments to warranty reserves
are to be recorded in cost of sales.

It is likely that as we start selling higher priced products, that are not affected by federal shipping laws and/or are not
single use items (such as eLiquid Juice Vaporizer), we will acquire additional information on the projected costs to
service work under warranty and may need to make additional adjustments. Further, a small change in the Company’s
warranty estimates may result in a material charge to the Company’s reported financial results.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

The Company evaluated all recent accounting pronouncements issued and determined that the adoption of these
pronouncements would not have a material effect on the financial position, results of operations, or cash flows of the
Company.

In April 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-08, Reporting Discontinued Operations and Disclosures of Components of
an Entity , which updates the definition of discontinued operations. Going forward, only those disposals of components
of an entity that represent a strategic shift that has (or will have) a major effect on an entity's operations and financial
results will be reported as discontinued operations in the financial statements. Previously, a component of an entity that
is a reportable segment, an operating segment, a reporting unit, a subsidiary, or an asset group was eligible for
discontinued operations presentation. Additionally, the condition that the entity not have any significant continuing
involvement in the operations of the component after the disposal transaction has been removed. The effective date for
the revised standard is for applicable transactions that occur within annual periods beginning on or after December 15,
2014. We do not expect the guidance to have a material impact on the Company.

In June 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Accounting Standards Update No. 2014-10, which
eliminated certain financial reporting requirements of companies previously identified as “Development Stage Entities”
(Topic 915). The amendments in this ASU simplify accounting guidance by removing all incremental financial
reporting requirements for development stage entities. The amendments also reduce data maintenance and, for those
entities subject to audit, audit costs by eliminating the requirement for development stage entities to present inception-
to-date information in the statements of income, cash flows, and shareholder equity. Early application of each of the
amendments is permitted for any annual reporting period or interim period for which the entity’s financial statements
have not yet been issued (public business entities) or made available for issuance (other entities). Upon adoption,
entities will no longer present or disclose any information required by Topic 915. The Company has adopted this
standard and will not report inception-to-date information.
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On May 28, 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-08 a standard on recognition of revenue from contracts with
customers (Topic 606). An issue discussed relates to when another party, along with the entity, is involved in providing a
good or a service to a customer. In those circumstances, Topic 606 requires the entity to determine whether the nature of
its promise is to provide that good or service to the customer (that is, the entity is a principal) or to arrange for the good or
service to be provided to the customer by the other party (that is, the entity is an agent). This determination is based upon
whether the entity controls the good or the service before it is transferred to the customer. Topic 606 includes indicators
to assist in this evaluation. The Company evaluated all its contracts to determine if the Company was a principal or
agent. The Company has determined it was the principal in all its contracts.

In March 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-03 implementing the effective dates of Intangible — Goodwill and Other
(Topic 350), Business Combinations (Topic 805), Consolidation (Topic 810) and Derivatives and Hedging (Topic 815)
immediately. The Company has reviewed the topics and in compliance. The effects of the immediate implementation of
these topics have had no effect on the financial statements of the Company.

In March 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-09, Compensation-Stock Compensation (Topic 718): “Improvements to
Employee Share-Based Payment Accounting.” This ASU makes targeted amendments to the accounting for employee
share-based payments. This guidance is to be applied using various transition methods such as full retrospective, modified
retrospective, and prospective based on the criteria for the specific amendments as outlined in the guidance. The guidance
is effective for annual periods, and interim periods within those annual periods, beginning after December 15, 2016. Early



adoption is permitted, as long as all of the amendments are adopted in the same period. The Company is currently
evaluating the provisions of this guidance and assessing its impact on the Company’s financial statements and
disclosures.

In August 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”’) No.
2014-15, “Presentation of Financial Statements—Going Concern: Disclosure of Uncertainties about an Entity’s Ability to
Continue as a Going Concern.” ASU 2014-15, which is effective for annual reporting periods ending after December 15,
2016, extends the responsibility for performing the going-concern assessment to management and contains guidance on
how to perform a going-concern assessment and when going-concern disclosures would be required under GAAP. We do
not anticipate that the adoption of ASU 2014-15 will have a material impact on our consolidated financial condition or
results from operations. Management’s evaluations regarding the events and conditions that raise substantial doubt
regarding our ability to continue as a going concern as discussed in the notes to our consolidated financial statements
included elsewhere.

We have implemented all other new accounting pronouncements that are in effect and that may impact our financial
statements and we do not believe that there are any other new accounting pronouncements that have been issued that
might have a material impact on our consolidated financial position or results of operations.

Note 3. Going Concern

The Company's financial statements are prepared using generally accepted accounting principles, which contemplate the
realization of assets and liquidation of liabilities in the normal course of business. Because the business is new and has a
limited history, no certainty of continuation can be stated. The accompanying financial statements for the years ended
April 30, 2016 and 2015 have been prepared assuming that we will continue as a going concern, which contemplates the
realization of assets and satisfaction of liabilities in the normal course of business.

The Company has suffered losses from operations and has a nominal working capital surplus, which raise substantial
doubt about its ability to continue as a going concern.

Management is taking steps to raise additional funds to address its operating and financial cash requirements to continue
operations in the next twelve months. Management has devoted a significant amount of time in the raising of capital from
additional debt and equity financing. However, the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern is dependent upon
raising additional funds through debt and equity financing and generating revenue. There are no assurances the Company
will receive the necessary funding or generate revenue necessary to fund operations. The financial statements contain no
adjustments for the outcome of this uncertainty.
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Note 4. Property, Plant and Equipment

The following is a detail of equipment at April 30, 2016 and 2015:

2016 2015
Furniture and fixtures $1,792 $1,792
Total property 1,792 1,792
Less: accumulated depreciation (458) (22)
Total property, net $1,334 $1,770

Depreciation expense on property, plant and equipment was $436 and $22 for the years ended April 30, 2016 and 2015,
respectively.

Note S. Intangible Assets:

Intangible assets, net consisted of the following:

2016 2015
Intangible assets $ 19,511 $ 19,511
Additional website development 3,080 3,080
Total Intangible Assets 22,591 22,591
Less amortization (22,102) (14,487)
Net intangible assets $ 488 $ 8,104

Amortization expense on intangible assets was $7,616 and $6,824 for the years ended April 30, 2016 and 2015,
respectively. The weighted average remaining useful life on intangible assets at April 30, 2016 is approximately 2
months.

The table below represents the estimated amortization of intangible assets for each of the next five years.

Year Amortization
2017 $ 488
2018 -




2019 -
2020 -
2021 =

Total $ 488

Note 6. Related Parties and Related Party Transactions

During the year ended April 30, 2016, the Company advanced to VitaCig $86,012 for internet product sales, and
inventory purchases bringing the total outstanding due the Company to $186,276, which is recorded as due from
related party.
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The Company entered into various agreements with Zoha Development, LLC in the management and ownership of
Scalable Solutions, LLC. The principal owner of Zoha Development, LLC is Ronald Sassano, Scalable CEO and Board
member. Zoha Development, LLC owns 20% of Scalable Solutions, Inc., and has an option to acquire 40% additional
membership units of Scalable Solutions, LLC.

The Company entered into a Line of Credit with Paul Rosenberg (see Subsequent Events) for up to $100,000 in
funding. Throughout the fiscal year, the Company had various transactions in which Paul Rosenberg, the Company’s
CEO and Chairman of the Board personally paid expenses on behalf of the Company. As of April 30, 2016 the
Company borrowed $24,173 from Paul Rosenberg. On May 1, 2016 the Company entered into a Line of Credit and
Convertible Promissory Note for up to $100,000 in funding by Paul Rosenberg to accurately record the day-to-day
transactions of the Company and Paul Rosenberg.

During the year ended April 30, 2015, the Company advanced to VitaCig $105,264 for professional fees and inventory
purchases and VitaCig repaid $5,000 of that advance during the year ended April 30, 2015.

As of April 30, 2015, the balance of the advances to VitaCig was $100,264 and is recorded as due from related party.
Note 7. Commitments and Contingencies

The Company had a one year lease for a storage facility located in Falls Church, Virginia that expired in August 2015.
As of April 30, 2015, we had $3,167 remaining on this one year lease. As of April 30, 2016, the Company has not

renewed this lease.

Rent expense for the year ended April 30, 2016 and 2015 was $501 and $7,628, respectively.

2016 2015
Commitments $ - $ 3,167
Total Commitments $ - $ 3,167

Note 8. Stockholders’ Equity
Common Stock

As of April 30, 2016, the Company was authorized to issue 560,000,000 common shares at a par value of $0.0001. As
of April 30, 2015 the Company had issued and outstanding 278,261,617 common shares.

During the year ended April 30, 2016 the Company issued 25,552,599 shares of common stock for services rendered
valued at $927,493 and issued 2,500,000 shares of common stock valued ar $67,500 for investment purposes. As of
April 30, 2016 the total issued and outstanding of common stock was 306,314,216.
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During the year ended April 30, 2015, the Company issued 8,126,617 shares of common stock as compensation. The
shares were issued from the Company. The fair values of the shares were a total of $4,431,122 and were recorded at the
market price on the date of grant.

On January 23, 2014, the Company completed the investment acquisition of Vapolution, Inc. by acquiring all of its'
issued and outstanding shares in exchange for 5,000,000 shares of mCig's common stock at a market value of $0.25 per
share on the date of the acquisition, where Vapolution became a controlled subsidiary.

Since only half of the agreed upon shares had been paid out by mCig, Inc. to the previous owners of Vapolution, Inc. as
of April 30, 2014 as part of the agreed upon purchase price, only half of the purchase price ($625,000) was reported on
the Company’s balance sheet as Investment in Vapolution, Inc. at the year-end date. On April 30, 2015 the investment
of $625,000 was impaired. The remaining purchase price of 2,500,000 shares ($67,500 value) was recognized on the
Company’s balance sheet on October 30, 2015.

On January 23, 2014, Paul Rosenberg, CEO of mCig, Inc. has cancelled an equal amount (2,500,000 shares) of
common shares owned by him resulting in a net non-dilutive transaction to existing mCig, Inc. shareholders. The
remaining 2,500,000 of common shares owned by Paul Rosenberg will be cancelled to offset the 2,500,000 new shares



issued from the treasury to complete the purchase of Vapolution, Inc.

Stock Split

On December 12, 2013, the company made an amendment of Certificate of Incorporation to decrease the number of

authorized shares of Common stock, $0.0001 par value per share, from 1,000,000,000 shares to 560,000,000 shares.
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Preferred Stock

The Company has authorized 50,000,000 shares of preferred stock, at $0.0001 par value and 23,000,000 are issued and
outstanding as of April 30, 2016 and 2015. Each share of the Preferred Stock has 10 votes on all matters presented to
be voted by the holders of the Company’s common stock. All 23,000,000 shares of preferred stock were granted to the
Company’s Chief Executive Officer on September 23, 2013, which was valued at $2,300, the price of the common
stock of $0.0001 exchanged in the transaction.

On September 23, 2013, the Company entered into a Share Cancellation / Exchange / Return to Treasury Agreement
with Paul Rosenberg, the chief executive officer of mCig, Inc., for the cancellation of 230,000,000 shares of our
common stock held by Mr. Rosenberg in exchange for 23,000,000 shares of our company’s Series A Preferred Stock.

Under the terms of the Agreement the Preferred Shares only have voting rights and no right to convert to common
stock in accordance with the Certificate of Certification filed with the State of Nevada on September 10, 2013. The
Series A Preferred shares of mCig, Inc. carry ten (10) votes per each share of Preferred stock while mCig, Inc.’s
common shares carry one (1) vote per each share outstanding.

On April 10, 2014, the Share Cancellation / Exchange / Return to Treasury Agreement was amended. Under terms of
the amended agreement, all or any part of the Preferred Shares held by Shareholder can be converted at any time or
from time to time, and can be exchanged for a stated number of the company's Common Stock Shares. The amendment
was rejected by the State of Nevada as the conversion did not have a stated number of shares that converts and thus was
invalid.

On July 16, 2014, the Board of Directors approved the conversion rate of ten for one (ten shares of common stock for
each share of Series A Preferred Stock). In addition, the Board of Directors reduced the number of shares of Series A
Preferred Stock to the amount issued and outstanding (23,000,000) and executed a lock up agreement such that Mr.
Rosenberg cannot convert the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock until after the year ended April 30, 2015. The
Certificate of Certification was filed on July 17, 2014 with the State of Nevada.

Note 9. Income Taxes
The Company’s income tax expense for the periods presented in the statements of operations represents minimum

California franchise taxes. The items accounting for the difference between income taxes computed at the federal
statutory rate and the provision for income taxes were as follows:

2016 2015
Statutory federal income tax rate 34.0% 34.0%
State income taxes, net of federal taxes 6.0% 6.0%
Non-deductible items (1.0)% (1.0)%
Valuation allowance (39.0)% (39.0)%
Effective income tax rate 0.0% 0.0%
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The Company may not be able to utilize the net operating loss carry forwards for its U.S. income taxes in future periods
should it experience a change in ownership as defined in Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code (“IRC”). Under
section 382, should the Company experience a more than 50% change in its ownership over a 3-year period, the
Company would be limited based on a formula as defined in the IRC to the amount per year it could utilize in that year of
the net operating loss carry forwards. Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code (“IRC”) imposes limitations on the use of
NOL’s and credits following changes in ownership as defined in the IRC. The limitation could reduce the amount of
benefits that would be available to offset future taxable income each year, starting with the year of an ownership change.
The Company has not completed the complex analysis required by the IRC to determine if an ownership change has
occurred.

The tax effects of the temporary
differences and carry forwards that
give rise to deferred tax assets consist
of the following: 2016 2015

Deferred tax asset $ 875,109 $ 399,725
Valuation allowance (875,109) (399,725)




Net deferred taxes I | $ - | | $ -

At April 30, 2016 and 2015, the Company had net operating loss carry forwards available to offset future taxable income
of approximately 2,575,824 and $2,100,440, respectively. These carry forwards will begin to expire in the year ending
December 31, 2026. Utilization of the net operating loss carry forwards may be subject to a substantial annual limitation
due to the ownership change limitations provided by the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended and similar state
provisions.

The Company has not performed a change in ownership analysis since its inception in 2007 and, accordingly, some or all
of its net operating loss carry forwards may not be available to offset future taxable income. Even if the loss carry
forwards are available, they may be subject to substantial annual limitations resulting from past ownership changes, and
ownership changes occurring after April 30, 2016, that could result in the expiration of the loss carry forwards before
they are utilized.

The nature of the components of the deferred tax asset is entirely attributable to the Net operating loss carry-forwards
incurred by the Company less any permanent differences that maybe used in future years to offset future tax liabilities.
We believe that it is more likely than not that the benefit from certain NOL carryforwards will not be realized. In
recognition of this risk, we have provided a valuation allowance of $875,109 on the deferred tax assets relating to these
NOL carryforwards.

The Company periodically evaluates the likelihood of the realization of deferred tax assets, and adjusts the carrying
amount of the deferred tax assets by the valuation allowance to the extent the future realization of the deferred tax assets
is not judged to be more likely than not. The Company considers many factors when assessing the likelihood of future
realization of its deferred tax assets, including its recent cumulative earnings experience by taxing jurisdiction,
expectations of future taxable income or loss, the carry-forward periods available to the Company for tax reporting
purposes, and other relevant factors. At April 30, 2016 and 2015, deferred tax assets have been fully offset by a valuation
allowance.

The Company files income tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction, and with the State of California. The Company is
subject to U.S. federal and state income tax examinations by tax authorities for tax years 2014 through 2016 due to net
operating losses that are being carried forward for tax purposes. The Company does not have any uncertain tax positions
or unrecognized tax benefits at April 30, 2016 or 2015. The Company’s policy is to recognize interest and penalties
related to income taxes as components of interest expense and other expense, respectively.
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Note 10. Basic Loss per Share before Non-Controlling Interest

Basic Loss Per Share - The computation of basic and diluted loss per common share is based on the weighted average
number of shares outstanding during each period.

April 30,
2016 2015
Net loss from continuing operations before Non-controlling Interest (1,391,415) (4,904,992)
Net income from discontinued operations - 35,544
Net loss (1,391,415) (4,869,448)
Basic loss per common share from continuing operations $ (0.00) $ (0.02)
Basic income per common share from discontinued operations N/A $0.00
Basic income (loss) per share $ (0.00) $ (0.02)
Basic weighted average number of shares outstanding 293,680,673 271,793,396

The computation of basic loss per common share is based on the weighted average number of shares outstanding during
the year.

Note 11. Spin-Off of VitaCig, Inc.

On November 28, 2014, mCig completed the spin-off of VitaCig, Inc. (the “Spin-off™). Effective as of 11:59 p.m., New
York City time, on November 28, 2014 (the “Distribution Date”), the Company distributed 270,135,000 shares of
common stock of VitaCig, Inc., par value $0.0001 per share (“VitaCig Common Stock”), to holders of mCig’s
stockholders of record as a pro rata dividend. The record date for the dividend was November 28, 2014. The Ex-
Dividend Date was set for November 25, 2014. mCig stockholders received one share of VitaCig Common Stock for
every one share of common stock, par value $0.0001 per share, of mCig. The Spin-off was completed for the purpose of
legally and structurally separating VitaCig, Inc. from mCig. MCig retained 230,000,000 shares of common stock and
remains as a controlling shareholder. During the year ended April 30, 2015, the Company reclassified the investment in
VitaCig as discontinued operations.

The shares of common stock received by mCig shareholders were registered on a Form S-1 filed by VitaCig and declared
effective by the Securities and Exchange Commission on November 5, 2014.
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During the year ended April 30, 2015, the Company recorded a loss on impairment of investment related to VitaCig of
$13,658. The following table presents the net book value of VitaCig as of the Spin-off date, the pro-rata value after the
Spin-off and the impairment of the investment in VitaCig:

Net book value of VitaCig at spin-off $ 29,700
Dividend related to spin-off 16,042
Pro-rata net book value after spin-off 13,658
Loss on impairment of investment (13,658)
Balance $-

Note 12. Subsequent Events

On May 1, 2016 the Company entered into a Line of Credit Agreement with Paul Rosenberg, the Chairman and CEO.
The Company will utilize the Line of Credit as needed for day-to-day operations.

On May 15, 2016, a shareholder elected to convert 400,000 shares of Series A Preferred Stock into 4,000,000 shares of
common stock.

On June 7, 2016, the Company issued 3,441,176 shares of common stock for services and 7,000,000 shares of common
stock in exchange for the purchase of three domain urls. The common stock issued for services was recorded as Stock
Based Compensation in the amount of $103,235. The common stock issued for the purchase of the domain urls was
recorded as an Intangible Asset in the amount of $210,000.

On June 8, 2016, Paul Rosenberg converted 600,000 shares of Series A Preferred Stock into 6,000,000 shares of
common stock.

On June 2 2, 2016, the Company and VitaCig, Inc., entered into a Separation and Share Transfer Agreement whereby
VitaCig transferred the assets and operations of the business of VitaCig, Inc., to Company in exchange for the return of

172,500,000 shares of VitaCig Common Stock to the treasury of VitaCig, Inc., and for a reduction of the amount owed
to the Company in excess of $95,000.
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As a part of the acquisition the Company secured four contracts between VitaCig, Inc., and its customers.

The assets of the VitaCig business has been transferred from VitaCig, Inc., a Nevada corporation to VitaCig, Inc., a
Florida corporation, a wholly owned subsidiary of mCig, Inc.
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE.

Not applicable
ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES.

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures .

Disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(¢) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act) are designed to
ensure that information required to be disclosed in reports filed or submitted under the Exchange Act is recorded,
processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in SEC rules and forms. Disclosure controls and
procedures are also designed to ensure that such information is accumulated and communicated to management,
including the principal executive officer and principal financial officer, to allow timely decisions regarding required
disclosures.

We carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of management, including our principal
executive officer and principal financial officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls
and procedures as of April 30, 2016. In designing and evaluating the disclosure controls and procedures, management
recognizes that there are inherent limitations to the effectiveness of any system of disclosure controls and procedures,
including the possibility of human error and the circumvention or overriding of the controls and procedures. Accordingly,
even effective disclosure controls and procedures can only provide reasonable assurance of achieving their desired
control objectives. Additionally, in evaluating and implementing possible controls and procedures, management is
required to apply its reasonable judgment. Based on the evaluation described above, our principal executive officer and
principal financial officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were not effective as of the end of the
period covered by this report because we did not document our Sarbanes-Oxley Act Section 404 internal controls and
procedures.

As funds become available to us, we expect to implement additional measures to improve disclosure controls and
procedures such as implementing and documenting our internal controls procedures.

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting



Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial
reporting. Internal control over financial reporting is defined in Rule 13a-15(f) promulgated under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 as a process designed by, or under the supervision of, our principal executive officer and principal
financial officer and effected by our board of directors, management and other personnel, to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and includes those policies and

procedures that:

ePertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of our assets;

eProvide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and that
our receipts and expenditures are being made only in accordance with authorizations of our management and
board of directors; and

eProvide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or
disposition of our assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
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Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Internal control over financial reporting is a process that involves human diligence and compliance and is
subject to lapses in judgment and breakdowns resulting from human failures. Internal control over financial reporting
also can be circumvented by collusion or improper management override. Projections of any evaluation of effectiveness
to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. All internal control systems, no matter how well
designed, have inherent limitations. Therefore, even those systems determined to be effective can provide only
reasonable assurance with respect to financial statement preparation and presentation. Because of the inherent limitations
of internal control, there is a risk that material misstatements may not be prevented or detected on a timely basis by
internal control over financial reporting. However, these inherent limitations are known features of the financial reporting
process. Therefore, it is possible to design into the process safeguards to reduce, though not eliminate, this risk.

As of April 30, 2016 management assessed the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting based on the
criteria for effective internal control over financial reporting established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued
by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and SEC guidance on conducting such
assessments. Based on that evaluation, they concluded that, during the period covered by this report, such internal
controls and procedures were not effective due to our limited accounting staff. We intend to strengthen these internal
controls over the next few months by augmenting our accounting staff.

This annual report does not include an attestation report of our registered public accounting firm regarding internal
control over financial reporting. Management's report was not subject to attestation by our registered public accounting
firm pursuant to rules of the SEC that permit us to provide only the management's report in this annual report

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting.

There have been no changes in our internal control over financial reporting during the year ended April 30, 2016 that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION.

None.
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PART III

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE.

All of our directors hold office until the next annual meeting of stockholders and until their successors have been elected
and qualified or until their earlier resignation or removal unless his or her office is earlier vacated in accordance with our
bylaws or he or she becomes disqualified to act as a director. Our officers shall hold office until the meeting of the Board
of Directors following the next annual meeting of stockholders and until his successor has been elected and qualified or

until his earlier resignation or removal. The Board of Directors may remove any officer for cause or without cause.
Our executive officers and directors and their respective ages as of the date of this Annual Report are as follows
Committees

Our Board of Directors as a whole acts as the audit and compensation committees.

Name Age Position(s)
Paul Rosenberg 46 President, Chief Executive Officer and Director
Michael Hawkins 54 Chief Financial Officer

Ronald Sassano 44 Chief Executive Officer, Scalable Solutions, LLC



Paul Rosenberg was appointed as our Chief Executive Officer, Treasurer, Secretary, and Director of mCig, Inc. on May
23, 2013. For the past 5 years Mr. Rosenberg has been a private investor focusing on the technology space where he has
over two decades of experience as a software engineer specializing in complex distributed systems in C++, Delphi, VB,
Java, and Oracle DB projects via his consulting company: PR Data Consulting. Since 1997, Mr. Rosenberg has worked as
an independent consultant with both private and public enterprises including: The Federal Deposit Insurance Company
(FDIC), The Zennstrom/Friis Group (Kazaa/Skype/Atomico Ventures), and Trust Digital (later sold to Mcafee in 2010),
Dell, Inc., Boeing, and Microsoft Inc. as well as several other notable companies.

Michael Hawkins has been our Chief Financial Officer since April 8, 2016. Prior to fulfilling this role, Mr. Hawkins was
the Managing Member of Epic Industry, LLC and the Chief Financial Officer for ICA Solutions, Inc. Mr. Hawkins has
worked in the hospitality and entertainment industry and construction industry, providing executive level services as
CEO, CFO, and COO to multiple nanotech public and privately held companies.. Mr. Hawkins earned his B.S. in
Computer Science and Business Administration from University of Maryland, University College.

Ronald Sassano served has been with the Company since May 2015 where he has lead the development prospects. With
more than 25 years in the construction industry, Mr. Sassano was instrumental in bringing the Company’s first
construction contracts. On March 6, 2016 the Company founded Scalable Solutions, LLC, and Mr. Sassano, through his
corporation, Zoha Development, LLC was granted 20% ownership. Mr. Sassano is now the CEO of Scalable Solutions.

Family Relationships

There are no family relationships between or among the above directors, executive officers or persons nominated or
charged by us to become directors or executive officers.

Board Leadership Structure
Mr. Rosenberg currently serves as our chairman of our Board of Directors.
Conflicts of Interest

Members of our management are associated with other firms involved in a range of business activities. Consequently,
there are potential inherent conflicts of interest in their acting as officers and directors of our company. Although the
officers and directors are engaged in other business activities, we anticipate they will devote an important amount of time
to our affairs.

Our officers and directors are now and may in the future become shareholders, officers or directors of other companies,
which may be formed for the purpose of engaging in business activities similar to ours. Accordingly, additional direct
conflicts of interest may arise in the future with respect to such individuals acting on behalf of us or other entities.
Moreover, additional conflicts of interest may arise with respect to opportunities which come to the attention of such
individuals in the performance of their duties or otherwise. Currently, we do not have a right of first refusal pertaining to
opportunities that come to their attention and may relate to our business operations.
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Our officers and directors are, so long as they are our officers or directors, subject to the restriction that all
opportunities contemplated by our plan of operation which come to their attention, either in the performance of their
duties or in any other manner, will be considered opportunities of, and be made available to us and the companies that
they are affiliated with on an equal basis. A breach of this requirement will be a breach of the fiduciary duties of the
officer or director. If we or the companies with which the officers and directors are affiliated both desire to take
advantage of an opportunity, then said officers and directors would abstain from negotiating and voting upon the
opportunity. However, all directors may still individually take advantage of opportunities if we should decline to do
so. Except as set forth above, we have not adopted any other conflict of interest policy with respect to such

transactions.

Involvement in Certain Legal Proceedings

None of the following events have occurred during the past five years and are material to an evaluation of the ability or
integrity of any director or officer of the Company:

1. A petition under the Federal bankruptcy laws or any state insolvency law was filed by or against, or a
receiver, fiscal agent or similar officer was appointed by a court for the business or property of such
person, or any partnership in which he was a general partner at or within two years before the time of
such filing, or any corporation or business association of which he was an executive officer at or within
two years before the time of such filing;

2. Such person was convicted in a criminal proceeding or is a named subject of a pending criminal
proceeding (excluding traffic violations and other minor offenses);

3. Such person was the subject of any order, judgment, or decree, not subsequently reversed, suspended or
vacated, of any court of competent jurisdiction, permanently or temporarily enjoining him from, or
otherwise limiting, the following activities:

a. Acting as a futures commission merchant, introducing broker, commodity trading
advisor, commodity pool operator, floor broker, leverage transaction merchant, any
other person regulated by the Commodity Futures Trading Commission, or an
associated person of any of the foregoing, or as an investment adviser, underwriter,
broker or dealer in securities, or as an affiliated person, director or employee of any
investment company, bank, savings and loan association or insurance company, or



engaging in or continuing any conduct or practice in connection with such activity;
b. Engaging in any type of business practice; or
c. Engaging in any activity in connection with the purchase or sale of any security or
commodity or in connection with any violation of Federal or State securities laws or
Federal commodities laws;

4. Such person was the subject of any order, judgment or decree, not subsequently reversed, suspended
or vacated, of any Federal or State authority barring, suspending or otherwise limiting for more than
60 days the right of such person to engage in any activity described in paragraph (£)(3)(i) of this
section, or to be associated with persons engaged in any such activity;

5. Such person was found by a court of competent jurisdiction in a civil action or by the Commission to
have violated any Federal or State securities law, and the judgment in such civil action or finding by
the Commission has not been subsequently reversed, suspended, or vacated,

6. Such person was found by a court of competent jurisdiction in a civil action or by the Commodity
Futures Trading Commission to have violated any Federal commodities law, and the judgment in
such civil action or finding by the Commodity Futures Trading Commission has not been
subsequently reversed, suspended or vacated;

7. Such person was the subject of, or a party to, any Federal or State judicial or administrative order,
judgment, decree, or finding, not subsequently reversed, suspended or vacated, relating to an alleged
violation of:

a. Any Federal or State securities or commodities law or regulation; or

b. Any law or regulation respecting financial institutions or insurance companies including,
but not limited to, a temporary or permanent injunction, order of disgorgement or
restitution, civil money penalty or temporary or permanent cease-and-desist order, or
removal or prohibition order; or

c. Any law or regulation prohibiting mail or wire fraud or fraud in connection with any
business entity; or

8. Such person was the subject of, or a party to, any sanction or order, not subsequently reversed,
suspended or vacated, of any self-regulatory organization (as defined in Section 3(a)(26) of the
Exchange Act (15 U.S.C. 78c(a)(26))), any registered entity (as defined in Section 1(a)(29) of the
Commodity Exchange Act (7 U.S.C. 1(a)(29)), or any equivalent exchange, association, entity or
organization that has disciplinary authority over its members or persons associated with a member.
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Committees
Our Board of Directors as a whole acts as the audit and compensation committees.
Code of Ethics

We adopted a code of ethics that applies to our officers and directors. Our code of ethics was filed with our Annual
Report for the year ended April 30, 2014, as filed on August 14, 2014.

Indemnification of Directors and Officers.

Under the Nevada General Corporation Law, we can indemnify our directors and officers against liabilities they may
incur in such capacities, including liabilities under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”). Our
amended and restated articles of incorporation provide that, pursuant to Nevada law, our directors shall not be liable for
monetary damages for breach of the directors’ fiduciary duty of care to us and our stockholders. This provision in the
articles of incorporation does not eliminate the duty of care, and in appropriate circumstances equitable remedies such as
injunctive or other forms of non-monetary relief will remain available under Nevada law. In addition, each director will
continue to be subject to liability for breach of the director’s duty of loyalty to us or our stockholders, for acts or
omissions not in good faith or involving intentional misconduct or knowing violations of law, for any transaction from
which the director directly or indirectly derived an improper personal benefit, and for payment of dividends or approval
of stock repurchases or redemptions that are unlawful under Nevada law. The provision also does not affect a director’s
responsibilities under any other law, such as the federal securities laws or state or federal environmental laws.

Our bylaws, as amended, provide for the indemnification of our directors and officers to the fullest extent permitted by
the Nevada General Corporation Law. We are not, however, required to indemnify any director or officer in connection
with any (a) willful misconduct, (b) willful neglect, or (c) gross negligence toward or on behalf of us in the performance
of his or her duties as a director or officer. We are required to advance, prior to the final disposition of any proceeding,
promptly on request, all expenses incurred by any director or officer in connection with that proceeding on receipt of any
undertaking by or on behalf of that director or officer to repay those amounts if it should be determined ultimately that he
or she is not entitled to be indemnified under our bylaws or otherwise.

We have been advised that, in the opinion of the SEC, any indemnification for liabilities arising under the Securities Act
of 1933 is against public policy, as expressed in the Securities Act, and is, therefore, unenforceable.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION.



The Company was formed on December 30, 2010.

The Company has no stock option, retirement, pension, or profit sharing programs for the benefit of directors, officers or
other employees, but our officers and directors may recommend adoption of one or more such programs in the future.

We have an employment agreement with our Chief Financial Officer and no other officers, although we may enter into
such agreements following our receipt of additional capital.

The Company does not have a standing compensation committee, audit committee, nomination committee, or committees
performing similar functions. We anticipate that we will form such committees of the Board of Directors once we have a
full Board of Directors.

The following table sets forth certain compensation information for: (i) the person who served as the Chief Executive
Officer of mCig, Inc., during the year ended April 30, 2016, regardless of the compensation level, and (ii) each of our
other executive officers, serving as an executive officer at any time during 2016. The foregoing persons are collectively
referred to in this prospectus as the “Named Executive Officers.” Compensation information is shown for the year ended
April 30,2016 and April 30, 2015:
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Non- Non-
Equity Qualified
Incentive Deferred All
Stock Option Plan Comp Other
Name and Principal Salary Bonus Awards Awards Comp Earnings Comp Totals
Position Year [6)) 9 [6)) [6)) [6)) [6)) (%) ($)
Paul Rosenberg, 2016 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
CEO 2015 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Charles Mathews 2016 6,000 0 25,524 0 0 0 0 31,524
CFO 2015 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Michael Hawkins 2016 3,000 0 33,480 0 0 0 0 36,480
Interim CFO 2015 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Ronald Sassano 2016 3,000 180,000 183,000
CEO, Scalable Solutions 2015 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Agreements

We have a consulting agreement with the Interim Chief Financial Officer whereby he will be compensated $3,000 per
month for two months, and $2,000 per month for four months and receive 900,000 shares of restricted stock valued at
$5,580 per month.

We have a consulting agreement with the CEO of Scalable Solutions., LLC, in which he is compensated with zero cash
and $15,000 per month in stock based compensation.

Other than the Chief Financial Officer and the CEO of Scalable Solutions, LLC, there are no other agreements with our
officers, although we may enter into such agreements following our receipt of additional capital.

Outstanding Equity Awards as of April 30, 2016
During the fiscal year ended April 30, 2016, Michael Hawkins was issued 900,000 shares of common stock.
During the fiscal year ended April 30, 2016, Ronald Sassano was issued 3,906,855 shares of common stock.
Options Exercises and Stocks Vested
None
Grants of Plan-Based Awards
None.
Non-Qualified Deferred Compensation
None.
Golden Parachute Compensation
None.

Director Compensation

We currently do not compensate our directors. No director has received any compensation from the Company since the
inception of the Company.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND



RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS.

Under Rule 13d-3 under the Exchange Act, a beneficial owner of a security includes any person who, directly or
indirectly, through any contract, arrangement, understanding, relationship, or otherwise has or shares: (i) voting power,
which includes the power to vote, or to direct the voting of shares; and (ii) investment power, which includes the power to
dispose or direct the disposition of shares. Certain shares may be deemed to be beneficially owned by more than one
person (if, for example, persons share the power to vote or the power to dispose of the shares). In addition, shares are
deemed to be beneficially owned by a person if the person has the right to acquire the shares (for example, upon exercise
of an option) within 60 days of the date as of which the information is provided. In computing the percentage ownership
of any person, the amount of shares outstanding is deemed to include the amount of shares beneficially owned by such
person (and only such person) by reason of these acquisition rights.
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The following table indicates beneficial ownership of mCig’s common stock, as of April 30, 2016 by:

. Each person or entity known by mCig to beneficially own more than 5% of the outstanding shares of mCig’s

common stock;
e  Each executive officer and director of mCig; and,
e  All executive officers and directors of mCig as a group.

. Beneficial ownership is determined in accordance with the rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission and
generally includes voting or investment power with respect to securities. Percentage of beneficial ownership is based

on 306,314,216 shares of common stock outstanding as of April 30, 2016.

Unless other indicated, the address of each beneficial owner listed below is ¢/o mCig, Inc., 433 North Camden Drive, 6

 Floor, Beverly Hills, California 90210.

Name of Beneficial Owner Amount and Nature of Percentage
Beneficial Ownership of Class (D
Paul Rosenberg 1,834,445 common shares 0.60%
20,900,000 preferred shares 91%
Michael W. Hawkins 900,000 common shares 0.03%
Ronald Sassano 1,252,809 common shares 0.04%
Total as a group(1) 3,987,254 common shares 0.67%
20,900,000 preferred shares 91%

TOTAL STOCK VOTING POWER
Paul Rosenberg 210,834,445 stock voting power 39.74%

Total as a group(1) 212,987,254 stock voting power 40.41%

(1)Under Rule 13d-3, a beneficial owner of a security includes any person who, directly or indirectly, through any
contract, arrangement, understanding, relationship, or otherwise has or shares: (i) voting power, which includes the
power to vote, or to direct the voting of shares; and (ii) investment power, which includes the power to dispose or
direct the disposition of shares. Certain shares may be deemed to be beneficially owned by more than one person (if,
for example, persons share the power to vote or the power to dispose of the shares). In addition, shares are deemed to
be beneficially owned by a person if the person has the right to acquire the shares (for example, upon exercise of an
option) within 60 days of the date as of which the information is provided. In computing the percentage ownership of
any person, the amount of shares outstanding is deemed to include the amount of shares beneficially owned by such
person (and only such person) by reason of these acquisition rights. As a result, the percentage of outstanding shares of
any person as shown in this table does not necessarily reflect the person’s actual ownership or voting power with
respect to the number of shares of common stock actually outstanding on April 30, 2016. As of April 30, 2016 there

were 306,314,216 shares of our company’s common stock issued and outstanding.

Review, Approval or Ratification of Transactions with Related Persons.

All future related party transactions will be approved, if possible, by a majority of our directors who do not have an

interest in the transaction and who will have access, at our expense, to our independent legal counsel.
Description of Capital Structure
General

Our authorized capital stock consists of 560,000,000 shares of common stock, par value $ 0.0001.



Common Stock

The shares of our common stock presently outstanding, and any shares of our common stock issues upon exercise of
common stock purchase options and/or warrants, will be fully paid and non-assessable. Each holder of common stock
is entitled to one vote for each share owned on all matters voted upon by shareholders, and a majority vote is required
for all actions to be taken by shareholders. In the event we liquidate, dissolve or wind-up our operations, the holders of
the common stock are entitled to share equally and ratably in our assets, if any, remaining after the payment of all our
debts and liabilities and the liquidation preference of any shares of preferred stock that may then be outstanding. The
common stock has no preemptive rights, no cumulative voting rights, and no redemption, sinking fund, or conversion
provisions. Holders of common stock are entitled to receive dividends, if and when declared by the Board of Directors,
out of funds legally available for such purpose, subject to the dividend and liquidation rights of any preferred stock that

may then be outstanding.
Preferred Stock

The Series A Preferred shares of mCig, Inc. carry ten (10) votes per each share of Preferred stock while mCig, Inc’s
common shares carry one (1) vote per each share outstanding.

Voting Rights

Each holder of Common Stock is entitled to one vote for each share of Common Stock held on all matters submitted to
a vote of stockholders.
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Dividends

Subject to preferences that may be applicable to any then-outstanding securities with greater rights, if any, and any other
restrictions, holders of Common Stock are entitled to receive ratably those dividends, if any, as may be declared from
time to time by the Company’s board of directors out of legally available funds. The Company and its predecessors have
not declared any dividends in the past and does not presently contemplate that there will be any future payment of any
dividends on Common Stock.

Indemnification of Officers and Directors

As permitted by Nevada Revised Statutes, our Articles of Incorporation provide that we will indemnify our directors and
officers against expenses and liabilities they incur to defend, settle, or satisfy any civil or criminal action brought against
them on account of their being or having been Company directors or officers unless, in any such action, they are adjudged
to have acted with gross negligence or willful misconduct.

Pursuant to the foregoing provisions, we have been informed that, in the opinion of the Securities and Exchange
Commission, such indemnification is against public policy as expressed in that Act and is, therefore, unenforceable .

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR
INDEPENDENCE.

Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

During the year ended April 30, 2016, the Company advanced to VitaCig $86,012 for internet product sales, and
inventory purchases bringing the total outstanding due the Company to $186,276, which is recorded as due from related
party.

Director Independence

Our Board of Directors is comprised of 1 member, who is not “independent” within the meaning of Marketplace Rule
5605 of the NASDAQ Stock Market.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES.

On April 1, 2016, we engaged, MaloneBailey, LLP to serve as our independent registered public accounting firm for the
year ending April 30, 2016. Sadler, Gibb & Associates, LLP served as our independent registered public accounting firm
for the year ending April 30, 2015. The following table shows the fees that were billed for the audit and other services
provided for 2016 and 2015.

2016 2015
Audit Fees $25,500 $21,300
Audit-Related Fees - -
Tax Fees - -
All Other Fees - -
Total $ 25,500 $21,300

Audit Fees — This category includes the audit of our annual financial statements, review of financial statements included



in our Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q and services that are normally provided by the independent registered public
accounting firm in connection with engagements for those fiscal years. This category also includes advice on audit and
accounting matters that arose during, or as a result of, the audit or the review of interim financial statements.

37

Audit-Related Fees — this category consists of assurance and related services by the independent registered public

accounting firm that are reasonably related to the performance of the audit or review of our financial statements and are
not reported above under Audit Fees. The services for the fees disclosed under this category include consultation

regarding our correspondence with the Securities and Exchange Commission and other accounting consulting services.
Tax Fees — this category consists of professional services rendered by our independent registered public accounting
firm for tax compliance and tax advice. The services for the fees disclosed under this category include tax return

preparation and technical tax advice.

All Other Fees — this category consists of fees for other miscellaneous items.

Our Board of Directors has adopted a procedure for pre-approval of all fees charged by our independent registered
public accounting firm. Under the procedure, the Board approves the engagement letter with respect to audit, tax and
review services. Other fees are subject to pre-approval by the Board, or, in the period between meetings, by a
designated member of Board. The audit paid to the auditors with respect to 2016 and 2015 were pre-approved by the

Board of Directors.
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ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES.

IExhibit No. IDescription

10.1| [Share Transfer Agreement Between VitaCig and Malecon Pharmacy

10.3| [Exclusive Agreement with Just Chill

10.4| [Distribution Agreement with JCP

10.5] [Amendment to Stock Purchase Agreement with Vapolution shareholder

10.6| [Consulting Agreement with Michael Hawkins

21| |Articles of Incorporation of Scalable solutions, LLC

23.1| [Consent of MaloneBailey, LLP

23.2| |Consent of Sadler, Gibb & Associates, LLP

31| [Certification Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act*

32| [Certification Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act*

101.INS IXBRL Instance Document

101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document
101.CAL IXBRL Taxonomy Calculation Linkbase Document
101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Labels Linkbase Document
101.PRE IXBRL Taxonomy Presentation Linkbase Document
101.DEF (XBRL Definition Linkbase Document
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly

caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

mCig Inc

August 31,2016 By: /s/ Paul Rosenberg

Paul Rosenberg



Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

August 31,2016 By: /s/ Michael W. Hawkins
Michael W. Hawkins

Chief Financial Officer and Chief
Accounting Officer (Principal
Financial Officer)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of the registrant in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Name Position Date
/s/ Paul Rosenberg Chief Executive Officer August 31, 2016
Paul Rosenberg (Principal Executive Officer)
/s/ Michael W. Hawkins Chief Operating Officer and Director August 31, 2016

Michael W. Hawkins
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SHARE EXCHANGE AGREEMENT
BY AND BETWEEN
VITACHG, INC.

AND
MALECON PHARMACY, INC.

THIS SHARD EXCHANGE AGREEMENT (tha “Agresment”) iz made a5 of the 2¥ day of Jme 2016. between
VITACIG, INC., & Nevids corporation ("VITACIG™) and the shareholdors of MALECON PHARMACY, INC.,a
Fiotida corporstion (the "SELLERS™ or “MALECON").

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the SELLERS collectively own [00% of the shares of MALECON as sa! forth in tho atached Exhibit
&

WHEREAS, VITACIG is a company whose comnion stock is registered with the ULS. Sscuritics anll Exchange
Comnission putsuant lo Section 12{g) of the Sscurities Dxchangs Act of 1934, ss mmended;

WHEREAS, VITACIG presently has Twa Billion(2,000,000,000) shares of comnson capital slock, parvalus 50.0001
authatized;

WHEREAS, the Boad of Directors of VITACIHG desires to reorganize VITACIG by causing it o iesue to SELLERS
Five Hundred Seventy-Five Million (575,000,000) shares of VITACIG common siock in sxehange for SELLERS
tranefier of their 100% ownership interest in MALECON to VITACIG (the “Share Exchange™), upgon the tonns,
provisions, xud evnditions and for the consideration hereinafter set forih, thereby making MALECON & subsidinry of
VITACICH and

WHEREAS, the partics intend that the exchange of siock qualtfics as a tax-frec rearganization indar section 3568(z)
of the brvemnal Reveree Cadz of 1986, a3 amended (the “Code™), and that the buainess combination contemplated
hereby be seconnted for as a reverse acquisition under fiie purchuse method for business combisations, The
sombination of the hwo companies is sseorded as a recapitalization of MALECON, pursuant to which MALECOM is
treated ay the continuing entily.

AGREEMENT

NOW THEREFORI, in consideration of thess preniises and the muluel sgreements sof Torth helow, intending 1o be
logzally bound, the partics agree as follows:

ARTICLEX
SHARE, EXCHANGE

SECTION 1.1 EXCHANGE AND ISSUR OF SHARES. On the terms and subject to the conditions hure sel forth,
at the Closing,

{83 VITACIG will issue and deliver Five Hundred Scvenly-Five WMiltion (575,000,0000) validly issoed, fully-
paid and non-assossabile shares of VITACIG Common Stock, $0.0001 par valug, to the SELLERS as sel forth
in Exhibit A;

(b} SBLLERS will deliver tn VITACIG One Hundred Percent (1009} of MALECON ownership (ths
“MALECON Interesi"y; and

SECTION 1.2 EFFECTIVE RESULT OF THE SHARE EXCHANGE. At the Effertive Date, MALECON, will
be acquired ang will become a wholly-owned subsidiary of VITACIO.

SECTION 1.3 THE EXCHANGE OF CERTIFICATES,
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(a) The stock wansfe agent of VITACIG is ClearTrust, LLC (the “Brchangs Agant”™), with its aldvess nt 16540
TPointe Village Dr. Suite 206, Lz, FL and its telephona number is 813-235.4490,

{b} SELLERS will defiver all cortificates representing oft issued, canceiled, and oulstanding shates to the Closing
Agent, Bilers Law Giroup, P.A., slong with suitably exeouted stock powess, along with any other dectinents
raquired for debivery ul the Closing by this Apresment.

(e} Afer ths Closing, the Exchangs Agent will be instructed (o deliver to the SELLERS tieir rospective share
eriificates representing new shares of VITACIG Common Stock {each 8 "New Cerlificate™),

SECTION L4 ACTSTO CARRY OUT THIS EXCHANGE PLAN.

{8} MALECCM and ite proper officers and directors wifl do sll such acts and things as may be rccessary or
proper t vedt, perfieet, or confirim in YITACIG title to such property pr rights and othervise 1o cavry out the
purpescs of this Shawe Exchange Agreement,

() If, 2t any time after the Bffective Date, VITACIG will consider or bo advized that any finther assignments or
agsurances in law or any other aots nre neceseary or desirable to (7) vest, perfect, or confivm, of record or
otherwise, i VITACIG ta righs, titls, or interest n or under any of the righis, properiies, or asssts of
MALECON ncquired or to be soquired by VITACIG an « result af, or in connection with, the Share Excliange,
or (if) otherwise carry out the pumoses of this Agreement, MALECON and its proper offivers and directors
will be deerned to have gramted 10 VITACIG an imovouable power of attomey (0 executo end deliver all such
proper deeds, sseiguments, and assurances in law and fo do all acts neceasary or proper to vest, perfect, or
confitin title to and possession of such rights, propesties, o assets in VITACLG and otherwise to curty out
the purposes of this A precment; mid the properofficess wnd directors of VITACIG pre fally awthorkzed in the
nawme of VITACTG or otherwise (o take any and alf such action.

SLCTION 1.5 DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS. Subject to the fiduciary duties of its directars,
VITACIE, as prosuptly as practicabic sfter e Effective Date, will g2 108 best efforts 1o canse its existing bound of
directors md o) officers io resipn and immediaiely thereafier to be comprised of the directors appointed by SELLERS,
unless otherwise agrevd upon by the Pasties.

SECTION 1.6 NAME CHANGE. Within Ninety {90) days of the Closing, VITACIG will chenge its iegul name to
“Malocon Holding Group, Ine,” or zuch tame that the SELLERS shell choosz,

SECTION 1.7 RESERYED.
ARTICLE 11
EFFECTIVE DATE

The Effective Date will be the date and time specified in this Agrosment of on such other date o5 will bs motsatly
apeeed (o by MALECOM amd VITACIG,

ARTICLE It

The cbligations of MALECON and VITACIG to constmmate the Shate Exchange will be subjet 10 the conditions
that on or beiors the Effective Date:

‘
SECTION 3.1 NOTICE TQ SHAREHOLDERS OF ¥ITACIG. Tho sharcholden of VITACIG will have been
notified of the Agreement in sccordance with the laws of the stete of Novada,

SECTION 3.2 ABSENCE 0F LEGAL PROCEEDINGS, No yction, suit, or proceeding will bave beon instinwied
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o will have been threutenad befove apy court or other govermmantal body of by any public authority to restrain, sajois,
or probibie the Share Exchange, or which would sasenably be caproted to resirlet matoriatly the operation of the
business of MALECON o the sxercise of any rights with vesper! thorete or to subject oither of the parties herelo o7
any of their subsidiartes, directors, o officers to any linbility, fine, forfeitute, divestiture, or penaity on the ground
that the traneactions contemplated hioreby, the parties hereta, ot their snbsidiaries, directors, or officors have breached
or will bireach any soplicable law or regniation or have ofierwiss acted improperly in connection with the transactions
vontcmplated hereby and with respoct to which the partics horeto huve been advised by counsel that, in the opinkon of
such counsel, such action, suit, or procesding raises substantial questions of law or fact which could reasonably be
decided materially adversely to citlicr paty hereto or irs subsidiaries, direcioss, or officsrs.

ARTICLE IV




The chligations of YITACIG are subject to the satisfaction, on or prior to the Effective Dato, of all the following
conditions, compliance with which or the occuvrence of which may be waived in whole or In parl by VITACLG in
writing unlest not se permitied by law!

SECTION 4.1 REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES; PERFORMANCE OF OBLIGATIONS. Al
representations and watrantics of MALECON contalned in this Agreement will be true and correct in ail material
respects 25 of the Bffective Date with the same cffioct #3 if such rupresenlations and warrantics ted bocn made or given
at ard 35 of sueh dute, except thet representations and warranties of MALBCON contained in this Agreement thal
specifically relate to an carlier dute will be true and correct in wil material respects as of such sariter dato. All covonants
and obligations to b performed or met by MALECOM on or prior to the Effective Date will have heen 5o performed
ot met On the date of tha Effective Date, the chief executive officer of MALECON will deliver to VITACIG &
cegtificate to thet sffest, The delivery of such certificates will in ha way diminish the warmalles, representalions.
eorvenants, and obligations of MALECOM iaade in this Agreement.

SECTION 4.2 NO ADVERSE DEVELOTMENTS:

{5} During the period from May 26, 2016 to the Effactive Dale, (1) there will not have been any material adverse
effect as defined in section 12.5(c) (a “Maisrial Adverse Effect”) with respect to MALECON.

(b} As of the Effective Date, Lhere will be no libilities of MALECON, other than lighilities incwrmed in the
crdinary course of business, which are maierint 1o MALECOR on a consolidsted basis which were not
reflectsd in the MALECON Financiat Statements, and there will be no materfal deferioration in the quality
or imarket value of the real property, invesiments and other assels included in such financizl statements of
MALRCON,

{6) VITACIO will have received o certificats dated the Bffective Dute, sipned by the presidont of MALECON,
certifying to the matters set forth in paragraphe (a) and (b} of this sevtion 4.2. The delivery of such officars’
certificate will in no way diminish the warralities and representations of MALECON made in this Agresmsnt,

SECTION 4.3 EXECUTION OF INVESTMENT LETTERS BY SELLERS, Each Sclier will each have submilted
fully executed Investment Letters in the form attached hereto as Exhibit "B,

ARTICLE ¥V

The obtigations of MALECON herewndor are subjoet to the satisfaction, on or prios lo the Effective Date, of all the
follawing conditions, complisnee with which or the cceurrence of which may be waived in wiale or in part by
MALECON in writing wiless wot so permitied by lawe

SECTION 5.0 REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES; PERFORMANCE OF OBLIGATIONS. Al
representations and warranties of VITACIG contained in this Agreswent will be tru and cogrect i ell matorii
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respects a8 of the Effective Date with the same offect s if such representations and warninties hud beon inade or given

at and as of such date, except that representations and warnnies of YITACIO contained in this Agrcment that
specifically relate to an eotlier date will be tree and correct in2il material respeets s of such ealier date. Al sovenants
and abligations to be performed or met by VITACIG on or prior to the Effective Date will lave bee so perforined o
met. O the date of the Effacive Date, ither the president or an executive vice president of VITACHG will deliver to
MALECON & certificate to that effect. The delivery of mich officer’s certificute will in no way diminish the warranties,
reprosentations, covenanty, nud obligations of VITACIG made in this Agresment,

SECTION 5.2 NO ADVERSE DRV ELOPMMENTS. Duritrg 16 period from May 26, 2016, (0 the Elfcctive Dals,
there will not have bean any Matesisl Adverse Effect with respect to VITACIG, and MALECON will have received
a certificate dated tho date of the Effective Date signod by either the president or an executive vice president of
VITACIG 15 the foregoing offect. The delivery of such officer’s cartificate will i nn way diminish the warmnties md
representations of VITACIG mide in this Agreemaent.

ARTICLE W1

VITACIG reprosents and warrants lo MALBECON as follows:

SECTION 6.1 ORGANIZATION, POWERS, AND QUALIFICATION, VITACIO ix o duly organized, validly
existing corporation i good stending under the lawe of its jurisdiction of incorpermtion aud hias afl reguitite corporate
et nesid antharite in own sl onerale s oronerties and sssets. to lease ite probarties and 10 Carry on iy busiiess 43
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now conducted. VITACIG owns or possesses in the operation of its business all franchises, livenses, permits,
cetificates, consents, approvals, waivers, snd ofher authorizations, governmental or otherwise, which are necessiry
for 1Lt couduey its sl 03 now ducted.

SECTION .2 EXECUTION AND PERFORMANCE OF AGREEMENT, VITACICH bas all requisite corporate
power and authority to exceute ond deliver this Agreement and to perforn: its respective ferms.

SECTION 6.1 BINDING ORLICATIONS, DUE AUTHORIZATION. Subject ta the approval of its shareholders,
shis Agreement constitutes 2 valid, legal, and binding obligation of VITACIG, entorcenble against it in aseordance
with its terms, except as cafoncement may be limfted by applicable bankiuptey, insolvency, ov similar faw, or by
genenml principies of equity. The execution, delivery, and porformance of this Agreement and the transactions
coutemplated thereby have been duly and validly autharized by the board of direvtors of VITACIG.

SECTION 6.4 ABSENCE OF VIOLATIDNS, VITACH: is nat (i) in violation of its bylaws, (i} in violation of any
applicable federl, state, or local law or ardinance or ay arder, rule, or reguintion of oy federn], stale, Jocal, or other
govemmental agency or body, (i) in vielation of or in defult with respect o any order, writ, injunction, or decree of
any court, or auy ordes, ficense, regulstion, or demand of any governmental agency; {iv) in vickstion of sty term of
sy seeurity apresment, mortgage, indenture, or any other contreet, agreeiment, instrument, lease, ot certificate, and
YITACIG has net recetved any claim or notice of viclation,

SECTION 6.5 ABSENCE OF DEFAULT. Nove of the exceution or the delivery of this Agreement, the

tion of the U iong contamplaicd hereby, or the enmplianca with or fulfillment of the terms hereof will
conflict with, oF result in & breach of sy of the ferms, conditions, or provisions of, or constitite & defanlt mnder the
organizations] documents of bylaws of VITACIG. None of such cxcoution, consemmation, or fufillment will (o)
confliet with, or result in a materizl breach of the iexms, conditions, or provislons of, or constibate & material violation,
conflict, ar defaull undet, or give rise to ony right of termisation, cancaliation, or acceleration with respect to, or result
in the creation of any lien, charge, o encunbrance upon, any of the property or assefs of VITACIG pursuant to sty
rmaterkal agreement ov instrument under which it is obligated or by whivh any of its properties ot asseis may be boand,
including without limitetiot any mataris! lease, sonivact, morigage, promissory tate, lomy, eredif amangsinent of other
cominitment pe prvangement of it in respect of which it is an obtigor,

SECTION 6.6 SUBSIDIARIES, VITACIG does not have sny direct or indirect subsidiarics and does not divectly ot
indireedy own, control, or hold, with the powsr (o vote, any shaves of the capital stock of imy entity (including, without
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limiitation, corporations, paitncrshipy, snd joint ventures), Thare are no owstanding subscriptions, options, warcanis,
convertible securitics, calis, commitments, o agreements calling for or requiring she fssoanve, tansfer, sale, or othed
disposition of aey shares of the capitat stock of VITACIG. There are no other direet or indiveel sbsidiaries of
VITACIG thal would be or are required ta be consolidased or aceounted for en the equity method in the consoiidated
financinl statemants of VITACIA prepared in acenmdunce with genevally accepted accouating nrinciples.

SECTION 6.7 CAFITAL STRUCTURE.

(8} The sutharkzed capital stock of VITACKS consisls of 2,000,000,000 skaies of VITACIO Common Stack
having & par vahue of $0.0001 per share, of which, as of the date of this Agreement, 555,651,683 shates have
been duly lssucd and are validly owtslending, fully pald, and non-asscssble and are held by
{621 | shareholdore of recacd. These shares of VITACIG Common Sinck are the only voting secutities of
VITACIC suthorized, issued, or oulstanding s of such date; and there are no outstanding sulsseriptions,
nptions, warrents, convertiole sscuritics, calls, commitinests, agreements or rights, including precmptive
rights, calling for or requiring the isswance, transfer, sale, or other disposition of any shetes of the capital
sock of VITACIG. No shares of VITACIG Comunon Stock ure held as ireasury sharcs. None of the
VITACLO Comumoen Stock 1% subject fo any restrictions upon the fransfer thereol under the terms of the
nrtiches of ibeokporation or bylaws of VITACIG.

(5} Az of the date hereof, o the bast of he knowtedge of VITACIG, and excapt for this Agrocment, there are no
sharebolder sgreomenis, or oer agreements, widerstendings, or comimitineats relating to the right of uay
tudder or beneficial owner of any issugd and outstanding shares of VITACIG Commun Stock te vete ot to
dispose of Tus, her or ity shares of VITACIS Common Sock.

SECTION 6.8 ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION, BYLAWS, AND MINUTE BOOKS. VITACIG has
grovided MALBCON with all known, true, sorrect and complete copios of all of the cedificates or trticles of
incorporation and all amendeients 10 i, and the hylaws, as amended, of VITACIG, All minute books contzin aocurate
minutes of all meetings and accurate consents in lieu of mestings of the board of divectors {and any boerd commitize}
and of the shereholders of VITACIG since inception. All minle books accurately reflect afl transactions referred to
in such minutes and consents in Jicu of mectings and disclose all material cotporate actions of tw sharcholders and
boards of directars of VITACIG and all committees thereof, Tixcept s reflected in such minute books, thete ere no
nfnutes of iwectings or consents in lew of meetings of the board of directors (or board any committer) or of
sharshoiders of VITACIE known te the Bonrd of Directors that kava not been disclosed to SELLERS.




SECTION 6.9 BOOKS AND RECORDS, The Gooks nnd records of VITACIG faltly refleot the trensrctions to
wihtich it is & party or by which ils propertics are subject or bound. To the Board of Directors’ best knowledie, such
books and records have been properly kept and mainteined and are in compliancs in Al material mspeets with all
applicable accounting and legal requiremants,

SECTION .18 CONTRACTS, COMMITMENTS, ETC. If there sre eny, VITACIG huy made ovailable to
MALECON:

(@) All contracts, agresments, plans or other arrangements applicable o smployess, officers, or directors of
VITACHG, including compensation, bonus, stock option, stock purchass, medieal, disability, group iife ot
other surinee plane, and sny other remunerafion or fringe benefit arangements.

{b) Al imarerial comracts, agrocmenis, leascs, morigages, nnd commitments to whish YITACIG i u party or
may be bound; or, if any of the same be oral, true, accurate, and complete wiitten susnmartes of 2l sueh oral
contracts, agreemenis, leases, mortgages, mnd commilmenty.

{e} All contracts, agresments, loases, mortgnges, and commitments, whether or not material, 1o which VITACIG
fa a party or may bo bound and which require the congant or approval of third parties to the execution and
delivery of this Agresment cr to the constiminstion or performance of any of the tranzactions contemplated
thereby or, I any of tw sume be oral, tue, acowste, and complote willion summarics of all such vk
cantracts, agreements, leases, mortgrges, and cammitments,
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(&) All deads, leases, cuntiacts, agresments, Morigapes, and commitmends, whether or not matetial, o which
VITACHD is & party or may be bound and which relate to land, buildings, fixres, o othey real property.

{e} Al federal, state, and Jocal tax renuns, inchiding any amerded returns, filed by VITACIG,

SECTION 611 MATERIAL CONTRACT DEFAULTS. All contrncts, apreemionts, leases, wmortgngss, or
commitments referred to above i soction 6.1 ave vafid and b full foroe and offect on this date, As of the date of this
Agreement and as of fhe Effective Date, neither VITACIG nor its subsidiaries will be i default in any material rospeot
under oy material contract, commitment, arcangement, lease, insurance policy, of ¢ther instramant to which {tisa
party of by which its assets, business, or operations may be bound or affected or under which it o its assets, business,
or operations receive benefits; and thete hay not occurred any event that with the lapse of time of the giving of notice
or both would constitute such o defoui.

ARTICLE ¥1I

COVENANTS OF VITACIC
VITACIG covenants and agress as follows:

SECTION 7.1 RIGHTS OF ACCESS. From this date to the Etfective Date, VITACIG will give to MALECON and
to te represcntatives, including ks certified public pccountsnts Nl access during normat business hours to all of the
property, documents, contracts, books, wnd records of VITACIG, end such information with respect bo ifs business
afTivs i propertics as MALECON frosm lime fo time may reasonably request.

SECTION 7.2 EXTRAORDINARY TRANSACTIONS. Withoaf the prior written conssnt of MALECON,
YITACIG will nol, on or after the date of this Agreentent: (a} declare or pay any cosh dividends or propesty dividends
with respect to sny elass of its capital stack; (b} declare or distribute any stock dividend, authotize 2 stack split, or
authorize, issve or make any distribution of #s cepltal stock or any other secuitics or grant any optlons 10 acyuire such
addifional scourities; (¢} either (i) merge into, consolidats with, o sell or etherwise dispose of its assets to any other
corporatinn o pereon, of enter o any other transaction or agree to effeet any other transection not ia the ordinary
courge of its business oxaept ne explicitly contemplated herein, or (i} sngage in any discussions concering such 3
possible trensaction except a8 explicitly contempinted herein unless the board of directors of VITACIG, based upon
the advice of logal coansel, detctininey i good faith tha such action in requived for the boavd of direstoss to comply
with its fidustary duties to stockholders imposed by Taw; (d) convert the form of entity of VITACIG from ibat in
existence on the date of this Agreement to any other form of entiy; () make any ditect or indirect redeniption,
purchase, or other acquisition of any of iie capitel stock; (f) except in the erdinary courss of its business or 1o
accomplish the Ganssetions contemploted by this Agresineat, incur any Hiability or obligation, make any conunitment
ot disbursement, acquire or dispose of any property or asset, make any contrac! or sgresment, pay or become ohligated
to pay any legal, accounting, or miscellaneous ofher cxpense, or engage in sny lramsuction; (g) other than in the
otclinary cotrse of busincss, subject any of its propertics of assets to any len, claim, chatge, option, of enconbmanee;
(i1} £ner intG oY 2SSUME any orie oF moYe cofmimitments to make capital expenditures, suy of which individually excerds
20,000 or which in the aggregate excesd $50,000; (i) except for increases in the crdinary course of business in
accordance with past practices, amd except as explicitly couteinpiated by this Agrecment, incrense the rate of
compensation of any employee or enler into any agreement to incroase the rate of compensation of any cmployee; 1)
excopt as otherwise required by law, crente or modify nny profit sharing plan, honus, doferred compensation, death
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termination pay beneflt or any other finge beneflt; (k) snier into any cmployment or pemonzt servises contrat with
any person or firm, except diroctly to favilitele the transactions conternplated by this Agreswent; nor (1) changs the
nature or ineresse the concentration of risk of ivestinerts and of engh and cash equivalents,

SECTION 7.3 PRESERVATION OF BUSINESS. VITACIG will {n) carry on ils business and manage its sasels
s proportics diligently and snhstantially in the same imanner o8 heretofore; () use commereially reasanabic offorts
o continue in effect its prosont insurance coverage on all properties, assets, business, and personnel; {¢) use
commercially reasonable effons to preserve its business organization inteql, te keep available its present employses,
and t preserve its present relationships with all those entities having business dealings with it; {d) not do unything
#nd pot feil to do anythiug which will cavse & breach of or default in my contract, agreement, commitment, of
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aobligation to which it is a party ot by which it may be bound; srd (o) conduct its affairs so that st the Eifsctive Dale
none of its represehiatlons and wirrantiss will be inaccurate, o 0 its Covenauts and wgE ts will b breached,
and po condition in this Agresmant will reminin unfulfilled by reason of its actions or amissions,

SECTION 7.4 AFRILIATES. VITACIG will fornish 1o MALBCON e fisl of all persony known 1o VITACIG who at

the date of this Agreement may be desmed 1 be “afilistey” of VITACIG within the mesning of Rule [43 under the
Securities Actof 1333,

SECEION 7.5 FURCHASE METHOD TREATMENT, VITACIG witl nke no action tiat would prevent or inpeds
the Share Bxchange from qualifying a5 o reverse scquisition vndes the purchase method for business combinations.

SECTION 7.6 UPDATED SCHEDULES. Not foss than lifleen business days prior to the Effeetive Date and 49 of
the Effective Date, VITACIG will defiver to MALEGON any updates tu the schedules fo its representations which
wnay be vequired 1o discloss evems oF circumstances arising after this date, Suck sehedules will be updsted only for
the purpose of making the representations and wartanties contained in this Agresment to which such part of such
schedules mdate frue and correct i all matstial vespocty os of the date such schedule is updated, and the updaied
schedule will not have the cffect of making ony ropresenkstion or wartanfy confained in tis Agrsement true md
corteet in oll material vespects as of a date prior to the date of such updated schedule. For purposes of detormining
whether the conditions set forth in section 4,1 10 MALECON's obligations have boen met, any such updnted schedules

detivered to MALECON will be disregarded unless MALECON will have agreed to accept any changes reflocted in
such updated schedules.

SECTION 7.7 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS. Until the Effective Dute, VITACIS will intnedintely advise MALECON
in a detsilerd written notice of any fact or necumence or sy pending or threatenad occurrence of which it obteing
Kknowledge and which {if existing and known at L date of the crecution of this Agresment) would have been required
to be zet Forth or disdlosad in of parsuant to this Agreement of whish (if existing and knowh at any time prior to or o
the Effective Date) would cause s contdition 10 MALECON s abligations under this Agreement not to be fally satisfied,

ARTICLE ViII

MALECON, by and through SELLERS, represents and warrants to VITACIG we follows:

SECTION 8.1 ORGANIZATION, POWERS, AND QUALIFICATION, MALECOM Is aduly organized, validly
sxisting Himited Hability company i pood standing wnder the laws of its judsdiction of incorporation and has all
requisite corparate povesr and authorily to own end operate its property and assats, to lense properties nsed in its
bugineys, and o earry on it business as aow conduectsd. MALECON owns of possesses in the operation of its business
all francitises, licenses, permirs, cattificates, consents, approvaly, weivers, and other authorizations, govemmentsl or
atherwise, which are necessary for il to eonduct its business as now sonducied,

SECTION 8.2 EXECUTION AND PERFORMANCE OF AGREEMENT, MALECOMN has all tequisite corporatc
powor and authority to execute and deliver this Agresmant and to porform iis respective tenms.

SECTION 8.1 BINDING OBLIGATIONS, DUE AUTHORIZATION, Subject to fhe approwal of its members,
this Agreenen constitutos ¢ valid, legal, and binding obligation of MALECON, enforceable agpinst it in 2csordance
witht Ity tevms, except as enforcement may bo limited by appicabls bankruptay, inselvency, ot cimiler law, or by
genetal principles of equity. The board of directors of MALECON has validly authorized the execation, delivery, aud
performance of this Agreameni and the wansactions contemplated by il

SECTION 54 ABSENCE OF DEFAULT. None of the exccution or the delivery of this Agresment, the
sonnummation of the tmosactions sontemploted by it, o the compliance with or fulfillment of its terms will conflict
with, or rosult in a beesch of any of the torms, conditions, or provisions of, or constitute a defeclt under the
organizational decwments ot bydaws of MALECON. None of sweh execution, consummaiion, or fulfillment will
confiict with, or result in @ material breach of the terms, conditions, o provisions of, ov constitute & material violation,
canflicy, ar defunlt nnder, or give rise fo any right of termination, canceliation, or sceeheralisn with respect te, of result




W A

int the creation of any lien, charge, or encumbrence upon, suy of the proparty or sesets of MALECON pursuaut te any

mwterial agreement or instrument under which it is obligated or by which any of its properties or assets nuy be brund,
inciuding without limitation any material lease, contract, mortgage, promissory nols, deed of trust, loan, cradit
Rrnngeimont, of slber commitivent of arrangement of it in respeet of which it is an obligor.

SECTION 8.2 CAPITAL STRUCTURE.

{a) The ownorship of MALECON as of the date of this Agreement consists of | shereholder of MALECON
holding XXX shares having been duly issued and are validiy owstanding, fulty poid and non-assessabie, book
entry membership interests, These membership intercsts of MALECON are the only equity securities of
MALECON authorized, fssued, or cutstanding as of the dute of this Agresment. There are no outstanding
subseriptionz, options, wartante, converlible securitiod, calls, commitments, agreements or rights, incieding
proemptive rights, calling for or requiring the issuance, transfer, sule, or oiher disposition of any shares of
fhe eopital stock of MALRCON.

(b

=

Az of the date hergof, to the best of the knowledge of MALECON, and cxcept for tis Agrecinent, thers s
no sharsholder agreements, or oiher agreements, understandings, or commiitnents relating to the right of any
helder or bensficial owner of any issued and owtstanding shares of MALECON Common Stock 1o voie or (o
diapoge of his, hev or its shares of MALECON Common Stock.

SECTION 8.6 BOOKS AND RECORDS, The bocks and records of MALECON fkirly refllect the bnesaciions i
which it is a purty or by which its properties are subjeet or bound. Such books and reords have been property kept
aud maintained and are in compliance in all inaterial rospocts with all applicable nocounting snd legel teguirisents.
MALECON folows generally aecented noroanting principles applisd ob a consisint basis in the preparation and
meintenancs of its books of accownt id financinl statements, inclnding vsing the secrunl method of sceounting for
sl itema of incoms aud cupense. MALECON has mads sl ucerials in smounte that acowrately report income and
expeitse in the proper periods in accordance with generatly accepted accounting prineiples. MALECON has filed afl
material reports and retims reguired by any kaw o7 regulation 1w e {lied by i

SECTION 8.7 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, MALECON has fumished to VITACEG its balance sheet as of esch
of 2014 and 2015 and interim financial statements throngh the first quarter of 2016, md its relefed statements of
opatations, changes in stockholdery’ equity and cash flows for each of the fiscal year periods then ended, and its notes,
mnd its consolidated uneudited belance shaer as of April 20, 2016 and its rolated vnmdited consolidutd sintanenis of
operations, changes in stockholders' equity aud cash flaws for the nine montly period then ended (the “MALECON
Interim Financial Statemenrs”) (collectively, the "MALECOM Finencial Stalements™). All of ihe MALECON
Financial Staternents, including the related notes, (4) were prepared in asccordance with gencrally accepied accounting
principlea (“GAAP™) consistontly spplied in all materinl rospeots {subjeet, in the case of the MALECON luterim
Financial Statements, to tecurring eudit adjustmants normal in mature ued amount), (b) are in sccordance with the
bocks 2nd records of MALECOMN, (o) fubrly reflect the consohdsted financinl position of MALECOMN as of such dates,
and the consalidated resulls of operations of MALECON for the pedods endded on such dates, snd do nat fail to
disciose any material extmordinary or out-of- period fems, MALECON represents and warrsnts that its fimncial
statenents are prepared sefficiently to ensble A PCADD fisted sudit frm (o prepaie ol express on opinion tereon
and to apree with MALECON that s financial staterments are prepared according to GAAP and appear to be free from
material misstalement,

SECTION 3.8 ARTICLES OF QUGANIZATION, OPERATING AGREEMENT, AND MINUTE BOOKS.
MALECON hus provided VITACIO with wus, correst and complete coples of all of MALECON's articles of
organization, the opersting tgreement, and all omendmonts to gich documents, and the minute books. All minute
books contain accurate minutes of all meetings and zceviate conseivts in lisn of meetings o the bpard of direetors (ad
sy board committee) and of the members of MALEDON since its inceplion. ANl minute bocks accurately reflect all
transactions referred o dn such minutes and consents i licu of mectings and disclose all material corporate actions of
the shareholders wnd boards of diveetors of MALECON und all hoard comnmittees. Excopt ag refiected in such minute

books, there are no minutes of meotings or conteite in Hew of meslings of the board of directors (or nny commiftes
thereat) or of sharcholdens of MALBCOM,

SECTION 8.9 ABSENCE OF CERTAIN BEVELOPMENTS. Since May 26, 2016 there has been (3} no Matorial

%_ QQ Pago 8 of 16




Adverse Effeel with respect to MALECON, (b) o materia} deciense in the vadue of the sssets of MALECON ig) ro
snaterial increase in the level of liabitities of MALBCON. Since May 20, 2016 MALECOM has contucied it business
only in the ordinary sovwrse of such business ahd consistant with past practice,

SECTION 8,10 DISCLOSURE, Mo reprosentation or watranty inchuded in this and no cectificate, statement. or atlier
documont delivered by MALECON lereunder of in connection with this Agreement or any of the mensactions
contemplated thereunder contains any unitrue sistement of a material fict or oimits lo stete & material fact necessanry in
ceder 1o make the statements contained herein, in light of the cirenmelances under which they wero e, not
snisieading “There is no et known to MALECOMN that might materially advessely affect its business, as3ets, liabilitics,
financial condition, reeulla of aperationy, ar prospects fhat has not been disclosed in the MALECON Finnacial
Stataments or & certificate, schedule of other document delivered by MALECON w VITACICG. Copies of all
documeme delivered 1o VITACHD by MALECON undor this Agresmenl are kus, correet, and complete copies theroof
and include all amendments, rupplemeats, and modifications thereto and ofl waivers thereundor.

ARTICLE IX
COVENANTE OF MALECON
MALECON, by and through Andrey Solovyoy, covenants aixd 1580 as follows:

SECTION 9.1 RIGHTS OF ACCESS, From this date o the Effective Date, MALECON will glve to VITACIG and
10 ite representatives, including their certificd publio accountants, rensoneble access during normel business hours
vpon reasenable advance notics to all of the property, documents, sontracts, books, and records of MALECOMN, il
such ifornation with tespeot to ite business affuirs and propertien as VITACIG from e to time mey reasonably
request, and VITACIG will be furnished with copies of all sach books, vecords, aeements stnd other documents as
may be reasonably requested by it In connection with such investigation, VITACIO will also ba pormilted to speak
with such officers, directors, baukers, ereditors, lessses, lessors, custouers, shateholders, and litigation veunsel of
MALECON a8 VITACIG may speeify.

SECTION 9.2 RESERVED,

SECTION 9.3 PRESERVATION OF BUSINESS, MALECON will: (8) carry on its business and manage its assets
and praperty diligently and substanitalty i the same MANIST 38 wag done previvusly; (b) use commersially rensongble
efforis to continee in effect it present insurance coverage on all property, assels, business, and personnel; {c) use
sommercially reasonable efforts 1o preserve its business arganizalion intach, to keop available s present cmployeas,
and 1o presefve its presant relationehips with those entities having business dealings with it; (d} not do auything and
uot fail to do anything which will cavse n breach of or default in any contosct, agresment, gommmifment, or obligation
to wiiicl it it @ party or by which it may be bound; sad (e} condust its affairs so thit ut fhe Effestive Date none of itg

ations and warinties will bo inscourste, none of its covenants and agreements will be brepched, and no
condition in this Apreement will remain nnfulfitled by roason of its actions or bmissions.

SECTION .4 SHAREHOLDERS' MEETING, Usless a eajority of shareholders will provide their written
consant, MALECOM will hold o meating of iis members in sccordance with the laws of the siate of Tlorids aud the
opersling agreement of MALECON to congider and voto upon this Agreement, Bubject to iz fiduciary duoly o
memhers, the managers of MALECON will recunmnond 1o its mesmlers that this Agreement be adopted.

SECTION 9.5, SUBSEQUENT EVENTS. Until the Effective Date, MALECUMN will fnuncdiately advise VITACIC
in 7 dotailed written notice of any Tact ov occrrrense or any pending of threntened cecumenca of which it obiaing
knowledge and which (i cxisting and keown at the date of the execution of this Agreement) would have beea required
toho set Fortl oF diselozed in of pursant 1o this Agresment or which {if existing and knowa a1 the thne of the Effective
Diate) would cause a condition to VITACIG's obligstions under this Agteement not o b= fully satisfied.

SECTION 0.6 UPDATED SCHEDULES. Not fess than fifteca business days priot 1o the Effective Date and ds of
the Effective Date, MALECON will deliver to VITACIG any updates 1 W2 sphadules w its represchtations which
Ay be equited to disciose evonts of circumstances arising after the date hereof. Such schedules will be updated only
for the purposs of making the representations and warrantics contained in this Agresmes! 1o which such part of such
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schedules relate troe and cusrect i all matevial rovpetts a5 of the date such schedule is wpdated, and the wpdated
schedule will not have the effect of moking any tepresentation or warmsty contained by this Agrosinient ttue ard
correct in all marerial respects as of 4 dete prior to the dare of such updatod schedule, For purposcs of determining
wwhather the conditions set forthin seetion 4.1 to MALECON s obligations heve heen met, any such uiaied schodules
dntivared to VITACIG will be disreporded unless VITACHG will have agroed to accept any changes reflected in auch
updated schedules,

SECTIONY,7 RESERVED.
SECTION X
CIOJING
SECTION 10,1 PLACE AND TIME OF CLOSING, Closing witl taks place at the affiees of ot tha place and time

ns mutwatly agreed upon by the Parties, on the date of the Bifective Date, provided that ali conditions precedont fo fhe
obligations of the partics to ¢loae have then been mek or waived.

SECTION XI

SECTION 1.1 TERMINATION BY REASON OF LAPSE OF TIME. ‘This Agresment may be lerminated by
any party affer June 30, 2016, by iestrument duly suthorized and excouted pnd delivered o the other pasty, wniess the
Effactive Thate will have ocourted.

SECTION 1.2 GROUNDE FOI TERMINATION. ‘thiz Agresmant may be termingted by wrillen nolice of

termination 2t any time heiore the Effective Date {whether before or after action by stackbolders of VITACIG ar
MALECON):

23 by mutual copsent of the parties hereto;

{6) by MALECON, upon written notice to VITACKS given at any time {i} if any of the representutions and
worrazties of WITACIG vonteined i Article V1 shove was materially incorvect when mads, or (it} in the
event of a material breach or material failure by VITACIG of any covenant or agreement of VITACIG
contained i tiris Agresment that has not been, or carnot be, sused within tharty days after writton notics of
such breach ov failues is given to VITACIG, and which inaccurscy, breach, of failure, if continued 1o the
Effective Date, would result in any condition set forth in Article IV above not being satisfied;

(6} by VITACIG, upon witten notice to MALBCON given at atry tiwe (i) if any of the reprosentations,
waraitics, ur sevenants of MALECON contained in Articles V1II or IX sbove was materially incorruct when
made, or (ii} in e event of a materis] braach or raaterial failure by MALRCON of any covenant of agreset
of MALECON contained in Hig Agreement that has aot been, or cannot be, cured within thitty days pfter
written notice of such hreach or Gailure is given o MALECON, and which inacewracy, broach, of faiture, if
continued to the Effeetive Date, woubd result in any condition set fordh in Article ¥ above not being satlsfied;

and

{d) by cither MALECON or YITACIG upon writlen noties given to the other if the shareholdess of either
MALECON or VITACIG witl have voted oa and failed to adopt this Agreement, at the meeting of such
shareholders called for such purpose.

SECTION 113 EFFECT OF TERMINATION, Tn the cvent of the termination and abatdonment of this Agreement
pussunt to the provisions of soctian 11,1 or section 11.2, this Agreemont will hisome viid and have no foree or effect
without any Hability oo the pert of MALECON, VITACIG, ortheir respective direotors or officers or shareholders, 1
respect of this Apreement. Motwithstanding ihe foregoing, a8 provided in seokion 12.4 of thiy Agresment, the
confidentiality agrecment contained in that section will survive such termination.
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SECTION [L4 WAIVER OF TERMS OR CONDITIONS. Any of the terms or onditions of this Agreement, fo
the extent lepally permitied, may be waived at any time prior to the Effective Date by the pary which is, or whos
sharsholdess nre, entitled 1o the beneht fhereof, by action taken by that party, by the buard of directors of such party,
o by its cliirman, or by its president: provided that such waiver will be in writing and will be tken caly if, in e
judgment of the purty, board of divectors, or officer taking sueh netion, such waiver will nol have o materially adverse
wffect on the benefits intended hereunder 10 it or to the shareholders of its or his corporation; and the other parties

hereto may rely on the delivery of such & waiver & conclupive evidence of such judgmunt and. the validity of the
wadver,

S ] L e




SECTHON 11.5 AMENDMENT. Anything berein of gisgwhere (0 e CONMALY NOTWRDIANDUIE, W G0 DAL
permitted by faw, this Agresment and the oxliibits hereto may be amended, supplemented, or interpreted arany time
prior to the Bffective Diate by written instrumsnt anly duly auihorized aml exeeuted by ench of the parties herato:
provided, however, that {excepl us specificnily provided herein of as may be approved by such sharcholders) this
Agresment may not be atnended after:

{a) the action by sharcholders of VITACIC in any yespect that would change (i) the amount or kind of shares,
obligations, cath, properdy, or rights to be recaived in excheuge for or on conversion of the VITACIG
Coramon Stock; (1) any term of the certificate of ncorporation of MALECON to be effected by the Shore
Exchange; or (il any of the terms and sonditions of this Agreement if the change wonild ndversely affect the
shareholders of VITACIG, or

(b

=

the ection by members of MALECON in any respect thet would change (i) the amount er kind of shares,
obligations, cash, property, or rights to be received in exchange for the MALECON Common Slock to be
delivered fn the Share Exchunges (i) any term of the certificate of incarporation of MALECON to be effected
by the Shave Exchange; ov (iif} any of the terms and conditions of this Agreement if the change would
addvesely affeot the sharcheldos ol MALECOHN,

ARTICLE XII
GESERAL PROVISIONS

SECTION 12.1 ALLOCATION OF COSTS AND EXPENSES. Excopt as provided in Article 1X, ench party will
pay its own foes and expenses, including withost lmitetion the fees and expenses of ita owi counzel and itz owh
accountants and tax advisers, tncurred in connection with this Agrepnieat and the transactions contemplated by it

SECTION 122 MUTUAL COOPERATION. Subjcel to the lenns and conditions herein provided, each party will
use its best offorts, and witl vooparute fully with the other party, in expoditiously corrying out the provisions of s
Agreement and in expeditionsly making all filings and obtaining all necessary appravals, and as soon a8 practicable
will execute and deliver, or cause to be excouted and delivered, such notifications and additional docwnents and
instruments and do or causc to be done &} additiona] Mings necessury, propet, or advissble under applicebls law to
constnmate and make effective on the zarliest practicable date the transactions contemplated hereby.

SECTION 12.3 FORM OF PUBLIC DISCLOSURES, MALECON aud VITACIG will mutually apree in advance
upon the form and dubstance of all public disclosures conceming this Agresnient aud the trangactions contemplated
by it and will ot issuc amy such public disclarute prior to such conzultation, except that VITACIG in its sole diserction
wil! dotermine the content of all SRC filings required o be filed through the Bffective Date. As for all other disclosures,
sppraval by MALECON of VITACIG of such public diselosure witl not be unrcasonably withheld.

SECTION 12.4 CONFIDENTIALITY, MALECON and YITACIG will uss ali information tha! each obtaing from
the other porsuant o this Agreement solely for the effectustion of the tansactions contempiated by this Agresment or
for other pupotes consistent with the intent of this Agreement. Neither MALECON nor VITACIG will use any of
suel nformution for any othor putpose, including, without fimitstion, the sompstitive detriment of any other pacty.
MALECON and VITACIG will muintait ag strictly confidential al informetion each of them leams Irom the oiber
and will, st any time afier termination of this Agrecment in accordance with iis tenns, upon lhs request of the other,
retam promptly to it all documentation provided by it or made available to thitd pastics. Each of the partios may
disclose such information to its vespective affilizles, cownsel, accountanty, tix adyisers, and consulfants, provided that
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such partiss are advised of the sonfidentlal natue of such infoumation and agree lo be bound by the terms of this
gection 12,4, The confidentiality naresment contained i this section 12.4 will romaty operative and in (i force aud
affect, and wiil snrvive the termination of this Agrecinent,

SECTION 12.5 STANDARD OF MATERIALITY AND OF MATERIAL ARVERSE EFFECT

{a) Forpurposos of Articles [¥, V1, and VIT of this Agreement, the terms “matenial” mnd “materinlly,” when seed
with reference o items normally expressed in dollars, will be deained to refer to smotints individually and in
the apgregate in oxcess of 3% of the shareholders' cquity of VITACIG 28 of May 26, 2016, as determined in
secordnaies with pgenemliy acospled nocounting principles,

by Por purposcs of Articles V, V1T, and 1X of this Agreemaent, the lerng “ragterial” end “materially," when used
with referetie 10 ifems normaily cxpressed in dottars, will be deomed to rofer to nmotnts individually and in
the agaregate in exccss of 3% of the members” cquity of MALECON a3 of May 26, 2016, a3 determined in
accordance with generally accepied accounting principles,

{6} The term “Matecial Adverss Bffoct” whersver used in this Agreement will mean, with respect to & patty, a
raaterinl adveres sffect on the business, resuliz of operations, financial condirion, incloding the market value
of any of the assets, or prospests of such party and its asbsidiories taken oua whate.
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will ba deemed to constitwle sn arigwl, but such counterparts topother will be deemed t¢ be one and the same
instrumient and o become effective when one or more counterparts have been signed by cach of the parties. Jt will not
bo nescssury in making proof of this Agresment or sny eounterpart hereof to producs or account for the other
cotnterpatt.

SECTION 12,7 ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agregment sets forth the entire understanding of the panies liertia
with respect to thelr commitments Lo each other and their undesiakings vis-d-vis each other on the subyoct maier
hereof. Any previous agresments or understandings among tha parties regarding the subject matter hormof are merged
into and superseded by this Agreement. Nothing in this Aprecment express or implied is intended or will be constred
Lo confer upon or fo give Gy peracs, other than MALECON, VITACKES, aud their respective shareholders, any rights
or remedies under ov by veason of this Agreement.

SECTION 12.8. SURVIVAL OF REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES, AND COVENANTS. Noue of the
representations, warranties, covenants, and agrecments in his Agreement or in any instrument defjvered pursimm o
this Agreement, will survive the Bifective Date, except for sections 124 and 12,6, and thoso otlier covenants and
agresments contained Lorein and Herein which by their terms apply in whole or in part after the Effective Dale.

SECTION 12,0 SECTION HEADINGS, This Apreement's seotion and subsection headings in huve been inserted
fou conveniencs of Fefersuce only amd will in no way modify or resutot any of the torma ot provisions.

SECTION 12.10 NOTICES.

{a) All notices, consents, waivers, or other communications which aye required or permitied herewnder will be
I writing end deemed to lmve been duly given if delivered personally or by messenger, sent by Frostemle, or
by registersd or certificd mail, retumn receipt requested, pustage propaid, of by a reputable delivety service
(melnding, by way of exampie and not limitation, Federat Express, UPS and DHL}) which makes & record of
the g?g? and time of delivery. Alt conaunications will be addressed to the appropriate address of each parly
as [ollows:

rosns D921 ALTON ROWD SJU1TE 2]
MifrMmy BEREH, €1 1353:\{0 >

ifte VITACHG: 4375 Watermitl Dr.

Crennge Park, FL 32073
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{b) For purposcs of notice, the address of each Party wilt be the address fivst sst Forth above; providesd, liowsver,
that sach Party will have the right 1 changs its respeetive nddvess for netices hersundos 1o another focation
by giving fon duys advance writton natice to the ather Party in the manner set forth above.

{c} All such notices will be deetmed to huve bevn given on the date delivered, trangmitied, or mailed in the manner
provided sbove.

SECTION 12.11 CHOICE OF LAW, This Apreement will be govarned by, construed, and enforced in accordance
with tho laws of the Stale of Flotida, withow giving effect lo the principles of conflict af law thareof. Each of the
parties ngrees thal it mey be served with process in sy sclion with respect to this Agreement or the tmusactions
canteriplated By it by certifted or registered winll, velsen receipt requesied, o to its registered ngent for service of
peocess in the Staie of Florids, respeclively.

SECTION $1.12 KNOWLEDGE OF A PERSON, Reforonces in this Agreement 10 the kuowledge of a party will
ean, in the case of a corporation, the avtual knowledge passessed by the present exceutive officers of such party.

SECTION 113 BINDING AGREEMENT. This Agreesent will be binding upon the partics and their respective
heirs, successors and nssigns.

THE PARTIES, INTENDING TO BE LEGALLY BOUND, have cxecuted this sgreemont on the data fitst set forthy

above,

“YITACIG™ YSELLERS™: "
Vitacig, Inc. g -

& Mevadn corporation By:

iy = Mame: Al

Vi Voenioea SIhadw el Numberof Sheves Held: 1 ug

Title: Ced
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Sharchotder
LX Retil Group, Inc.
TOTAL

*Mutvenst Phatisey, Ine and iy shar

"

EXHIBIT A
MALECON SHAREHOLDERS

Poreuptogo Ownership®  Shaves fo Be Recelved

HiH%
100%

banad I o percenbiges axuising FO0 shmves fivhen i folel.

575,000,000
E75,000,000



Puge 14 of 18

EXHIBET A
INVES
Vitseig, Ine.
Laclies and Clentlemen:

In order to induce Vitaoig, Inc., » Nevads corporation (the “Company”}, to issug te e the ninber of shares of Vitaclg
Comiton Stock set forth opposite my sipnatare below (the "Securities”) in connection with the Share Exchange
Agreemeit botween the Company and MALECON PHARMACY, INC., T represent, warrant, and covenant s felfows:

(8) 1o purchasing the Seevrities for my own account for investinent only, snd not with a view io, or for sule i
cunnection with, ruy distribution of the Sceuritics in violation of the Scouritics Act of 1923 {the *Scouriticd
Act™), or any tule or regulation under the Securities Ach

(hy | have lied such opporiunity as I have deomed adequate to obizin feom representatives of the Company such
information as is necessary to permit me to evaluate the medts and risis of my investment in the Company.

(€) 1 have sufficicnt experiencs in business, finoncial, and investment matters 1o be abie to evaluate the tigks
tavelved it the purchase of the Scouritics and to muke an nfonmed livestmont decision with respect to such
prirchase,

{dy I ean afford a complete loss of the value of the Securities and am sble to bear the coonoimic risk of holding
such Securities for an indefinite period.

fa

p=

1 understand that; (i) the Securities heve not bosn regisiersd under the Securities Act and are “restricted
securities” within the meantng of Rule 144 ynder the Socurities A, (i) the Scouritics cannot be sobd,
transferred, or otherwize disposed of unless they are subsequently registered uader fhe Securithes Act or an
excmption from registeation is then available, (1if) in any event, the exemption from registration under Rule
144 or otherwize may nof be available foc at teast six months and even then will not be available unless &
public market then exists for the Seourities or comimon stock of the Company, adequate information
concerming the Comgpany s then available to the public, snd other termis and conditions of Rule 144 are
vomplied with, and (iv) there i now no regisization statement an file with the Securities and Exchange
Commission with respest to any stock of the Company and ths Compeny hos no obligation or Gurrent
intention to registor the Securities under the Scouvities Act.

) A legend substantialiy in the following form will be placed on the Secarities:

THE SECURITIES EVIDEMCED BY THIS CERTIFICATE HAVE NOT BEEN
PEGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933 OR ANY
APPLICABLE 8TATE LAW, AND NO INTEREST THEREIN MAY BE SOLD,
DISTRIBUTED, ASSIONED, OFFERED, PLEDGED OR OTHERWISE
THAMSFERRED UNLESS: (1} THERE 15 AN EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION
STATEMENT UNDER SUCH ACT AND APPLICARLE STATE SECURITIES
LAWS COVERING ANY SUCH TRANSACTION INVOLVING SAID
SECURITIES QR (1) THIS CORPORATION RECEIVES AN OPMMNION OF
LEGAL COUNSEI. FOR THE HOLDER OF THESE SECURITIES
(CONCURRED TN BY LEGAL COUNSEL FOR THIS CORPORATIOM}
STATING THAT SUCH TRANSACTION IS EXEMPT FROM
REGISTRATION OR THIS CORPORATION OTHERWISE SATISFIES
ITSELF THAT SUCH TRANSACTION IS EXEMPT FROM REGISTRATION,




Very truly yours,

\m Page 15 0f 16

Marme:

Mumber of shares;
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MASTER DISTRIBUTION AGREEMENT

THIS MASTER DISTRIBUTION AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) is made and cffective as of the 10% day of May
2015 (the “Effective Date™), by and among mCig, Inc. (*mCig™) and TustChill products, (“JustChill” and with mCig, the
“Parties”).

RECITALS

2% JustChill is a manufacturer of cbd oil that is marked in (at present) 1ml and .5ml prefilled tanks (the “Tanks",

each “Tank”) and other products listed in Exhibit “A”

B. mCig. Inc. intends to act as an exclusive Master Distributor of “All" Just Chill products.

B mCig and JustChill deem it to be in their best interests that memorialize their current and future sales and

distribution arrangement under the terms and conditions herein.

D. In consideration of the foregoing, the mutual covenants and agreements contained herein, and other good and
valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties hereto and

their respective heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns agree as follows:

INTRODUCTION.

A. Recitals, Attachments. The foregoing Recitals are true and correct and, with any attachments hereto, are hereby

incorporated by reference.

B. Supersede. This Agreement shall completely and entirely supersede any agreement or arrangement, whether oral
or writtcn, by or among the Parties with respect to any rights or obligations set forth in any document or

otherwise.

C. Purpose and Exclusivity. The Parties hereto agree that mCig will use best efforts Lo coordinate promote and
Master Distribute All products. The Parties Agree and acknowledge that only mCig is the sole and Master

Distributor and will sub-distributor to any existing accounts and distributors.
ARTICLE Il

TERMS AND CONDITIONS.

A, JustChill will provide all Products and Tanks to mCig pursuant to the following terms and conditions.

i. mCig and JustChill agree and acknowledge that all sales revenues for current and funure

products of JustChill will flow through mCig.

i mCig agrees that the average wholesale volume will not drop more than 50% from the prior
month. JustChill agrees to give 30-day notice with 30-day Right to Cure any distribution

volume issues or violations (60-day maximum).

ifi. JustChill agrees that if the Tank prices are adjusted to below Fiftcen Dollars ($15.00) per lml
Tank and of Nine Dollars ($9.00) per .5 ml Tank, mCig’s price will be adjusted to the new price
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and if the wholesale price is adjusted to below Fifteen Dollars ($15.00) per 1ml Tank and of
Wine Dollars ($9.00) per .5'ml Tank, mCig’'s price will be adjusted 1o the new price.

iv. m{ig will be responsible for packaging, online sales, and training their sales group.

V. The Parties agree that mCig will have the righis io pariicipate in any product trade show or
convention cvent attended by JustChill, in which mCig shall send a representative and be
permitted to demonstrate JustChill and mCig products and all Sales Leads will be forward to
mCig’s VP of Sales.

vi. mCig recognizes that JCP is an authorized Sub-Distributor falling under the management of
mCig. JustChill agrees that mCig shall receive $0.50 per Iml and $0.25 per .5ml bought by JCP,
paid on or before the 10th of every month for the previous calendar month's volume. JustChill
agrees and acknowledges that any JCP purchases will be managed and transacted through mCig
accounts as Master Distributor.

vil. JustChill agrees and acknowledges that mCig is a public company and all or part of this
Apreement and sales may be published in mCig’s filings with the Securities and Exchange
Commission.

viil Just Chill shall indemnify mCig (including its successor and assigns) and hold it harmless at all
times against and in respect of any and all damages, losses, liabilities, taxes and deficiencies,
plus penalties and interest thereon, costs and expenses, and atiorney's fees (whether in a court of
original jurisdiction or one or more courts of appellate jurisdiction) incurred by Buyer in
seftlement, judgment, curing or correcting, resulting from the sale of the Tanks.

ix. Additional Terms and products offered by JustChill 10 be added in to this agreement at a later
point in “Exhibit A™.

X In the event that JustChill Company or any and/or all product lines are bought by another
company, mCig contract transfers to buyer and mCig must also be bought out.

ETh mCig will pay JustChill products 30% of Net profit after expenses from all online sales revenues
of any products distributed to mCig for resale by JustChill products, paid on or before the 10th
of every month for the previous calendar momnth's revenues.

Xii. mCig has Right of First Refusal for all existing and future products created by JustChill
products.

B. mCig will use best cflorts to complete the order or amounts in invoices totaling a minimum of $80,000, for the

initial 5,000 Units on or before May 15, 2015 and an additional 5,000 Units or amounts in invoices totaling a
minimum an additional $80,000 (for an aggregate of $160,000) on or before June 1, 2015.

ARTICLE IT1

REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES AND COVENANTS.

Each party represents and warrants to the other Parties, where designated. on and as of the Effective Date hereof, as follows:

A. Authorization of Transaction. Fach party represents and warrants that such party has full power and authority,
to execute and deliver this Agreement and to perform its obligations hereunder. Each party represents and
warrants that this Agreement constitutes the valid and legally binding obligation of such party, enforceable in
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B.
G.

Al

B.

accordance with i1s terms and conditions, subject to applicable bankruptey, insolvency, moratorium and other
similar laws relating to the enforcement of creditor’s rights generally, the availability of equitable remedies, and
general equity principles.

Quality of Product. JustChill represents that cbd oil is equivalent to industry standards.

Disbursements. Disbursements shall be made as [ollows:

The net proceeds received by mCig will be distributed monthly to JustChill on a monthly basis (on. or before the
10% day of the following month).

The $0.50 per Iml and 80.25 per .5ml sold by JCP received by mCig, will be distributed monthly to mCig on a
monthly basis (on or before the 10% day of the following month).

ARTICLE IV

TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT.

This Agreement shall terminate on the earlier to occur of:

A.

B.

The written agreement of mCig and JustChill;

By mClig, at any time in their discretion, upon writien notice, if mCig determines that chd oil provided by
JustChill is not equivalent to industry standards or JustChill is prohibited or unable, for any reason te provide cbhd
oil or the Tanks.

Upon the termination of this Agreement, mCig will use best efforts to return any unsold Products to JustChill.

AR E

MISCELLANEOUS

Each party to this Agreement agrees to perform any further acts and execule and deliver any documents that may
be reasonably necessary to camry out the provisions of this Agreement.

The provisions of this Agreement may be waived, altered, amended or repealed, in whole or in part, only on the
written consent of mCig and JustChill, provided that any such amendment hereto does not diminish any rights
specified herein.

This Agreement shall be binding on, and shall inure to the benefit of, the Parties and their respective heirs, legal
representatives, successors and assipns.

. It is intended that each section of this Agreement shall be viewed as separate and divisible, and in the event that

any section shall be held to be invalid, the remaining sections shall continue to be in full force and effect.

All notices, requests, demands and other communications required or permitted under this Agreement shall be in
writing, and shall be deemed to have been duly given (1) on the date of delivery, it delivered personally, or sent
by facsimile by 3:00 p.m. local time at the place of delivery on such date, ollowed by an original delivered by
first class mail, registered or certified, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, to the party to whom notice is to
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be given, (2) within 72 hours after mailing, if mailed to the party to whom notice is to be given, by first class mail,
registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, or (3) on the following day if sent by a
nationally recognized overnight delivery services, in each case, properly addressed to the party at his address set
forth on the signature page of thizs Agreement or any other address that any party may designate by written notice

to the others.

F. This Agrecement shall be construcd in accordance with, and governed by, the laws of the Statc of Ncvada.

(3. No party may assign either this Agreement or any of its rights, interests, or obligations hereunder without the prior
written approval of the other party.

H. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all
of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument.

1IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement in duplicate as of the date (irst above shown.

Just ¢hill products LLC

700 Atlantis Road,
Unit 201
Melbourne Florida 32904

Hy: Nifajkuniar Patel
Title: Managing Member

mCig, lnc.
200 Bellevue Way NE

Bellevue WA 95004

,__,--"'_'
, ‘:z/’f{;{ {A—

By: Paul Rosenberg
Title: CEO
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Exhibit A

Below are additional products to be incorporated in the Master Distribution agreement.
Prices to mCig are listed as Master Distributor.

Other items to be added at a later point and considered part of agreement with an email approval from

both sides
MASTER  AMIDDLE 1
PRODUCTS BARCODE EFFECT DISTRIBUTION. MAN STORE ETMLI-'I
BLAST HIGH ENERGY 3CAPSULES B35385779630 |MOOD ENHANCER & ENERGY SUPPLIMENTS 53.00 5400 | %5.00 | 51200 E
WHIGIIENﬁI’ﬁ_f 20Z LIQuUI GARILETTSGI0 | MOOD ENHANCER & ENERCY SUPPLIMENTS w300 | .00 | 5500 S].Z.ﬂﬂi
j 1
i rrallow maad rol: B ! EEDIESTIOEAT [MOOD ENHARCER & RELANATION SUPPLIMETS £3.00 ' M.W 500 5.1.2,1?:]
CANNAMS mallow mood relavation 2 OZ LIGUID | 628383779547 |MOOD ENHANCER & RELAXATION SURPLIMETS | §3.00 i $4.00 | $5.00 | 51200
R SPEED ENERGY I GEIASE5ERIS | HIGH ENERGY |capsule 55.00 i £7.00 [510.00| S20.00
ST CHELL GOLD KRATOM 1560 CAPSULESS THAL - 30% salling | 1010042080374 |BOTANICAL EXTRACT $8.00 I $8.00 | 5100 | 522.00
AUST CHILL GOLD KRATOM 1560 CAPSULESS MAFNGDA-G60% =eling i TOHEMINMITOE (BOTANICAL EXTRACT Stronger - hest seliing §7W I 38.00 |S1200] §25.00
ST CHILL GOLD KRATOM LSEMW'SULEss REDVEIN - 105 M‘! ; 1010042050882 [BOTANICAL EXTRALT 36.00 'r $6.00 |511.00| 522.00
JUST CHILL KAVA KAVA TON EMTRACT IGM TIS02BR1 70604 |BOTAMICAL ENTRACT - 3 capsules par pouch 53.00 54.00 | $6.00 | 512.00
|
JIUST CHILL E BLISTER ( Rattery & Charger| 280 mb batter with auta draw | 642049585768 ].’q.l'lll!hmd saen | $5.00 _£7.80 | 515.00
-
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SUB-DISTRIBUTION AGREEMENT

This Distribution Agreement is made and entered into as of May 27", 2015(the
"Effective Date") by and between mCig Inc, ("mCig" or the "Company"), a Nevada
corporation and JCP Wholesale ("JCP"). Located at 468 N. Camden Drive, Suite 200
Beverly Hills, CA 90210 and other locations, mCig and |CP are each sometimes
referred to herein individually as a "Party” or collectively as the "Parties.’

RECITALS

WHEREAS, mCig is a manufacturer of its own line of e- cigarettes and vaporizers
and the Exclusive Master Distributor "Just Chill Products” brand in particular a CBD line of
Products and all other products from the Chill Line

WHEREAS, JCP is engaged in the business of advertising, marketing,
distributing, and selling electronic cigarettes products with abilities in the sales,
storage, and distribution of such products;

WHEREAS, JCP wishes to market, sell, and distribute the Chill Line of CBD
Products Chill items offered (herein "Products”) in the C-Store markets, Head Shops,
Smoke Shops and Cash & Carry Markets that JCP is currently servicing in the United
States (collectively referred to as the "Markets"), and JCP desires to be engaged to
market, sell,and distribute the Products

WHEREAS, JCP wishes to serve a sub-distributor for mCig's Chill line of
products in the Markets, branding the Products.

WHEREAS, mCig and [CP desire to enter into a relationship whereby |CP will store
the Products in its warehouses and wholesale the Products to the Markets at mutually
agreed upon pricing guidelines, as set out in Exhibit B (the "Pricing and Sales Guidelines").

AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of these premises and of the mutual
promises and covenants contained herein, mCig and JCP agree, the receipt and
sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, to the following:

I. Appointment of JCP as a Sub-Distributor for the Chill line of products. mCig hereby
appoints JCP to act as mCig's sub-distributor for All the Chill Line Products Master
Distributed by mCig, which include, those products set forth in Exhibit A (the
"Products ") and noted accordingly.

2. Duties of ICP. shall have the following duties:

(a) JCP shall purchase the Products from mCig for all the Chill Line of products
and shall use its commercially best efforts to effectuate sales and distribution of mCig's
Chill Line Products, supporting mCig in the smoke and vape shop category, including
without limitation offering mCig Products to the Market retailers and other customers with
the support of mCig (as may be reasonably requested from time to time) A0
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(b} JCP shall store mCig's /Chill Products in its warehouses and shall comply
with all regulatory standards for importation, storage, shipment and handling of the
Products. Which if not stored correctly will diminish the products quality and in
particular and may cause the CBD oil to leak and if so will be at the expense of JCP...
Storage requirements are set in Exhibit A.

{¢) JCP shall provide input in all aspects of the marketing mix (i.e. product, pricing,
and promotion).
(d} JCP shall place all order directly with mCig -

{e) JCP shall work with mCig quarterly sales orders in advance

(f) JCP shall comply with all the laws and legal requirements with respect to its
marketing, storage and distribution of mCig's/ Chill line of CED Products

{g) As a sub- distributor |CP shall be responsible for maintaining the wholesale
prices that mCig sets as a Master Distributor. The standardized prices set are done in
accordance with mCig national sales strategy. This means that JCP shall be responsible for
selling products at set wholesale prices based on minimum orders. No deviation from this
pricing is allowed. Should mCig find out that JCP has deviated from pricing (Set on Exhihit
A) and has disturbed the market by reducing wholesale pricing without written approval
from mCig is subject to one or all of the following

1. Pricing increase

2. Temporary hold of future shipments

3. Termination of sub-distribution agreement

{h) In no event shall mCig have any liability to JCP for any punitive,
consequential, incidental or indirect damages as a result of, arising out of, or related to
this Agreement, even if it has been advised of the possibility of such damages, except
for gross negligence or intentional misconduct on the part of mClg All damage claims
shall be limited to actual damages incurred or to be incurred. The liability of mCig
hereunder shall in all cases be limited to the aggregate amount of funds received by JCP
from mCig pursuant to this Agreement.

3 Duties of mCig. mCig shall have the following duties:

(a) mCig will provide to JCP only those Products that are merchantable, compliant
with all applicable laws and suitable for shipping.

{b) mCig will provide to JCP the Pricing and Sales Guidelines for the Products, as
set forth in Exhibit A & B.

{¢) mCig will use reasonable commercial efforts to maintain on its premises an
adequate stock of the Products, both for display to the public sufficient to satisfy the
projected sales volume and shall use reasonable commercial efforts to fill all orders
requested by JCP within a reasonable time after the receipt of each order.

AAd
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(c) mCig will support all of JCP's sales efforts related to the Products and
provide knowledge, insight and support for sales efforts as requested.

(d) mCig agrees to provide full access to all Chill marketing, sales, reference, and



collateral materials to enable support for use in cummercializingthe Prﬁducts, incl-uding
specifically JCP marketing and branding strategies for the Products asset forthin Exhibit
C (the "Marking and Branding Strategies") to be added in as they are established.

4 mCig Covenants and Warranties.

{a) mCig will have the Chill manufacture replace, all Products that are delivered
to JCP in an unsalable condition, provided JCP nofifies mCig and of such condition
within thirty (72] hours of receiving product. mCig will replace, any Product subject to
a recall... Disposition of any unsalable, defective, spoiled or recalled Products if it is
determined that it was not caused my improper storage ore handling from JCP and not
from their customers.

{b) mCig will comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws. mCig
warrants and represents that all Products delivered to JCP or its customers shall,
upon delivery, be merchantable products of good quality produced in accordance with
mCig's specifications and free of defects.

5 Pricing Points and Sales Guidelines, JCP shall purchase from mCig the Chill products,

to be sold by JCP in their existing retail Markets. JCP shall maintainand substantially
comply with the mutually agreed upon Prices in Exhibit A and Pricing and Sales Guidelines
in Exhibit B. If the Pricing and Sales Guidelines are not met, Product shipments by mCig
may be suspended until such time as JCP and mCig can come to a resolution and JCP can
cure this infraction or mCig's option to increase prices and or terminate sub distribution
agreement. The Pricing and Sales Guidelines may be amended upon 20 days' written
notice, by mutual consent of the Parties in writing as may be determined by changes in
Product availahility and volatility of the market.

{a) In certain instances, JCP may choose to work in conjunction with another
party ("Sub- Sub-Distributor”) on a specific opportunity. In those cases, JCP may
contract with Sub- Distributor in its sole discretion and communicate these efforts

with mCig. JCP and will be responsible for enforcing all standardized pricing schedule
sin Exhibit A & B with any sub-sub distributors and is held accountable as if they made
the infractions directly.

(b) In the event of non-renewal or termination of the Agreement, JCP shall,
immediately prior to non-renewal or termination, pay mCig all outstanding amounts
due, and vpon demand by mCig will produce all Products that have been paid for
through the date of non-renewal or termination of the Agreement.

6 Duration of Agreement.

{a) Term. The term of this Agreement shall be for one (2) years and shall begin from
the Effective Date. Thereafter, the Agreement will be automatically renewed for successive
one (2) year periods. The Agreement may also be renewed or extended upon written
agreement of the Parties at any time,

(b} Termination. Either Party may terminate this Agreement, provided such party
provides 90-day notice. This Agreement shall also terminate prior to the end of any term
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i. Immediately upon determination by any governmental authority
with jurisdiction over the Parties that this Agreement is contrary to
existing laws, rules or regulations;

il. Upon written notice by mCig if JCP materially breaches this Agreement;
provided JCP has not cured such breach within twenty (20) days after receiving such
notice;

i, Upon written notice by mCig if JCP materially breaches this Agreement;
provided mCig has not cured such breach within twenty (20) days after receiving such
notice; or

iv. Immediately upon the mutual written consent of the Parties.

{c) Change of control. In the event of change of control of either Party, this
Agreement shall transfer to the new entity replacing such Party, unless such obligations
are modified bymutual consent of the Parties. [Fsuch a new entity wishes to terminate
the Agreement, it will berequired, upon termination to either (a) complete the 90 day
period following notice of termination, or (b) develop a new agreement on mutually
acceptable terms,

7. Expenses. All expenses and disbursements, including, but not limited to those for
travel, entettainment, office, clerical, and general expenses that may be incurred hy
either Party in connection with the services provided pursuant to this Agreement, shall
be borne by the Party incurring those expenses and disbursements, unless otherwise
agreed in advance in writing by the Parties.

8§ Samples. mUig shall provide a small amount of samples to JUP Any additional
needed for marketing materials upon request of JCP agrees to distribute samples and
advertising materials to promote the Products will be at published prices.

9, Assignment. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the
Parties and their successors and permitted assigns. Other than as indicated herein,
neither Party mayassign this Agreement or any rights or obligations hereunder without
the prior written consent ofthe other Party.
P
S
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10 Independence. mCig recognizes that JCP is free to manage its business as it deems best
and that JCP has the right to determine the effort and resources JCP will exert to develop
and promote the sale of the Products handled by JCP, it being recognized that JCP
consult withm(gto uphold retail chain account pricing and promaotional programs and not
to diminish Chill brand. JCP will be liable for misrepresentation of the relationship with
mCig other than as sub-distributor. JCP does not have the right to offer exclusivity for the
Chill line of products in any capacity.

11 Independent Contractors. The Parties to this Agreement are independent contractors.
Neither party is a legal representative of the other party. Nothing in this Agreement shall
be deemed to create a partnership, joint venture or any other relationship other than a
business-to-business service provider relationship. Neither Party shall be deemed to be an
employee or agent of the other Party.



12, Indemnification.

(a) Each party will indemnify, defend and hold harmless the other party and its
members, managers, officers, directors, employees, representatives, affiliates,
subcontractors and agents (collectively, "Related Parties") from and against any and all
liabilities, damages, obligations, losses, costs and expenses, including without limitation
reasonable attorneys' and other legal fees ("Liabilities"), and will defend the indemnified
persons against any and all claims, actions, suits, proceedings and hearings, arising out of
or resulting from: (1) the indemnifying patty's breach of any of its representations ,
warranties and covenants set folth in this Agreement; (2) the indemnifying party ‘s
material default in the performance of any of its obligations under this Agreement; and (3]
any negligence or willful misconduct on the part of the indemnifying party or its agents in
connection with the Products or related to this Agreement. In addition, |JCP acknowledges
that mCig is the Master Distributor of the Chill Product Lines will do its best efforts to work
with mCig should either party have to defend, from and against, any third party
(including without limitation governmental agencies) claims, suits, damages, liabilities,
judgments, costs or expenses resulting from any defects in the Products or harm caused to
consumers by the Products, intellectual property rights related to the Products, JCP
performance of its obligations under this Agreement (other than with respect to |CP gross
negligence, willful misconduct or breach by |CP of any of its obligations hereunder), and
mCig gross negligence, willful misconduct or breach of its obligations hereunder. JCP will
give mCig cooperation and any and all available information and assistance in the defense
of a claim or suit; to the extent it is able without incurring additional cost.

(b) With respect to any claim for which one party seeks indemnification from the
other patty (an "Alleged Indemnifying Party”) under this Section 13, the party seeking
indemnification (the "Alleged Indemnified Patty") will: (1) advise the Alleged Indemnifying
Party of such claim, in writing, within 15 days after the Alleged Indemnified Party has
received notice of such claim, or within such other period of time so as not to materially
prejudice the rights and obligations of the Alleged Indemnifying Party, whichever period is
shorter; and (2) provide all reasonable cooperation and assistance requested by the
Alleged Indemnifying Party and its representatives in the investigation and defense of any
such claim for which indemnification is sought. Neither patty will settle compromise or
consent to the entry of any judgment with respect to any claim that is the subject of

A
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Indemnification without the other party's prior written consent, which consent will not be
withheld, delayed. In any matter that is the subject of indemnification under this
Agreement, the Alleged Indemnified Party may participate in the defense of such claim at
its own expense,

13. Insurance. |CP, during the term of this Agreement , will at its sole cost and expense
obtain and keep in force a policy of commercial general liability insurance related to its
manufacture and sale of the Products under this Agreement in amounts equal to at least
$1,000,000 in the aggregate, including product liability coverage. Upon request of mCig at
any time, and at reasonable intervals, JCP will furnish a certificate of insurance, in form
reasonably acceptable to mCig, evidencing such insurance, naming mCig as an additional
insured, and providing for at least 30 days' prior written notice to mCig of any cancellation,
termination or change of such insurance coverage.

14, Confidentiality. Each Party shall treat the other Party's business or proprietary
information as confidential, including the terms of this Agreement.

15, Export Controls. [JCP acknowledges and understands that certain items or



intormation exchanged with prospective customers hereunder may be subject to export
controls and restrictions (including, but not limited to the Export Administration
Regulations [EAR), the Export Administration Act (EAA), and the sanctions laws
administered by the Office of Foreign Assets Contraol),

16, Publicity. Other than as required by law, no public release or announcement
concerning this Agreement shall be made by either Party without advance written
approval from the other Party.

|7. Applicable Law. This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the
State of Nevada, without giving effect to the principles of conflicts of law thereof.,

18. Notices, Notices to each party shall be sent via U.S. First Class Mail to such address
as each Party shall hereafter specity in writing to the other.

19 Severability. Should any provision hereof be deemed illegal or unenforceable, the
remaining provisions shall remain in full force and effect.

20. Attorneys ' Fees. In the event that legal proceedings are instituted to enforce or to
interpret any provisions of this Apreement, each party in such proceedings shall he
required to pay for their own defense.

21 Entire Agreement This Agreement and the Exhibits hereto set forth the entire
understanding of the Parties with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersede
any and all prioragreements, arrangements or understandings relating to the subject
matter hereof between Just Chill Products and JCP Directly and understand and accepts
being a sub- distributor and to adhere to the requirements of the agreement between
mCigand JCP. This Agreement shall not be amended in any regard except upon
written agreementdated subsequent to this Agreement and signed by both Parties. \
A
e

22 Arbitration. All claims, disputes or disagreements which may arise out of the
interpretation, performance or breach of this Agreement, or which in any way relate
this Agreement, whether brought during or after expiration of the term, shall be
submitted exclusively to binding arbitration in, California with either JAMS or the
American Arbitration Association , and before a single independent arbitrator
regardless of the issue or amount in dispute provided that such single independent
arbitrator has the expertise and experience to preside over the issue(s) in dispute,
each party to bear its own expenses, attorney fees, and administrative charges.
Judgment on the award rendered by the arbitrator may be entered in any court having
jurisdiction thereof,
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties have executed this Agreement by their duly authorized
agents to be made effective as of the last date entered below.

Signed for and on behalfof:

mCig, Inc,

iy e

By

Print

Name: Paul Rosenberg

Title: CEQ

Date: _ 6/16/2015

Address for Notice:

mCig, Inc.

433 North Camden Dr.

6! Floor

JCP Wholesale

By I — .
Print Phean Kuec{‘\wo w G

Name: — ¢© m\,.,:i\fj;ﬁ'éc
Title:

2ale 8 AE2o ol

Date: Fa 'l\LJ11‘§’

'|' T
Address for Notice:
468 N CAMDEN DRIVE

SUITE 200
BEVERLY HILLS, CA. 90210



Beverly Hills, CA
90210

EXHIBIT A

JCP PRODUCT PRICELIST

PRICING TO SUB- DISTRIBUTORS

GOLD iml
Sub Distributor  516.00
Retail 540.00

GOLD Sml
Sub Distributor  510.00
Retail %30.00




EXHITBIT B
PRICING AND SALES
GUIDELINES
GOLD Imi Retail: $40.00

Box 25ct Whalesale Retail
0-50 Store Owner Pricing $25.00 540,00
51-250 Store Owner Pricing 523.00 $40.00
250-1k  Store Owner Pricing 522.00 540.00
Box 25¢ct Wholesale Retail
1k-5k Distributors only 520.00 540.00
Sk and

up Distributors only $18.00 540.00

GOLD 5mi ‘Retail $30.00

Box 12ct Wholesale Retail
0-48 Store Owner Pricing 518.00 $30.00
49-240  Store Owner Pricing $17.00 $30.00
241-960 Store Owner Pricing  515.00 $30,00
Box 12ct Wholesale Retail
1k-5k Distributors only $13.00 530.00
5k and

up Distributors only 511.00 £30.00

\T

\




* All items cannot be sold for less than above pricing
*Any deviation ion price must be approved by mCig

EXHIBITC

MARKETING AND BRANDING STRATEGIES FORTHEPRODUCTS






mCig, Inc.

August 3, 2016

Vapolution, Inc.
1692 Mangrove Avenue
Chico, CA 95926

EXTENSION OF RIGHTS TO RESCIND AGREEMENT DATED AUGUST 25, 2015 To
Whom It May Corcern:  This is to inform you that mCig. Ine. hias unilaterally extended the
rights of the previous owners of Vapolution, Inc.. to extend the rescission clause of the
agreement through June 30. 2017, This right of rescission is in line with the verbal discussion
between us since the expifation of the rescission date of March 31, 2016.

Michael Hawkins
Chief Financial Officer

Patrick Lucey Previous Owner of Vapolution, Inc,

Patrfck Lugey




EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT made as of August 24, 2016, with an effective date of
September 1, 2016, by and between mCig, Inc., a Nevada corporation located in Henderson, Nevada
(hereinafter called the “Company™), and Michael W. Hawking, located at 6055 Anello Drive,
Melbourne, FL 32940 (hereinafter called “Employee”),

WHEREAS, The Employee will render certain services to the Company in connection with the
Company to act as its Chief Financial Officer and member of the Board of Directors. (the
"Relationship™).

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and for other good and valuable
consideration, the receipt and adequacy of which is hereby acknowledged, Company and Employee
hereby agree as follows:

1. Employment. Company hereby agrees to employ Employee, and Employee hereby agrees to
serve Company, upon the terms and conditions hereinafier set forth.

2. Term and Termination. The Inilial Term of this Agreement (the "Service Period") shall
commence on September 1, 2016 for a period of three-years,  This Agreement is at-will. Employee is
free to terminate employment with the Company at any time, afier the first 12 months, with or without
reason. Likewise, the Company has the right to terminate Employee, or otherwise discipline, transfer,
demote al any time, with or without reason, at the discretion of the Company.

(a). This Agreement and Employee's employment may be tenminated by Company af its
discretion at any time, provided that in such case, Employee shall be paid as severance an amount equal
to 3 months of Employee's then applicable base salary. In the event of such a discretionary termination,
Employee shall be entitled to receive any Commission Compensation payment or any other
compensation then in effect, prorated or otherwise,

(b). This Agreement may be lerminated by the Company by providing a thirty (30) days prior
wrilten notice to the Employee. In the event of termination by the Company pursuant to this subsection,
Company may immediately relieve Employee of all duties and immediately terminate this Agreement,
provided that Company shall pay Employee at the then applicable base salary rate to the termination
date included in Employee's original termination notice,

(c). In the event that Employee is in breach of any material obligation owed Company in this
Agreement, for habitually neglecting the duties to be performed under this Agreement, engages in any
conduct which is dishonest, damages the reputation or standing of the Company, or participates in and is
convicted of any criminal act, or engages in any act of moral turpitude, then Company may terminate
this Agreement upon five (5) days notice to Employee. In event of termination of the Agresment
pursuant to this subsection, Employee shall be paid only at the then applicable base salary rate up to and
including the date of termination, Employee shall not be paid any incentive salary payments or other
compensation, prorated or otherwise.

{d). In the event Company is acquired, or is the non-surviving party in a merger, or sells all or
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substantially all of its assets, this Agreement shall be tenminated.
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where the Employee by reason of accident or illness in unable to perform his duties for a period of three
consecutive months; or (i) in the event the Company ceases operation.

3, Duties. Employee shall, subject to the legal authority vested in the Board of Directors (the
"Board"}, serve as the Chief Financial Officer for the Company, and as the Chief Financial Officer of
any and all subsidiaries, whether consolidated or invested, in which the Compeny has a controlling
interest. Employee shall devote a majority of his business fime and efforts to the business of Company,
Employee shall report directly to the Chief Executive Officer and Board of Directors.

4, Employee's Loyally to Company's Interests. Employee shall devote the necessary time,
attention, knowledge and skill to the business and interests of Company, and Employee shall be entitled
to all benefits, emoluments, profits and other issues arising from or incident to any and all work,
services and advice of Employee. Employee expressly agrees that during the term hereof he will not be
interested, directly or indirectly, in any form, fashion, or manner, as partner, officer, director,
stockholder, advisor, employee, or in any other form or capacity, in any other business similar to
Company's business or any allied trade, except that nothing herein contained shall be deemed to prevent
or limit the right of Employee to invest any or his surplus funds in the capital stock or other securities of
any corperation whose stock or securities are publicly owned or are regularly traded on any public
exchange, nor shall anything herein contained be deemed to prevent or [imit Employee from investing
his surplus funds in real estate.

5. Confidentiality, Non-Compete, Non-Solicitation and Investments. The Employee recognizes
and agrees that all copyrights, trademarks, or other infellectual property rights to created works arising
in any way from, or related to, the Employee's employment by the Company are the sole and exclusive
property of the Company, agrees to not assert any rights to those works against the Company or any
third-partics and agrees to assist the Company in any way requested to procure or protect the Company's
rights to those works. Upon cancellation of this Agreement by either party for any reason, or if
requested by the Board af any time, the Employee will return to the Company all documents, books,
manuals, lists, records, publications or other materials, whether in written, electronic or other form,
passwords, keys, credit cards, equipment, or other articles that came into the Employee's possession in
conniection with the Employee's employment by the Company and to maintain no copies or duplicates
without the prior written approval of the Board of Directors of the Company. The Employee will
maintain in confidence during and subsequent to the Employee's employment any information about the
Company or its members which is confidential information or which might reasonably be expected by
the Employee to be regarded by the Company as confidential and will not use that information except
for the benefit of the Company, Upon cancellation of this Agreement by either party for any reason, the
Employee will refrain for three (3) years from (a) undertaking employment or any compensated duties
on behall of any company or firm that provides services or products to clients in competition with the
Company, or (b) soliciting any individual who is then or was at any time within the preceding six
months an empioyee of the Company to leave the Company's employment, in either case unless the
Board of Directors of the Company provides prior written approval of the employment, duties or
solicitation. The Employee will not make or direct any personal investments in the cannabis field based
substantially upon information conveyed to the Employee as an employee of the Company whete the
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information is conveyed with a request for, or in the expectation of, confidentiality. The provisions of
this paragraph will survive cancellation of this Agreement.

6. Compensation and Other Provisions. Employee shall be entitled to the compensation and
benefits hereinafter described in subsections (a) through (d) (such compensation and benefits being
hereinafter referred to as "Compensation Benefits").

() Base Salary and Commissions. Company shall pay to Employee a base salary of $13,000
per month, which may be increased, but never decreased, annually by the Board of Directors, The
Company and Employee agree that, at the option of the Company it shall treat $10,000 per month of the
base salary as debt owed to the Employec. Upon mutual agreement, or the termination of this




Agreemeni, the Company shall convert the outstanding balance owed into equity of the Company at a
15% discount to the then 5 day trailing closing average. As a condition to this, the Company shall
immediately book the first year’s debt owed ($120,000), which is non-refundable or cancelable.

(b) In addition to the base salary, effective with the Company’s 2017 fiscal year (May 1,
2016 — April 30, 2017) Consultant will receive annual incentive bonus compensation equal to half of
one percent (0.5%) of annual Gross Revenues (GR) plus one-quarter of one percent (0.25%) of the
annual growth in Gross Revenues (Bonus Year Gross Revenues less Prior Year Gross Revenues)
plus one and one-half percent (1.5%) of Net Income (NI). The formula for calculation of the annual
incentive bonus is: .00SGR + .0025 (Bonus Year GR less Prior Year GR) + .015NI where GR and
NI are greater than or equal to zero. The annual incentive bonus will be caleulated based on the
Corporation’s financial results as of April 30™ of each year with the bonus payable by September
30" of the same calendar year, It is undersiood that should the Company be unable to cash flow the
business, any cash bonus payments in excess of $3.000 per month may be issued in stock of the
Company at a 25% discount to the then current market price. Such conversion must be approved by
the Board of Directors of the Corporation, Any stock conversion will have piggy back registration
rights.

{c) Employee shall be issued a seven year warrant to acquire 4% of the Company as a
condition to entering into this agreement, The warrant conversion price shall be the closing price of the
stock on the effective date of this Agreement. The wamant will have a vesting schedule of 1%
immediately vested, 1% at the end of the first year of employment, 1% at the end of the second year of
employment, and 1% at the end of the third year of employment.

(d) Benefits Program: The Employee shall receive a $500 per month as a benefit allowance
as part of his compensation plan. This allowance will be paid directly to the Employee until such time
as the Company cstablishes a Benefits Program. Employee shall be eligible to participate in all
employee benefit plans and armangements which may hereafter be established, including, without
limitation, all life, group insurance and medical care plans and all disability, incentive stock option
plans, 401(k) plans, pension plans, profit sharing plans, retirement and other employee benefit plans of
Company consistent with such benefits provided to Employee management of Company, Company
shall in all events pravide and pay the full costs of all medical and insurances for Employee as noted
above or as may be added throughout the Term.

7. Representations and Warranties. Employee hereby represents and warrants to the Company
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that (i) the execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement by Employee do not and shall not
conflict with, breach, violate or cause a default under any contract, agreement, instrument, order,
judgment or decree to which Employee is a party or by which Employee is bound, and (i) Employee is
not a party to or bound by any employment agreement, non-competition agreement or confidentiality
agreement with any other person or enfity which in any way may restrict, impair or limit the
performance of his duties hereunder.

8. Disclosure and Protection of Confidential Information,

(a) For purposes of this Agreement, "Confidential Information" means knowledge,
information and material which is proprietary to Company, of which Employee may obtain knowledge
or access through or as a result of his employment by Company (including information conceived,
originated, discovered or developed in whole or in part by Employee). Confidential Information
includes, but is not limited to, (i) technical knowledge, information and material such as trade secrels,
processes, formulas, data, know-how, improvements, inventions, computer programs, drawings, patents
and experimental and development work fechniques, and (i) marketing and other information, such as
supplier lists, customer lists, marketing and business plans, business or technical needs of customers,
consultants, licensees or suppliers and their methods of doing business, arrangements with customers,
consultants, licensees ot suppliers, manuals and personnel records or data. Confidential Information also
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Company treats as proprietary or designates as confidential, whether or not owned or developed by
Company, Notwithstanding the foregoing, any information which is or becomes generally available to
the general public otherwise than by breach of this Section 11 shall not constitute Confidential
Information for purposes of this Agreement.

(b) During the term of this Agreement and thereafter, Employee agrees, to hold in confidence
all Confidential Information and not to use such information for Fmployee's own benefit or fo reveal,
report, publish, disclose or transfer, directly or indirectly, any Confidential Information to any person or
entity, or to utilize any Confidential Information for any purpose, except in the course of Employee's
work for Company.

(c) Employee will abide by any and all security rules and regulations, whether formal or
informal, that may from time to time be imposed by Company for the protection of Confidential
Information, and will inform Company of any defects in, or improvements that could be made to, such
rules and regulations,

(d) Employee agrees that all inventions, innovations, improvements, developments, methods,
designs, analysis, drawings, reports, and all similar or related information which relates to Company's
actual or anticipated business, research and development or existing or future products or services and
which are conceived, developed or made by Employee at any time while employed by Company, or
made thereafter as a result of any invention conceived or work done at any time duting employment
with Company (hercinafter referred to as "Work Product"), and all Employee's right, title and interest in
and to Work Product, shall be regarded as made and held by Employee in a fidueiary capacity solely for
the benefit of Company and shall exclusively belong to Company. Employee will promptly disclose
such Work Product to the Board of Ditectors of Company and perform all actions reasonably requested
by the Board of Directors of Company (whether during or after the term of Emplayee's employment
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with Company) to establish and confirm such ownership (including, without limitation, execution of any
and all assignments, conveyances, consents, powers of attorney and other imstruments),

() Employee will notify Company in writing immediately upon receipt of any subpoena,
notice to produce, or other compulsory order or process of any court of law or government agency if
such document requires or may require disclosure or other transfer of Confidential Information,

(f) Upon termination of employment, Employee will deliver to Company any and all records
and tangible property that contain Confidential Information that are in his possession or under his
control. The provisions of this Section 11 shall survive the termination of Employee's employment with
Company.,

9. Availability of Injunctive Reliel. Employee acknowledges and agrees that any breach by him
of the provisions of Section 8 hereof will cause Company irreparable injury and damage for which it
cannot be adeguately compensated in damages. Employee therefore expressly agrees that Company
shall be entitled to seck injunctive and/or other equitable relief, on a temporary or permanent basis to
prevent any anticipatory or continuing breach of this Agreement or any patt hereof, and is secured as
enforcement, Nothing herein shall be construed as a waiver by Company of any right it may have or
hereafter acquired to monetary damages by reason of any injury to its property, business or reputation or
otherwise arising out of any wrongful act or omission of it

10. Indemnification. Company hereby releases and agrees to unconditionally indemnify and
hold Employee harmless from and against all losses, liabilities, claims, actions, judgments, demands,
costs, expenses, fines, penalties, fees, and damages, of any kind or nature, including, without limitation,
attorney's fees and costs and whether or not suit is instituted, that are suffered or incurred by Employee,
directly or indirectly, relating to, arising out of or in connection with any events, occurrences of
circumstances of or involving Company ptior to the effective date of this Agreement, irrespective of
whether or not Emplayee is now aware or shall hereafier become aware of such events, occurrences or




circumstances or additional facts relating thereto.

11, Survival. The covenants, agreements, representations and warranties contained in or made
pursuant to this Agreement shall survive Employee's termination of employment, irrespective of any
investigation made by or on behaif of any party.

12. Entire Agreement; Modification. This Agreement sets forth the entire understanding of the
parties with respect to the subject matter hereof, supersedes all existing agreements between them
concering such subject matter, and may be modified only by a written instrument duly executed by
each party,

13. Notices. Any notice required or permitted hereunder shall be deemed validly given il
delivered by hand, verified overnight delivery, or by first class, certified mail to the following address of
Employee (or to such other address as Employee may notify in writing to Company):

14. Waiver. Any waiver by either party of a breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not
operate as or be construed to be a waiver of any other breach of such provision or of any breach of any
other provision of this Agreement. The failure of a party to insist upon strict adherence to any term of
Confidential Page 5 B/24/2016
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this Agreement on one or more occasions shall not be considered a waiver or deprive that party of the
right thereafter to insist upon sirict adherence to that ferm or any other term of this Agreement. All
waivers must be in writing,

15. Binding Effect. The provisions of this Agreement shall be binding upon the Employee and
his heirs and personal representatives, and shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of Company,
its successors and assigns.

16. No Assignment. Neither this Agreement nor any or interest in this Agreement may be
assigned by Employee without the prior express written approval of Company, which may be withheld
by Company at Company's absolute discretion.

17. Severahility. [f any term of this Agreement is held by a court of competent j urisdiction fo be
invalid or unenforceable, then this Agreement, including all of the remaining terms, will remain in full
force and effect as if such invalid or unenforceable term had never been included.

18, Headings. The headings in this Agreement ave solely for convenience of reference and shall
be given no effect in the construction or interpretation of this Agreement,

19. Governing Law; Venue. This Agreement will be governed and construed under the laws of
the State of Florida, without giving effect to rules goveming conflicts of law, with proper venue with
respect to all disputes related to this Agreement being Brevard County, Florida.

20. Invalidity. The invalidity or unenforceability of any term of this Agreement shall not
invalidate, make unenforceable or otherwise affect any other term of this Agreement, which shall
remain in full force and effect

21. Attorneys' Fees, In the event any dispute or litigation arises hereunder between any of the
partics hereto, the prevailing party shall be entitled to all reasonable costs and expenses incurred by it n
connection therewith (including, without limitation, all reasonable atiorneys' fees and costs incurred
before and at any trial or other proceeding and at all tribunal levels), as well as all other relief granted in
any suit or other proceeding,

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the partics have exeeuted this Agreement as of the written date stated
below.




mCig, Inc.

Employee
i m——m
Signature:

Signature:

Mame: Paul Rosenberg
Title: CEO
Dafe: August 24, 2016

Confidential
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Name: Michael W, Hawkins
Social Security # 307-78-1748
Date; August 24, 2016
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STATE OF NEVADA

BARBARA K. CEGAVSKE
Secretary of State Commercial Recordings Division
202 N. Carson Street
Carson City, NV 897014201
JEFFERY LANDERFELT Telephone (775) 684-5708
Depaty Secretary Fax (775) 684-7138
for Commercial Recordings
OFFICE OF THE
SECRETARY OF STATE
Ronald Sassano Job:C20160307-2481
284C E. Lake Mead Pkwy #507 March 7, 2016
Henderson, NV 89015
Special Handling Instructions:
Charpes
Description Document Number | Filing Date/Time Qty | Price Amount
Articles of Organization 20160106425-27 37772016 8:3938 PM 1 55300 ﬁgﬂl}
Initial Last 20160106426-38 3772016 B:39:56 PM 1 $150.00 $150.00
Business License 3/2016- 20160106426-38 3/772016 8:39:56 PM 1 $200.00 $200.00
32017
Total $425.00
Payments
Type Description Amount
Crednt 12329714574119761836212701 123 $425.00
Total $425.00
Credit Balance: $0.00
Job Contents:
LLC Charler(s): 1
File Stamped Copy(s): 2
Busimess License(s): 1
Ronald Sassano

284C E. Lake Mead Pkwy #5307
Henderson, NV 89015




BARBARA K. CEGAVSKE “oseiest
Secretary of State
202 North Carson Street
Carson City, Nevada 89701 -4201
(775) 684-5708
Website: www.nvsos.gov
Filed in the affice of |Document Number
Articles of Organization o Ko 2016010642527 |
Limited Llﬂb"]l.y Company . um 03/07/2016 8:39 PM
(PURSUANT TO NRS CHAPTER 86) St offievsds [Rebiby b
E0107172016-9
USE BLACK INK ONLY - DO NOT HIGHLIGHT ABOVE BPACE 15 FOR OFFICE USE ONLY
1. Name of Limited-| TR | ; Check boxifa  Check boxiia
ENEAY Compdon ESCALABLESDLU'[IGNS 3 of Duhtails _Cmiomes,
(mus1 contain approved | Liabiliy Company  Liabiiity Company
Emited-igbilty company | D I:]
wording; see insirucions) |
2 Reglsiered Commercial Registered ngeﬂ ' ;
Agent for Service D
of Process: (check ered Ageni Office or Postion with Enlity
only one box) D tnmandmm Mﬂ ﬂ _ {name and addwess boiow)
[PAUL ROSENBERG
Name o Noncommercial Pegisteret Agent OR  Name of Tife of Office or Other Posifion with Enity
12831 ST. ROSE PARKWAY SUITE 200 " HENDERSON Nevada 89052
‘Sveet Adoress oy Zp Code
{2831 ST.ROSE PARKWA‘I’ SUl‘l'Eim 'fHHIDERSON _ Novada 89052
Maing Address ! diflerert from sweet adcoress) Ciy Zip Code
4 Dissolution i ; 2 .
Date: (optional Latest date upon which the company is to dissolve (if existence is not perpetual).
4. Management: | Company shall be managed by: Manager(s) Member(
(required) m ; (monrvummﬂm ”
5. Name and 1) MCIG, INC.
Address of each Name Ry : )
Manager or ml ST ROSE PARKWAY SUTIEZED 'HENDERSON I NV 9052
ging aue! ] B i
(anw\adﬁﬂnnupageﬁ "
more than 3) - J - ; .
'suqnum _ oty Sate  Zp Code
3)
Name
Svest Adwvess _Ciy Swme  Zp Code
6. Effective Date :
and Time: (optonay) Efective Date: |~ Effective Time: :
7. m Address I ., Ili-tﬂil'y uﬁpﬁdmhh cantatned herein ia cormect and sck
mﬂsl‘llﬁlﬂﬂ' ::m:iﬂﬁ:ﬂ:lh-mcﬂ-qhhﬂnﬁﬁnqhl—whﬂhﬁmhrﬂh‘hﬂﬁﬂhﬂ
Organlzer: (anach i MCIG, INC. x MCIG, IMC. "
Tan 1 erganizer) kS :
12831 ST. ROSE PARKWAY SUTTE 200 HENDERSON NV 59052
City Siate __Zp Coto
& Certificate of 1 hereby accept appointment as Registered Agent for the above named Entiy.
Acceptance of g
Appolntment of X mavr nosmores 3172016
Registered Agent: | Authorized Signature of Registered Agent or On Behaif of Registered Agent Entity Date

This form must be accompanied by appropriaie fees.

Newads Seomtary of Baie NRS 85 DLUC Atides
Ravisad 1-5-18



LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY CHARTER

I, BARBARA K. CEGAVSKE, the Nevada Secretary of State, do hereby certify that SCALABLE
SOLUTIONS L.L.C. did on March 7, 2016, file in this office the Articles of Organization for a
Limited Liability Company, that said Articles of Organization are now on file and of record in the
office of the Nevada Secretary of State, and further, that said Articles contain all the provisions
required by the laws governing Limited Liability Companies in the State of Nevada.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my
hand and affixed the Great Seal of State, at my
office on March 7, 2016.

fn.mx.cz.,g._

BARBARA K. CEGAVSKE
Secretary of State

Certified By: Electronic Filing
Certificate Number: C20160307-2481
You may verify this certificate

online at hitp:/iwww.nvsos.gov/




INITIAL/ANNUAL LIST OF MANAGERS OR MANAGING MEMBERS AND STATE

BUSINESS LICENSE APPLICATION OF: s leor, iy  ENTITY NUMBER
SCALABLE SDLU‘['[ONS LI..C _ ED107172016- 9
R O IIIIHIIIII
FORTHEFLNG PERICOCGF «  MAR, 2006 1o - MAR, 2017 | s

USE BLACK INK ORLY - DO NOT HIGHLIGHT
“=YOU MAY FILE THIS FORM ONLINE AT www.nvsilverflume.gov™

Return one file stamped copy. {1 Wing not ascempanied by order NStucions, Filed in the office of | Document Number
file stamped copy will be sant 10 registared agent | = 20160106426-38
MPORTANT. Read instructions bafcre completing and returring this form. Barbara K. Cesavske | P18 Dete md Time
1 Hmummmdwmmwﬁmﬁmwwm - of 03/07/2016 8:39 PM
, or if nene, s Managing Member FoRM s““’-‘}' State
BE RETURNED IF D " State of Nevada Entity Number

2 1 thoro are 46dDONE MANEQARS or managing mernbers, afiach & [t of tharm to this fum ED10?1?2016-9

3 Petum compheled form with the lee of $150.00 A 375 00 penally must be added for fallune to file this
form by The deadline  An annual st reosived more than 90 ceys before its due dee shall i o]
= amenced kst for the previous year

& Btato businoss Sconse foe i §209 00 Efectvwe 2112010, $100 00 must be addad for failune to filo torm by doading
5 Muke pour check paysble (o [he Bocratary of Siee

& Drdering Copies: If requosted above, one file stemped copy wil be mtumad st ro addifonsl charge. To mosive a cortified copy, anclase an addiional §30.00 per sertifioafion
A papy fes of $2.00 per page @ rocuined for esch addtionsl copy genarstod whon ordering 2 or morg fie stempod or corifiod toplen Appropnale nstructians muat
AOCOMPANY YOUT Grdar

7. Aatum the completad form i Secretary of Siate, 202 North Carson Street, Camson Clty, Nevads 83701-4201, (775) 684-5708.
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SECRETARY OF STA 7

NEVADA STATE BUSINESS LICENSE

SCALABLE SOLUTIONS L.L.C.
Nevada Business Identification # NV20161140012

Expiration Date: March 31, 2017
In accordance with Title 7 of Nevada Revised Statules, pursuant to proper application duly filed

and payment of appropriate prescribed fees, the above named is hereby granted a Nevada State
Business License for business activities conducted within the State of Nevada.

Valid until the expiration date listed unless suspended, revoked or cancelled m accordance with
the provisions in Nevada Revised Statutes. License is not transferable and is not in lieu of any
local business license, permit or registration.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto I
set my hand and affixed the Great Seal of State,
at my office on March 7, 2016

ey o

Secretary of State

You may verify this license at www.nvsos.gov under the Nevada Business Search.

License must be cancelled on or before its expiration date if business activity ceases,
Fallure to do so will resuit in late fees or penaities which by law cannot be waived.







Exhibit 31.1

Certification of CEO pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 302 and 906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002.

I, Paul Rosenberg, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of mCig, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were
made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the Registrant as of, and
for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The Registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls
and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the Issuer, including its consolidated
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is
being prepared,

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the Issuer’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report
our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered
by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the Issuer’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred
during the Registrant’s fiscal quarter ending April 30, 2016 that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the Issuer’s internal control over financial reporting.

5. The Registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal
control over financial reporting, to the Registrant’s auditor and the audit committee of the Registrant’s board of
directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and
report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant
role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Dated: August 31, 2016

/s/ Paul Rosenberg
Paul Rosenberg, Chief Executive Officer

(Principal Executive Officer)



Exhibit 31.2

Certification of CFO pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 302 and 906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002.

I, Michael Hawkins, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of mCig, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were
made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the Registrant as of, and
for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The Registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls
and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the Issuer, including its consolidated
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is
being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the Issuer’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report
our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered
by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the Issuer’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred
during the Registrant’s fiscal quarter ending April 30, 2016 that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the Issuer’s internal control over financial reporting.

5. The Registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal
control over financial reporting, to the Registrant’s auditor and the audit committee of the Registrant’s board of
directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and
report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant
role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Dated: August 31, 2016

/ s/ Michael Hawkins
Michael Hawkins, Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Accounting Officer)



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATIONS PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
(18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350)

In connection with the annual report of Energizer Resources Inc. (the "Company") on Form 10-K for the period ending
April 30, 2016, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the "Report"), I, Paul
Rosenberg, Interim Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted
pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934, as amended; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and
result of operations of the Company.

Dated: August 31, 2016

/s/ Paul Rosenberg
Paul Rosenberg,

Chief Executive Officer



Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATIONS PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
(18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350)

In connection with the annual report of Energizer Resources Inc. (the "Company") on Form 10-K for the period ending
April 30, 2016, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the "Report"), I, Michael
Hawkins, Chief Financial Officer, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934, as amended; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and
result of operations of the Company.

Dated: August 31, 2016

/s/ Michael Hawkins
Michael Hawkins, Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Accounting Officer)



